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About the

Stepping Up to Challenges of Evolving
Microinsurance Market

Everything changes. Nothing stays the same. Our lives are continuously gro
er-changing. We adapt. We follow the current but most of the time we carve our oV
adjust to new things. Sometimes we resist. We improve our lives. We become fl
become resilient. We become stronger and ready to take on challenges.

All of us strive for a better life, not only for ourselves but more of to our families. We want to pre
vide them with everything they need, especially when it comes to health, education and overall
guality of life. We don't want them to suffer any difficulties. If we can only do everything for
them because family is the most important in our lives.

And that is what NATCCO MBAI also feels. We want to provide our members with the best micro-
insurance products and services. We want to enhance our association continuously. And we do
it consciously guided by good governance.We know that our members deserve nothing less
and this is what motivates us to be more competitive in terms of coming up with wider and
better microinsurance products that would answer the life and non-life needs of the members.

In 2022, we partner with other insurance company so that we can also serve the other microin-
surance products required by our members. This 2023, we launched these products. The life in-
surance for our senior members ages 65 and above, micro-HMO product for cooperative em-
ployees and members, and some non-life insurance products. All these are at a very affordable
premium without sacrificing the quality and competitiveness of the insurance product. We will
also implement the 1-3-5 Claims Settlement process, wherein those members with valid claims
who provided the required documents upon insurance application and notify the Claims Unit
will just wait for 1 day and the claim will be released. If there will be documentary and/or eligibili-
ty issues, the claims will be released or decided within 5 working days.

This 2023 we will never let our guard down. We will continue to innovate and answer the needs
of our members. We will aim better and do it consistently to make sure that our promise of pro-
viding financial assistance through microinsurance claims will always be fulfilled.

We will step up to the challenge, and you, our members, will be our inspiration to make all these
things happen.

NATCCO MBAI




NATIONAL CONFEDERATION OF
COOPERATIVES MUTUAL BENEFITS
ASSOCIATION, INC.

VISION

300,000 - STRONG MBA BY 2025.

MISSION

WE PROVIDE FAMILY PROTECTION AND MEMBER'S SECURITY
THROUGH INSURANCE SERVICES.

CORE VALUES

INTEGRITY

We are uncompromising in upholding governance
and ethics, living with utmost integrity in our daily life
and deserving of our members and partners’ trust.

COMPASSION

We serve our partners, members, and their families
with a heart. We take care of our employees and our
employees are loyal to the company. and deserving of
our members and partners’ trust.

EXCELLENCE

We provide service of the highest standards and with
accountability. We are always looking for innovative
ways to ably respond to the needs of our members
and partners.

TEAMWORK

Our team is united towards one goal,
working in harmony, and supportive of
each other when facing challenges.
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April 28, 2023

To: BOARD OF TRUSTEES, OFFICERS and PARTNER-COOPERATIVES

Notice of 12™ Annual Meeting:

Notice is hereby given that the 12* Annual Meeting of the National Confederation of Cooperatives
Mutual Benefits Association (NATCCO MBA), Inc., will be held on May 30, 2023, 8:00 AM, at Sequoia
Hotel, Quezon City, with the following agenda:

ANNUAL MEETING

VI.
VII.
VIII.

Call to Order

Declaration of quorum

Considerations of the Minutes of the 2022 Annual Meeting dated May 31, 2022
Matters arising from the Minutes of the 2022 Annual Meeting dated May 31, 2022
Unfinished Business

Annual Reports

New Business

Election

Other Matters

Adjournment

NATCCO MBAI

3 Floor, 227 JP Rizal Street, Project 4, Quezon City 1109 /
Tel: 0998-5946712; (02) 8962-3408 / Email: natccombai2010@hotmail.com
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Please confirm your attendance at 0998-594 6712 or through the following:

NATCCO MBAI Nomination Committee Secretariat

Snail Mail : 3/F NATCCO Bldg., #227 JP Rizal St., Project 4, 1109 Quezon City
Email : nmbai.annualmeeting2023@gmail.com / natccombai@nmbainsurance.com
FB Messenger : https://www.facebook.com/messages/t/100010624025995

Cooperatively yours,

’
!

<1
I, i
e
[

e

Mildred C. Cerezo
Board Secretary

Description of the Agenda
. Call to Order. The Presiding Officer will call the meeting to order.

1l Roll Call and Determination of Quorum. The Board Secretary will determine the number of
attendees, whether in person or by proxy, for the purpose of determining the presence of
quorum to validly transact business. A simple majority (51%) of the voting membership will
constitute a quorum.

1. Approval of the Agenda. The Presiding Officer will read the agenda and will ask the Members
for their approval.

V. Considerations of the Minutes of the 2022 Annual Meeting dated May 31, 2022. A copy of
the minutes is available at the website of NATCCO MBAI, (https://www.natccombai.com).
Members will be asked to approve the minutes and acknowledge the completeness and
accuracy thereof.

NATCCO MBAI
3 Floor, 227 JP Rizal Street, Project 4, Quezon City 1109 /
Tel: 0998-5946712; (02) 8962-3408 / Email: natccombai2010@hotmail.com
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VL.

VII.

VIII.

Matters arising from the Minutes of the 2022 Annual Meeting dated May 31, 2022. The
Presiding Officer will present updates on the matters raised during the 2022 Annual Meeting.

Annual Reports. Ratification of the Board and Management actions, including the 2022
Audited Financial Statement.

New Business.

1. The 2023 Annual Plans and Budget will be presented to the Members;

2. The appointment of External Auditor for the year 2023 will be presented to the Members
for approval.

Election of the Board of Trustees. The term of two (2) Regular Board of Trustees will expire
on May 2023. To prepare the Members for the election, the Corporate Governance
Committee will:

1. Present the nomination and selection procedures, and the online election guidelines;

2. Present the candidates;

3.  Proclaim the winners

Adjournment

NATCCO MBAI

3 Floor, 227 JP Rizal Street, Project 4, Quezon City 1109 /
Tel: 0998-5946712; (02) 8962-3408 / Email: natccombai2010@hotmail.com
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External Auditor: AQUINO MATA CALICA & ASSOCIATES

Aquino, Mata, Calica & Associates (“AMC & Associates”) was registered with the Philippine Securities
and Exchange Commission on February 18, 2002 as a general professional partnership providing various
services in audit and assurance, accounting, tax and advisory services and business process outsourcing.

Vision: To be the leading firm provider of high-quality services in the field of audit, taxation, accounting,
consulting and business process outsourcing

Mission: To provide the most reliable, effective and efficient M I SS 1 O N services that adds value to
client’s business, both local and international.

Core Values:

T —Transparency

R — Results oriented
| — Integrity

Q - Quality

C - Client-focused

Services:
Audit and assurance; Business process support; Tax; Management consultancy; other services

Contact Details:

Address: Suites 1804-1807 Cityland Condominium 10, Tower I, H.V. Dela Costa Street Salcedo Village,
Makati City, Philippines

website: http://www.amc-associates.com

Telephone numbers: (02) 841-0462; (02) 893-0287; (02) 813-3534 : (02) 841-0462 Local 106

Email: Audit : jevcalica@amc-associates.com / Accounting: nssantiago@amc-associates.com / HR :
hrd@amc-associates.com

NATCCO MBAI
3 Floor, 227 JP Rizal Street, Project 4, Quezon City 1109 /
Tel: 0998-5946712; (02) 8962-3408 / Email: natccombai2010@hotmail.com
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PROFILE OF THE QUALIFIED CANDIDATES FOR THE POSITION OF REGULAR BOARD OF TRUSTEES

BANGA, LEONARDO S.

Age 62
Coop Affiliation NATCCO/MICOOP Unit
No. of years in coop 39

Related experience/skills

Cooperative management

Educ. Attainment

BSBA Accounting, MBA/MPA

Priority thrust for NMBAI

Financial progress of NMBAI, growth of membership, audit &
regulatory compliance

Other directorship

NA

CUBAROL, MAUREEN O.

Age 40
Coop Affiliation Alipao Multi-Purpose Cooperative
No. of years in coop 11

Related experience/skills

Cooperative management

Educ. Attainment

College graduate

Priority thrust for NMBAI

Coverage and protection for all cooperative members

Other directorship

NA

NATCCO MBAI
3 Floor, 227 JP Rizal Street, Project 4, Quezon City 1109 /

Tel: 0998-5946712; (02) 8962-3408 / Email: natccombai2010@hotmail.com
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PADER, ROMENITO A.

Age 51

Coop Affiliation Bayanihan Hundred Islands Agrarian Reform Cooperative

No. of years in coop 10

Related experience/skills Cooperative management

Educ. Attainment College graduate

Priority thrust for NMBAI Enhance members' protection

Other directorship BOD, Bayanihan Hundred Islands Agrarian Reform Cooperative

QUIDILLA, MARIA JASMINE J.

Age

47

Coop Affiliation

NATCCO/MICOOP Unit

No. of years in coop

15

Related experience/skills

Cooperative management

Educ. Attainment

Bachelor of Science in Accountancy

Priority thrust for NMBAI

Product development and updated and enhanced

policies

Other directorship

NA

NATCCO MBAI
3 Floor, 227 JP Rizal Street, Project 4, Quezon City 1109 /
Tel: 0998-5946712; (02) 8962-3408 / Email: natccombai2010@hotmail.com
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Minutes of the NATCCO MBAI 2022 11" ANNUAL MEETING via Zoom
May 31, 2022,
10:44 am — 2:34 pm

Theme: ENHANCING MEMBER’S PROTECTION THROUGH MICROINSURANCE
ACCESSIBILITY

Attendees:

Name

Representation

1. ABAO, ROBERT

PERSONAL MEMBERSHIP

2. ALVAREZ, MA. FATIMA A.

BGOA - BAAO PARISH MULTI-PURPOSE COOPERATIVE - GOA BRANCH

3. AMAGA, RICHARD A.

1)PERSONAL MEMBERSHIP
2)BLEB - BACBACAN MULTI-PURPOSE COOPERATIVE

4. ANTONIO, REYJI

TLOR - TALISAYON MULTI PURPOSE COOPERATIVE-SAN LORENZO
RUIZ BRANCH

5. AQUINO, MA. ELIZABETH B.

PERSONAL MEMBERSHIP

6. ARABIS, GLENN C.

NBAR - NAGKAHIUSANG MAG-UUMA SA GUIHALINAN COOPERATIVE-
BAROBO

7. BALONGA, IRENE P.

DKAP - DAGOHOY MULTI-PURPOSE COOPERATIVE

8. BESANA, NORELYN S.

GGLA - GLANSAR CREDIT COOPERATIVE- GLAN

9. BLANCO, JANETTE U.

DMAG - DALAWINON FARMERS MULTI-PURPOSE COOPERATIVE

9. BONILLA, JUPITER B.

1)BSBA - BACARRA SAVINGS AND CREDIT COOPERATIVE

2)DBAN - DUR-AS SAVINGS AND CREDIT COOPERATIVE

3)FALA - FIVE STAR MULTI-PURPOSE COOPERATIVE - ALLACAPAN
BRANCH

4)FCAU - FIVESTAR MULTI PURPOSE COOPERATIVE- CAUAYAN
BRANCH

5)FGAM - FIVE STAR MULTI PURPOSE COOPERATIVE- GAMU MAIN
6)FGON - FIVE STAR MULTI-PURPOSE COOPERATIVE-GONZAGA
BRANCH

7)FILA - FIVESTAR MULTI PURPOSE COOPERATIVE- ILAGAN BRANCH
8)FROX - FIVESTAR MULTI PURPOSE COOPERATIVE - ROXAS
BRANCH

9)FSAN - FIVESTAR MULTI PURPOSE COOPERATIVE -SANTIAGO
BRANCH

10)FTUG - FIVESTAR MULTI PURPOSE COOPERATIVE - TUGUEGARAO
BRANCH

11)FTUM - FIVE STAR MULTI-PURPOSE COOPERATIVE - TUMAUINI
BRANCH

12)NMBA - JUPITER B. BONILLA

13)PAGO - PANGASINAN SAVINGS AND CREDIT COOPERATIVE -
AGOO BRANCH

14)PURD - PANGASINAN SAVINGS AND CREDIT COOPERATIVE -
URDANETA

10. CAFIRMA, ZORAHAYDA A.

PERSONAL MEMBERSHIP




11.

CARNIZER, MIRASEL T.

BBUE - BUKLOD NG BUHAY ARC MULTI-PURPOSE COOPERATIVE

12. CASTRO, YOLANDA ROSARIO | GPAN - GP-125 GOLDEN PANCE MULTI-PURPOSE COOPERATIVE

13. CEREZO, MILDRED C. PERSONAL MEMBERSHIP

14. COLANGOY, JEREMIAS JR. S. | MROX - MANSALAY AGRICULTURE AND FISHERIES MULTI-PURPOSE
COOPERATIVE

15. DE GUZMAN, MARY JOY C. STIW - ST. ANTHONY DEVELOPMENT COOPERATIVE

16. DELA CRUZ, JENINA DJ. PERSONAL MEMBERSHIP

17. ESTOCADA, JENNIFER M. PERSONAL MEMBERSHIP

18. FRANCISCO, DHONNA R, PERSONAL MEMBERSHIP

19. GARCIA ANGEL 1)TATO - TALOY FARMERS MULTI PURPOSE COOPERATIVE - ATOK
BRANCH
2)TBAG - TALOY FARMERS MULTI PURPOSE COOPERATIVE - BAGUIO
CITY
3)TBUG - TALOY FARMERS MULTI-PURPOSE COOPERATIVE-BUGUIAS
BRANCH
4)TTAL - TALOY NORTE FARMERS MULTI-PURPOSE COOPERATIVE -
TALOY SUR
5)TTRI - TALOY FARMERS MULTI PURPOSE COOPERATIVE- LA
TRINIDAD

20. GERIA, LLOYD F. SNAR - SRT OF PALAWAN MULTI-PURPOSE COOPERATIVE

21. IBANEZ, ADOLFO A RTAC - REGIONAL AND CENTRAL COMELEC EMPLOYEES MPC

22. LE IGNACIO, MARY DDUM - DUMANGAS AGRARIAN REFORM COOPERATIVE

23. LIGASAN, SUGAR RAY L. PPAS - PANAY AGRARIAN REFORM COOPERATIVE

24. LUCENA, NERISSA D. 1) LCAL - LOURDES MULTI-PURPOSE COOPERATIVE - CALINTAAN
BRANCH
2) LMAG - LOURDES MULTI PURPOSE COOPERATIVE- MAGSAYSAY

25. MACKEY, KATHRINE MVIS - MINDORO OCCIDENTAL SUSTAINABLE SKILLS MULTI-
PURPOSE COOPERATIVE

26. MAGDAONG, ROMEO M. 1) PERSONAL MEMBERSHIP
2) RBSO - RED RIBBON MULTI-PURPOSE COOPERATIVE - BOD, STAFF
& OFFICERS
3) RLIB - RED RIBBON MULTI-PURPOSE COOPERATIVE - MEMBER

27. MARTIRES, MYLENE F. NALL - NORTHERN SAMAR SAVINGS AND CREDIT COOPERATIVE

28. MASLOG, ARTHUR R. 1) KISA - KISANDAL MULTI-PURPOSE COOPERATIVE- ANTIPAS
BRANCH
2) KISM - KISANDAL MULTI-PURPOSE COOPERATIVE- M"™"LANG
BRANCH
3) KKID - KISANDAL MULTI-PURPOSE COOPERATIVE- KIDAPAWAN
(H.0)

29. MATIENZO, EDILBERTO BVIR - BATONG PALOWAY AGRARIAN REFORM COOPERATIVE

30. MENESES, REJOICE 1. SLUI - SAN NICOLAS MULTI-PURPOSE COOPERATIVE




31.

MINDARO, MIRIAM T.

1) PERSONAL MEMBERSHIP
2) SKAB - SOUTHERN NEGROS CREDIT COOPERATIVE (SONECCO) -
KABANKALAN

32.

PADER, ROMENITO A.

BALM - BAYANIHAN HUNDRED ISLANDS AGRARIAN REFORM
COOPERATIVE

33.

PADILLA, RYAN ARTHUR DG.

PERSONAL MEMBERSHIP

34.

PASTORES, ELLEN R.

1) PERSONAL MEMBERSHIP

2) NBAT - NEC MPC BATASAN BRANCH
3) NDAE - NEC MPC DAET BRANCH

4) NPED - NEC MPC SAN PEDRO BRANCH
5) NPRO - NEC MPC MAIN BRANCH

6) NTAG - NEC MPC TAGUIG BRANCH

35.

QUEBRAL, JOEL S.

1) SABC - SAN ISIDRO (SN) DEVELOPMENT COOPERATIVE - AGRI
BUSINESS CENTER

2) SCAL - SAN ISIDRO (SN) DEVELOPMENT COOPERATIVE -
CALABANGA

3) SGOA - SAN ISIDRO (SN) DEVELOPMENT COOPERATIVE - GOA
4) SIRI - SAN ISIDRO (SN) DEVELOPMENT COOEPERATIVE - IRIGA
BRANCH

5) SLIG - SAN ISIDRO (SN) DEVELOPMENT COOPERATIVE-LIGAO
6) SNAG - SAN ISDIRO DEVELOPMENT COOPERATIVE

7) SPAM - SAN ISIDRO (SN) DEVELOPMENT COOPERATIVE -
PAMPLONA

8) SPOL - SAN ISIDRO (SN) DEVELOPMENT COOPERATIVE -
POLANGUI SATELLITE

9) SRAG - SAN ISIDRO (SN) DEVELOPMENT COOPERATIVE - RAGAY

36.

REYES, ROSELLE S.

1) MLAU - MOTHER RITA MULTI-PURPOSE COOPERATIVE-MAIN
OFFICE

2) MSAN - MOTHER RITA MULTI-PURPOSE COOPERATIVE - SAN
MAECELINO BRANC

37.

SACLET, MARITES B.

1) SELN - SAN MIGUEL FARMERS AND FISHERS MULTI-PURPOSE
COOPERATIVE-EL NIDO BRANCH

2) SROX - SAN MIGUEL FARMERS AND FISHERS MULTI-PURPOSE
COOPERATIVE (SMFFMPC)

38.

SIERRA, MA. VERONICA B.

1) PERSONAL MEMBERSHIP
2) NATCCO NETWORK - MICOOP EMPLOYEES

39.

SOLSONA, MA. CHERISH G.

PERSONAL MEMBERSHIP

40.

TAMIDLES, MARIO R.

DMAB - DEVELOPMENT WORKERS SAVINGS AND CREDIT
COOPERATIVE

40.

TEJADA, DONNATILLA T.

1) PERSONAL MEMBERSHIP
2) LLUP - LIMBAHAN SMALL COCONUT FARMERS AND WOMEN MPC -
LUPON

41.

TEJADA, MINERVA G.

PERSONAL MEMBERSHIP

42.

TIZON, EVELIA B.

REPRESENTED: 158
1) PERSONAL MEMBERSHIP
2) NMBA - EVELIA B. TIZON-INCORPORATOR

UNREPRESENTED: 16,620

3) AGRI - AGRICULTURE FISHERY FORESTRY COOPERATIVES
FEDERATION (AGRICOOPH)

4) AODI - AGRA PROGRESO MULTI-PURPOSE COOPERATIVE




5) BANT - BANTOLINAO FARMERS MPC- ANTEQUERRA

6) BATU - BACLAY MULTI-PURPOSE COOPERATIVE

7) BBAC - BACOLOD CITY SAVINGS AND CREDIT COOPERATIVE
8) BLAO - BAGGAK TI DAYA DEVELOPMENT COOPERATIVE

9) BMAN - BONBONON FARMERS AGRARIAN REFORM MPC-
MANJUYOD BRANCH

10) BPAG - BACLAY MULTI-PURPOSE COOPERATIVE - PAGADIAN
CITY

11) BSIA - BONBONON FARMERS MULTI-PURPOSE COOPERATIVE-
SIATON

12) CCAD - CADIZ CITY CREDIT COOPERATIVE ( C4)

13) CCAL - CAMARINES SUR MPC - CALABANGA

14) CCAR - CARMEN MULTI PURPOSE COOPERATIVE-BOHOL

15) CDAE - CAMARINES NORTE DEV'T COOP- DAET

16) DDIL - DEPARTMENT OF AGRARIAN REFORM MULTI-PURPOSE
COOPERATIVE

17) DOMO - DAVAO DE ORO SAVINGS AND CREDIT COOPERATIVE
18) DPIL - DEL ROSARIO MULTI-PURPOSE COOPERATIVE

19) GCAB - GO QUIRINIANS SAVINGS AND CREDIT COOPERATIVE
20) HSAN - HACIENDA MARIA PRIMARY MULTI-PURPOSE
COOPERATIVE

21) HTUB - BOL-ANON SAVINGS AND CREDIT COOPERATIVE
(FORMERLY HATDANNAY-TUBIGON)

22) KSIO - KAUSWAGAN AGRARIAN REFORM BENEFICIARIES-MPC
23) LCAP - LABO PROGRESSIVE MULTI PURPOSE COOPERATIVE-
CAPALONGA BRANCH

24) LLIG - LACE MULTI-PURPOSE COOPERATIVE

25) LNAV - LICO AGRARIAN REFORM COOPERATIVE

26) LPAN - LABO PROGRESSIVE MULTI PURPOSE COOPERATIVE
27) LRIZ - LA LIBERTAD AGRARIAN REFORM BENEFICIARIES MPC-
RIZAL

28) MBAY - MILLENNIAL CREDIT COOPERATIVE - BAYUGAN

29) MCAL - MSU-IIT NATIONAL MULTI-PURPOSE COOPERATIVE-
CALUMPANG BRANCH

30) MNET - NATCCO NETWORK - MICOOP EMPLOYEES

31) MPAG - MSU-IIT NATIONAL MULTI-PURPOSE COOPERATIVE-
PAGADIAN BRANCH

32) MPED - MSU-IIT NATIONAL MULTI-PURPOSE COOPERATIVE-SAN
PEDRO, DAVAO CITY BRANCH

33) MPIN - MANGUYANG AGRARIAN REFORM BENEFICIARIES
COOPERATIVE

34) NCAN - NORTHERN QUEZON SAVINGS AND CREDIT
COOPERATIVE

35) NEDC - NEDC (NATCCO NETWORK SUBSIDIARY)

36) NEMP - NATCCO NETWORK EMPLOYEES

37) NKOR - NDMU MULTI-PURPOSE COOPERATIVE

38) NMBA - INCORPORATOR

39) NMBA - NMBA - NATCCO MBAI INCORPORATORS &
BOT/OFFICERS AND STAFFS

40) NNAB - NABUA DEV MULTI-PURPOSE COOPERATIVE

41) NNET - NATCCO NETWORK BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND
OFFICERS

42) PBAM - PINGKIAN COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT COOPERATIVE
43) PMAM - PAYOMPON DEVELOPMENT COOPERATIVE

44) PSIP - PILI MARKET DEVELOPMENT COOPERATIVE - SIPOCOT




BRANCH

45) PTAC - PERPETUAL HELP MULTI-PURPOSE COOPERATIVE or
PHCCI-MPC Tacloban

46) SARG - SANDIGAN SAVINGS AND CREDIT COOPERATIVE

47) SCOT - STA. CRUZ MULTI-PURPOSE COOPERATIVE - SATELLITE
48) SHIM - SOUTHERN NEGROS AGRARIAN REFORM COOPERATIVE
49) SMAA - STA. CRUZ MULTI-PURPOSE COOPERATIVE-MAASIM
50) SMAL - STA. CRUZ MULTI-PURPOSE COOPERATIVE - MALANDAG
BRANCH

51) SMAR - SPRINGSIDE IRRIGATOR""S AND FARMERS AGRARIAN
REFORM BENEFICIARIES MULTU-PURPOSE COOPERATIVE

52) SMAS - SAN RAMON MULTI-PURPOSE COOPERATIVE

53) SPOB - STA. CRUZ SAVINGS & DEVELOPMENT COOPERATIVE
54) SPUE - SRT PUERTO PRINCESA COOPERATIVE OF PALAWAN
MULTI-PURPOSE COOPERATIVE

55) SSAT - SPRINGSIDE "ARB"S" IRRIGATORS & FARMERS MPC -
SATELLITE

56) SSOR - SALVACION FARMERS DEVELOPMENT COOPERATIVE-
SORSOGON

57) STAN - SAMAHANG MAGSASAKA NG BARANGAY STA. MARIA
AGRARIAN REFORM COOPERATIVE

58) STUP - SARANGANI MULTI PURPOSE COOPERATIVE- TUPI

59) TBOA - TANIKALA NG PAGKAKAISA MULTI-PURPOSE
COOPERATIVE

60) TGUM - TAYABAS COMMUNITY MULTI-PURPOSE COOPERATIVE
61) TMAM - TUMALALUD FARMERS MULTI-PURPOSE COOPERATIVE
62) ZIME - ZAMBOANGA SIBUGAY CREDIT COOPERATIVE

63) ZSIN - ZANORTE COMMUNITY CREDIT COOPERATIVE

43. YAMIT, JAQUILINE M. AMALI - ALIPAO MULTI-PURPOSE COOPERATIVE
44. YUGO, YANI M. PERSONAL MEMBERSHIP
45. AUXTERO, ARJELIE S PERSONAL MEMBERSHIP
46. BAUTISTA, PEDRO JR C PERSONAL MEMBERSHIP
47. CABATUANDO, LEO L PERSONAL MEMBERSHIP
48. DE ROBLES, ELSIE C PERSONAL MEMBERSHIP
49. DELA TORRE, JINKY S PERSONAL MEMBERSHIP
50. EBONA, MARY ANN L PERSONAL MEMBERSHIP
51. LALIC, ROGET DA PERSONAL MEMBERSHIP
52. MARCENO, RENANTE F PERSONAL MEMBERSHIP
53. NICOLAS, SALVACION P PERSONAL MEMBERSHIP
54. QUIDILLA, MARIA JASMINE J PERSONAL MEMBERSHIP
55. SANGGO, RONALDO P PERSONAL MEMBERSHIP
56. SATUR, SHEILA MARIE D PERSONAL MEMBERSHIP
57. SUATENGCO, OLGA D PERSONAL MEMBERSHIP
58. TEJADA, JEROME S PERSONAL MEMBERSHIP
59. TORERO, RYAN JIM M PERSONAL MEMBERSHIP

The first part of the program of the 11" Annual Meeting was finished earlier than the scheduled

time.

The Chairperson, Ms. Evelia Tizon asked the body if it is possible to start the proper Annual
Meeting at 10:30 AM instead of the 1:00 PM as circulated in the previous notice.




With this, the Chairperson instructed the Management to create a poll for the members for
those who will be in favor to suspend the rule to start the meeting.

The poll then resulted in 56,985 members who were in favor to continue to proceed with the
annual meeting at 10:44 o’clock in the morning which was 85% of the 67, 112 total members.

Call to Order

The Chairperson, Evelia Tizon called the 11 Annual Meeting to order at 10:44 o’clock in the
morning.

Proof of Due Notice, Roll Call, and Determination of the Quorum

The Secretary, Mildred Cerezo certified the following:

e Notice of the 11th Annual Meeting of the NATCCO MBAI was sent on May 7th, 2022 to all
the members via email and was uploaded on the NATCCO MBAI website.
The number of active members as of December 31, 2021, was finalized on May 5th, 2022.
The release of letters to partner cooperatives asking them to appoint official
representatives was on March 1, 2022.

e The deadline for the acceptance of the official representative was disseminated and set on
April 30, 2022.
On May 5, the total number of proxy votes for each Representative was then finalized.
And the Nomination Committee validated the completeness of membership count and
proxy votes on May 5, 2022.

The NATCCO MBAI has a total of 67, 112 members as of December 31, 2021, with 61
representatives in attendance carrying 63,565 proxy votes or 95%.

The Secretary then certified the existence of a quorum.

Approval of the Agenda
Chairperson Evelia Tizon presented the Agenda and asked the approval from the assembly.

Representative Angel Garcia Jr. of Taloy Farmers MPC moved for the approval of the agenda,
severally seconded. There being no objection, the motion was approved.

Annual Meeting Resolution No. 01-2022
Resolution approving the agenda of 2022 Annual Meeting as follows:

i. Call to order

ii. Proof of Due Notice, Roll Call, and Determination of the Quorum

iii. Approval of the Agenda

iv. Considerations of the Minutes of the 2021 Annual Meeting dated May 25,
2021



V. Business arising from the Minutes of the 202 1Annual Meeting dated May
25, 2021
Vi. Annual Reports
a. Chairperson’s Report
b. President’s Report
c. Treasurer’s Report
-2021 Audited Financial Statement
vii. New Business
A. Presentation of the 2022 Annual Plans and Budget
B. Appointment of 2022 External Auditor

viii. Election
ix. Other Matters
X. Adjournment

The votes casted and received on the approval of the agenda with voting rights are as follows:

Total Voting Total Votes Votes in Favor | Invalid Votes Abstain
Members/Proxy Casted

52,259 52,259 52,259 0 0

Consideration of the Minutes of Previous Annual Meetings
A. Minutes of May 25, 2021, 10th Annual Meeting

The Chairperson, Evelia Tizon presented the copies of the Minutes that was sent in advance to
the members.

Representative Romenito Pader of Bayanihan Hundred Islands Agrarian Reform Cooperative
moved to dispense with the reading of the Minutes of May 25, 2021, 10" Annual Meeting which
was seconded by Jeremias Colangoy Jr. There being no objections, the motion was approved.

After the reading and no correction needed, Representative Romenito Pader of Bayanihan
Hundred Islands Agrarian Reform Cooperative moved for the approval of the May 25" 2021
Annual Meeting, which was seconded by Representative Nerissa Lucena of Panay Agrarian Reform
Cooperative. There being no objection, the motion was approved.

Annual Meeting Resolution No. 2-2022.
Resolution, approving the Minutes of May 25, 2021, 10'" Annual Meeting of the NATCCO
MBAI.



The votes casted and received on the approval of the Minutes of May 25, 2021 Annual Meeting:

Total Voting Total Votes Votes in Favor | Invalid Votes Abstentions
Members Casted
present and by
proxy
52,259 52,259 52,259 0 0

Business Arising from the Minutes:

No business arising discussed from the minutes.

Presentation of Reports
A. Chairperson’s Report on Board of Trustees’ Resolutions and Actions Taken for the year 2021

The Chairperson, Evelia Tizon turned over the Chairmanship to Vice-Chairperson Ellen Pastores
and reported the 2021 Board of Trustee resolutions as follows:

Resolution Board Resolution

No.

1 Resolution, approving the Committee Charter of the Nomination
Committee.

4 Resolution, approving the Election Code for 2021 as revised.

5 Resolution to approve the Code of Conduct of the NATCCO MBAI.

10 Resolution approving the Board Charter as part of the internal control
system

11 Resolution approving the Board Diversity Policy

12 Resolution approving the Enterprise Risk Management Policy (ERM)

13 Resolution approving the Committee Evaluation Form

14 Resolution approving the policy on giving collection fees to partners

16 Resolution, approving the 2020 Audited Financial Statement of NATCCO
MBAI.

26 Resolution approving the recommendation of the Audit Committee to
reappoint Banaria Banaria as the External Auditor for 2021

38 Resolution, approving the 2021 Balance Score Card and Mid-Year Catch Up
plan of the NATCCO MBAI




40 Resolution, requiring Trustee Members to provide written disclosure of their
board membership with cooperatives and other organization to the
Management within 15 calendar days

41 Resolution, approving the Nomination Committee Revised Charter

46 Resolution, approving the Php336,000 budget allocated to system revision
and modification of NMBAL.

51 Resolution approving the Microjuan Program for the NMBAI members

52 Resolution approving the revised Election Code

53 Resolution approving the revised Related Party Transaction Policy (RPT),

Vendor & Supplier Conflict of Interest Disclosure Form and Business &
Personal Affiliation Disclosure Form

54 Resolution approving the New Policy for Reinsurance Partnership

55 Resolution approving the P150,000 budget for social media management
with PhilipRad

56 Resolution approving the Data Privacy Policy

57 Resolution approving the MIS Committee Charter

58 Resolution approving the Anti-Fraud Policy of NMBAI

59 Resolution approving the NMBAI Officers Job Descriptions: 1. President 2.
Secretary 3. Treasurer 4. Auditor

62 Resolution approving the 2022 Plans and Budget of NMBAI.

The Vice-Chairperson, Ellen Pastores, being the presiding officer asked if there was any question,
on the report presented by the Chairperson.

After the presentation, Representative Romenito Pader of Hundred Islands Agrarian Reform
Cooperative moved for the acceptance and confirmation of all the Board Resolutions during the
11 Annual Meeting held on May 31, 2022. The motion was seconded by Representative Angel
Garcia of Taloy Farmers MPC. There being no objection, the motion was approved.

Annual Meeting Resolution No. 3-2022
Resolution, accepting the 2021 Report of the Chairperson and confirming Board of Trustees
Resolutions and the Actions Taken on the 2021 Resolutions.

The votes casted and received on the acceptance and confirmation of 2021 of the Board
BOT Resolutions:

Total Voting Total Votes Votes in Favor | Invalid Votes Abstentions
Members Casted
present and by
proxy
52,259 52,259 52,259 0 0




B. President’s Report

Chairperson Evelia Tizon presided over the meeting.
The President, Minerva G. Tejada presented her report.

Representative Angel Garcia of Taloy Farmers MPC moved for the acceptance of the report
presented which was seconded severally. There being no objection, the motion was approved.

Annual Meeting Resolution No. 4-2022
Resolution to accept the report of the President as presented.

The votes casted and received on the acceptance of the President’s Report:

Total Voting Total Votes Votes in Favor | Invalid Votes Abstentions
Members Casted
present and by
proxy
52,259 52,259 52,259 0 0

A recess was declared at 12:05 o’clock in the afternoon.

The meeting then resumed at 1:00 o’clock in the afternoon.

C. Treasurer’s Report

Ms. Zorahayda Cafirma presented the Treasurer’s report and the Audited FS.

Representative Donatilla Tejada of the MICOOP Group moved for the acceptance of the report
presented, seconded severally. There being no objection, the motion was approved.

Annual Meeting Resolution No. 5-2022
Resolution to accept the Treasurer’s Report and the 2021 Audited Financial Statement.

The votes casted and received on the acceptance of the Treasurer’s Report and 2021

VII.

Audited FS:
Total Voting Total Votes Votes in Favor | Invalid Votes Abstentions
Members Casted
present and by
proxy
52,259 52,259 52,259 0 0

New Business




A. 2022 Annual Plans & Budget
President Minerva G. Tejada presented the NATCCO MBAI Annual Plans and Budget for 2022.

Representative Angel Garcia of Taloy Farmers MPC moved for the acceptance of the report
presented, seconded severally. There being no objection, the motion was approved.

Also, Representative Romenito Pader of Hundred Islands Agrarian Reform moved for the approval
of the 2022 Annual Plans and Budget of the NMBAI, which was seconded severally.

Annual Meeting Resolution No. 6-2022
Resolution, for the approval of the 2022 Annual Plans and Budget of the NATCCO MBAI

The votes casted and received on the acceptance of the 2022 Annual Plans and Budget:

Total Voting Total Votes Votes in Favor | Invalid Votes Abstentions
Members Casted
present and by
proxy
52,259 52,259 52,259 0 0

B. Appointment of the External Auditor for 2022

The Chairperson, Evelia Tizon presented Aquino Mata Calica & Associates as the External Auditor
which was recommended by the Audit Committee for NATCCO MBAI in 2022.

After due deliberations, Representative Nicolas Salvacion of MICOOP Group moved for the
approval of the recommendation appointing Aquino Mata Calica & Associates as the External
Auditor for 2022 which was seconded by Richard Amaga of Bacbacan Multipurpose Cooperative.
There being no objection, the motion was approved.

Annual Meeting Resolution No. 7-2022
Resolution, appointing Aquino Mata Calica & Associates as the External Auditor of the
NATCCO MBAI for 2022.

The votes casted and received on the approval of the external auditor:

Total Voting Total Votes Votes in Favor | Invalid Votes Abstentions
Members Casted
present and by
proxy
52,259 52,259 52,259 0 0




VII.

Election

Trustee Jupiter Bonilla presented the Nomination Committee Report.

Representative Romenito Pader of the Bayanihan Hundred Islands Agrarian Reform Cooperative

moved for the acceptance of the report presented, seconded by Richard Amaga of Bacbacan
Multipurpose Cooperative. There being no objection, the motion was approved.

Resolution to accept the report of Nomination Committee.

Annual Meeting Resolution No. 8-2022

Total Voting Total Votes Votes in Favor | Invalid Votes Abstentions
Members Casted
present and by
proxy
52,259 52,259 52,259 0
Election followed.
Results of the election were then presented as follows:
NUMBER OF REPRESENTATIVES PROXY VOTES
NO. OF PRESENT: 61 63,565
NO. OF ABSENT: 7 3,547
Attendees Total: 68 67,112
TOTAL FOR: BALLOTS PROXY VOTES
NO. OF VALID VOTES: 48 52,259
NO. OF INVALID VOTES: 12 9,258
NO. OF ABSENT: 7 5,593
PRESENT BUT DID NOT VOTE: 1 2
E-BALLOT Total: 60 67,112




REPS. VOTED THRU GOOGLE FORM

NO. OF VALID VOTES: 46
NO. OF INVALID VOTES: 12
E-BALLOT Total: 58

NO.
NO.

REPS. VOTED THRU FACEBOOK MSGR
OF VALID VOTES: 1
OF INVALID VOTES:

E-BALLOT Total: 1

NO.
NO.

REPS. VOTED THRU TEXT
OF VALID VOTES: 1
OF INVALID VOTES:

E-BALLOT Total: 1

PRESENT BUT DID NOT VOTE

NO.

OF VALID VOTES: 1

E-BALLOT Total: 60

Result of Election on Regular Trustee:

Name of Candidates

Votes In Favor

Total Voting Members
Present and By Proxy

52,259

Angel Garcia Jr.

52,259

52,259

Romeo Magdaong

52,259

Result of Election on Independent Trustee:

Total Voting Members
Present and By Proxy

Name of Candidates

Votes In Favor

52,259 Adolfo A. Ibanez 52,259

52,259 Ryan Arthur DG. Padilla 52,259
Name Number of Votes | Term
Angel Garcia Jr — Regular Trustee 52,259 3 years (2022-

2025)

Romeo Magdaong — Regular 52,259 3 years (2022-
Trustee 2025)
Adolfo A. Ibanez — Independent 52,259 1 year
Trustee




IX.

Ryan Arthur DG. Padilla — 52,259

1 year
Independent Trustee

Adjournment

There having no more business at hand, Representative Romenito Pader of Bayanihan
Hundred Islands Agrarian Reform moved for the adjournment of the 2021 10" Annual
Meeting, seconded by Ryan Boron of Katilingbanong Programa sa Maayong Panglawas —
Kinaugalingong Paningkamot MPC. There being no objection, the motion was approved.

Chairperson Evelia Tizon adjourned the 11" NATCCO MBAI Annual Meeting at 2:34 o’clock in
the afternoon.

Prepared by: Attested by:

Evelia Bardos - Tizon
Chairperson

MHdred C. Cerezo
Board Secretary
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BOARD AND MANAGEMENT REPORT

The year 2027 was all abowl enhencing the members’ prolechon throgagh
muCrorsurance accessik by, &nd ndeed, Lhat was whal the gssocialbion did 2022 was
Lhe year ywhere the whole MATOCO MEBAD leamy, o the Boardd of Troslecy,

and all employees reviewed ns pazl yeas' perlarmance and came up wilh beller
pHanz, premducls amnd services 1o ensure thal the migiinsurance progucls are readily
gvalabla and very sasy Lo avail.

2022 was anolher opparlummy Lo irmprowe. || owas Lhe year thal we slarled gelling back
Ler normdl andd nee lonoger (ear Lhe COVYID 19 1L waz Lhe wear we all ziood ap and
conunued Lhe eorney, packed up ourselyes along walh oor farmalies and [rends, and
Lok Lhan path agaim. The palh woseards resiliency and positivity that will all lead to
achievement of our geals.

This ywear, we ok onoa tbigoer challenge. The challenges w step up andd be ready (or
the emerging and ever channg marke), of mucrrinsurance, Thiz lime, we ara more
determined Lo gerye our rmamibars wilh ulmost sinceny and compmssion, backed
wilh Betier krowledge on arvithing related Lo thae mcdaslng ancd corporale gowvernance,
ard roosl imporkanthy, e will ancd haarl o zes the Mernbers” family prolecisd willy
insarance polices rom MATOCD MEAL.

R 2022 ACCOMPLISHMENTS.

CONFORMANCE ROLES

Accountability

The Boward of Trustess iz manclaled (G reporl W s members and stakehelders
regularly anmually, throogh the annual Mesting, Qn W of Lthis, all pohces and
gclions of Lhe Board and Management gre aploaded in the MATOCD RMEAI
webxsnle for gasy access of the rmernbers, anylime during vhe year,

The Bvard of Trystes: also ansuared comphance of the azssooalion leoal and
requlauory reguirarmertg. This ingudes opergling watbun the mdusiry standards
bras SEQUIRD and ASEAN Corporale Qovarnance Scorscard] ialos).



Ragular mopnilonmg and soperdisign of axgoulve perfonmancs veas Jdone
guarterly by vhe Beand angd rmoonlhly by e Execuyie Cormrmilies. Thiz praglics
sushioned the impacl of wooah bmes through urmely correciive aclions on
whalever shoryfalls seemduynma the roonlbly opeiation,

PERFORMANCE ROLES

Shrategy is at Lhe core of the Board of Troslees” dules and responztalmss and
this is guided by the 7 year {2019 developrment plan of HATCCO MBAL
Anchored on our goyvernance charter fvision, mussion, values) and iy siralegy
rovps, Lhe Board rmamlained the ergd goal oy tweaked the siraleagy execalnn,
Brased on the dicrates of Lhe changing ames,

Policy making
The Board sels Lha Lone al Lthe Lop through s approved poloes. The
Cormmutlezs galbly aded the Board in Lhe [ormulation and rewesy of polces, as

Board Charter
Successicn Planning Pclicy
koney Laundermg and Terrarisrm Financing Preyenlion Program

Investment Policy

5 Claims Settlement Policy
Employee Benefits Policy
Compensaticn Policy
Recruitment Policy
Folizy Review Commilles Chaler
Data Privacy Pclicy



In 20221, the Board of Trustess paszed Lha [Dllowing Board Reselulions:
BOARD RESO# 2022 BOARD RESOLUTION
Resolution #1 Fasolution, approving the revizsed Planz andd Buclget [or 2022

Fasolulizn wormerge Lha following Comirmiiilees:
Resolution #2 oo angd NOMOOM as Corporale Governancs Corm il L,
and Audiy, RFT & BROC a5 Auchl Comrmilgas

_ Rasolutiomn ko omeluode (he capacily bulding m the Board of
Resclution #3

Resolution #4 Rasolutjon, approving Lhe Meve Salary Structore {or 2022

Rasolution @ authonge 00 Lo designate a ragular gosies
] who is not a member of the committee or the President to
Resoclution #5 . ) _
jir L perigrrmance of Lhe nermimalion unctions ooe

legal infirmities

RFasolatizn W craals a MAaTCOO Parinership Comrmin Les

Cornposing the lolowing mermbers.

- Chairperson Evelia Tizon Chair of the Commi
Resolution #6 cIndepergent Trustea Ryan arlbur Padilla

cIngdepaengdent Trysiee ALy Sdollo |[baneg  Chair of the

Committee

- President Minerva Tejada

) Resobavion gpproving Lhe Golden Lils Insurance Plan of
Resoclution #7

_ Resolution approving Lhe cor pror ale cveaveays [on 2022
Resclution #8 ]
Annual General Meeting

_ Rezolulion, approving Lhe additional PLSR mvesiment L
Resolution #29

Rasolugion o amend Invesiment Polcy 51 10 slale as

Resolution #10 “Excess armounl can be mvesled w Lhe repulatls
cial banks"
Resolution #11 Fesolavior w ransier P20 Irom Land Banlk v BP,



Resolution #12

Resclution #13

Resolution #14

Resolution #15

Resclution #16

Resclution #17

Resclution #18

Resclution #19

Resolution #20

Resolution #21

Resolution, authorizing Vice Chairperson Ellen Pastores as
Lhe gfficial represenialne 10 Rrmans aonoal Masimng

Razoluticn approving Lhe 2021 Audited Financial Statement
of the NATCCO MBALL

Resolution gpproving the Compernsalion Package of the
CEO and CCO.

Rasolution W direct Lhe Parlpership Cormrniliee o oconducl a
prreparalony mesung on June 250, 2072, arvd Lo consider the

» Honerany rmernbership ol MAaToC O
- Financial matters with NATCCO
- And other matters needed

Rasolution W direcl, the Manaogemenl Lo engage m an
g luary consullant regarding Lhe Solden Lile Insurance

Frasoloicm ke direct Lhe President ezl g lelal of P15
Lirme deposil Lo arvyy of Lha Tollowing bhanks: RCBC, Ching
Bank, and PNB.

Frasolutjomn i allowe Presiclent Minsrya Tajada w open an
aecounl @ny of Lthe follownmg banks RCBC, China Bank, or
FHE wilth the [ollowing sels of signalonss:

Treasurer Zorahayda Cafirma

Chairperson Ellen Pastores

President Minerva Tejada
Trustee Rome Magdaong

Razoluion o approva Lhe Polioy on Succession Planning

Fasolution W approwve Lhe gulpyl recommendaticns by the
RIMANSI in the mid year planning

Resoclution to conduct a 2 day action planning.



Resolution #22

Resoclution #23

Resolution #24

Resolution #25

Resolution #26

Resclution #27

Resclution #28

Resolution #29

Resolution #30

Resclution #31

Resoclution #32

Resoclution #33

Resolution #34

Rasolution Lo coordinale wilh BMS Lhe ascounting syslem
accordance with IFRS17

Rasolution, President 1z [aclilale the Lakbay Aral with CARE

Rasolutjon o apply (or regular membearship walh BIMar s,
Razolugjon o renew msrmbership with 1ICMIF.

Resolutizn W authornge President Minsrva Tejada Lo enler
irte & contract wath Agquing Malg Calica & Awzsooations gs
External Auditer for 2022,

RFasolatiom v dirscy the President w prepare plang (or Ltha
foryrm ol Lhe Baes Managers of MECCOR

Frasolujom ke deler the decision of vhe Board Lo adopl Lha
Tglclen Lile [nzurance Produot sand rmmechgtehy recall the
apphcation lor apporoval e the [nsurance Corm minssion.

RFasolutiom W direcl, the Mangoemenl Lo provide Lhe
mirithly irnerest moorme o Lhe NMBAL mvestments

Fasolution w adopt the ouliput of the 2322 2025 Annualized
Developrmenl Plan of Lthe NMESL

Razolution Lo diregl, FRD Commitlees W drall a pohicy on
notification of Coop:s [tr Clairms ard Lo suudy howe W address
Lhe awareness 1o clairn benehls thal are fooazed on tha
benzhicianes ingigdmg Lthe raleaze of Lhae Abolayarn i Lhe

RFasolution W direct Lhe o0 Lo review Lhe exzling Aol
Fraud Policy and to include an anti fraud policy on the
signatures of claimants.

Reasolution w direct the Prezsident Lo communicate wilh
NATCCO regarding a follow up meeting with NATCCO
NMBAI Partnership.

Rasolaiizn w estatzlish the stardard hours of meetings,
thereafter Vice Thairpersor Ellen Pastores mored 1ol the



Resclution #35

Resolution #36

Resclution #37

Resclution #38

Resolution #39

Resclution #40

Resolution #41

Resolution #42

Resolution #43

Resclution #44

slarvdard hoors of oeeLlmgs @ L5 masrmurm bowrs (or
reqgular board meebings and 2 Lo & masmum boors for
committee meetings.

RFazolutinn Lo direcl the President L recommend
irnplemenurg rgles w adopy the 1 5 policy of RIMANSI

Rezolution o direct Lhe MIS Commutlees Lo recarmmernd an
ARL andd verronst linanomg rmeonmiloaninyg sysiam o the
approval of the Board

Resolution to approve the Money Laundering and

Terrorsrm Financing Prevenlion Proogram (MTPP) I NRMBAL

RFasolution W approwve Lhe gimanded job descriprioms of the
Fremclant, Secrelary, Treasurer, and dudilor.

Fazalutizn Lo approree Lhe propcesed nvestment allocations
Ery b Irveslrment Cormrnilles,

Fazolutjon o adop, propossd product narmes of M0 Bal
effective January 1Ist, 2023.

1. NMBAI Planado (BLIP only)

Z. NMMBA] ProlekLads {BLIP = TRD}

3. NMBAI Panatag (BLIP + HIB)

4. NMBAI Sigurado (BLIP + HIB + TPD)

5. MMBAI Yarmang Proteklado JCLIFY

Resclution o direcl the ExeCorm Lo discozss and evaluats Lhe
ddralt Lhe follewineg pohcess of the POLREY Cormrnilles gand 1o
clecide whal acuon o Lake by Lhe Board nex), mealing:
Recruitment Policy and Campensguon Folicy

Reasolavion w ermingie Lthe Adhos Comimillee of MATOCD
NMBAI Partnership.

Rasolgtion W conlinm the release of cash qill on Movamibser

Prazolution Lo conlirrm the approval of Policy on 1
Sellement Polcy gnd s Annexss.



Resolution #45

Resolution #46

Resclution #47

Resolution #48

Resolution #49

Resolution #50

Resolution #51

Resolution #52

Resoclution #53

Rasolution W approve Lhe Policy oncalernalive Dispole
Resclution Mechanism

Rasolutjomn Lo approve Lhe Bavised Policy an Becrailrment

S2022EBT. Resoliglicm 1oy reciuce Lhe O LIP Clamrys allocayion

Rasolugjion o approws the MMEBAL partnership valth RIRMAMEI
as a distributor o Lhe Followmeg producls.
1. Golden Insurance Plan
Life Products

Fire Insurance

Fidelity Guarantee

Motor Car Insurance

Melcarey, Securiiss, Payroll Robherny
3. Health Care Management

Fasolatizn W approwve Lhe Reyvized Ernploves Benelitzs Pohoy

Frasolutjon 1o approws Lhe Tranznory Maasanes (or Lha
Revised Employee Benefits

Resolution to hold a face face Annual Meeting in 2023,
Reazolujemn i approve 1the Revijsed 20232 Plans and Budoel

RFasolution, RIMAMNS] az Broand perlormanee eyvaloator (or



TTH ANNUAL

AM Resolution #1

AM Resolution #2

AM Resolution #3

AM Resolution #4

AM Resolution #5

AM Resolution #6

2022 AM RESOLUTION

RescluLian gpproving Lhe agenda ol 2022 Annual
klaaling as lollouws:
i. Call to order

i Prool of Dye Mok, Roll Call, and Deterrmimaticn of Lhe

iil. Approval of the Agenda
iv. Considerations of the Minutes of the 2021 Annual
Meeting dated May 25, 2021
w. Busmess arizmgg oo Lhe Minoles of the 202 1 Annua|
Meeting dated May 25, 2021
vi. Annual Reports
a. Chairperson’s Report
b. President’s Report
c. Treasurer's Report
2021 audited Financgial Slaleme
vii. New Business
A, Presenlalion of the 2022 Anrmal Plans ard Budoesl
E. appomtrinent of 2022 External Audilor
viii. Election
ix. Other Matters

x. Adjournment

Resoluian, approving the Minuies of kMay 25 2021, 100h
Annual Meeting of the NATCCO MBAI

Rezoluljion, accepting the 2027 Repart, of Ltha Chanperson
and conbirming Board of Trustess Resolulions and the
Actions Taken on Lhe 2021 Resciulions,

Rasolaiorn W accaepl Lhe repor of Lhe Presidenl as

Razoluljion o agcepl L he Treasarer's Repart and Lhe 2021
Audited Financial Statement.

ReasaluLion, lar the approval of vhe 2022 anngal Plars ard
Budgel of 1the NATCCD MEAI



Rasolutizn, appaointng Agquing Mata Calice & Assooiales as
Lhe Exlernal &udilor of the MATCCD Bl (or 2022,

AM Resolution #7

] Fasclutican 1o accepl Lhe repxort of Nominaticn
AM Resolution #8 )
Committee,

ISSUED POLICIES

, we issued policies for the Basic Lile [nsurance Plan {BLIF] with a Lotal
sum assured of P1,965.300,000.00. Thas 1z &% hjghar than 2020 35,510 iscuey] policjes.

ASSURED
156,940,000
135,420,000
138,930,000
107,350,000
166,850,000
170,560,000
199,590,000
168,130,000
185,360,000
174,160,000
177,110,000
184,830,000

| 1,965,300,000




For Credit Life Insgrance Plan [CLIPY, we iszged policies with a total loan
amount of P2,559,510,509.00. Thas 1z T1% higher than last year's P2 308, 2060, Z6a. 00

ASSURED
158,707,915
167,477,101
174,174,264
156,363,289
256,047,308
216,461,372
255,547,636
183,720,744

214,179,275
212,586,657
270,482,867
253,762,081

2,559,510,509

RELEASED CLAIM BENEFITS

The MATOCD MHMBAl: prormuse s W ormake sure that the Iinancal benelis Tor our
rnembers are released as soon as possible, gnd his s nol jusl a mere proomess, o wa
rovebE sure i hal e derer. Walh Lhe increased rgm bar of Mambers insured, there was

ricraaze i Lhe number of death clairms, For 2022, & tolal of death claims
wwere proceszec] and we relegoed wlal Banafis of P20,506,315.00

TOTAL AMOUNT OF BENEFITS

D MONTH RELEASED




The Insurance Somrisson (10] regoires all MEB&z w0 relegse the bene(ns witban 10
s ki days, bol For our Associalion, vee were abile Lo relegse 98% or 54 claimsg wilhin
werp king days. 79% or @13 of Lhern were released withun Lwenity four hours (24) from
ceipl of cormplels docaments. Hime (3 el e clarms veere Trom Lhe Hospial Incorme
Bernelil ncder, walhe a Lelal lying benelil of PhPIZ 100000, These are memibers Lhal were
Fospmahged and were able Lo receive bene (s bazed on their avanlsd HIB package and
rumiber of days of hospial conlinermeni.

Consiskenlly, cardiovasoular dissaze is sbll the number one cause of dealh, lollovwed
By respmatory diseasa, In 2021 COVIDH 19 was the 3 cavse of chealh, Lol e 2022, 0 T2

CAUSE OF DEATH

CARDIOVASCULAR

RESPIRATORY

ACCIDENT
KIDNEY DISEASE

LIVER FAILURE
HYPERTENSION
DIABETES
ACUTE LIVER

DIGESTIVE SYSTEM




Y Cormabrirralions of @i other Causes of dealfr

For Lhe lazl live {5) years, MATOCD MEBAI posted Lhe ollovang dealb clames.

13,380,829 16,537,960 17,197,006 20,597,691 20,506,315

NEW RIDERS FOR BASK LIFE INSURANCE PLAN

FATCCO MMBA| conmstently put the waellare of Lhe pMernbers on wp prionly. Offsnng
relevanl producls Lhat weould anseesr Lhe needs of Lhe Memnbers s owhal we aspire Lo,

In Sepmember 2020, the Insurance Cormrmssinn has approved our regues) for mogro
riddears Lhal can be allached 1o our exisung Basie Lile Insurancs Prodyc



Total angd Permanent Disability (TFD} Rkcer, whersm yath a wery roarmal
additional premium, TPD benefit will e givan 1o the Insured Maember who
Becormes wowally disablad by bodily irpury or disegse andd i thereby preventaed
from engaging m arry eeou palign lor compensalion or prelil,

Hospital Income Benefit {(HIB), also with minirnal godchilional premigm, the
Hogpital Ingorme Beneliv spegiiied o the Policy shall e paidd w lhe Insored
Pelezrmibaer for each day of hozpial conlinemenl, ifany, [or a maamom of 30 days

These two (2} micro riglers will delinmely give protechion @ Members, anc ougr
Association will prizess Lhe clawrns immedialely. YWe are hoping thal Lhe parkoer
conpe alves will slarl ollenng Lhese preddocls v e rmemibers.

Iry 2021, we lavnched these Lwo (2] prodact riders o aur pariner cooperalives, and at
the end of 2022, nine (21 panner cocperalives ae alieacly availling Lthe reege BLIP
packagez with TPDand HIE riders, & Lotal of 8392 raembers avaled of Lhase new BLIP
packages, wilh higher sum assored or clain beneils

LAKBAY MALASAKIT PROGRAM

To sUpporl the Assooialion’s messicn gand our cors valyss of Inlegrity, Cormpassion,
Excellance and Team Wik, we hawve launched (he Lakbay Malasakit Program

iry 2020 I anmes Lo help our memibers by condocbimg diflerern, ool serace aoiaes.
The aclyities such az medical & dental missions, greng of relial goods Lo dizasier
allecled Mernberz, l2armng session: abouy msurance, bealth and weallh, and
livelibped, LMF s an avenue Lo enrich Lhe relatucnship of MATOOD MBEAL o jLs
Plrmbers and therr Comrgry.

In 2022, LMP has brogghl webinar series o our members and partner cooperatives.
We ware abile v hold six [B) sessiconz wilh wopes such as imancgial literacy, mental
Feealth, hle maarance 100, and Lhe power of socm] media in markelng. s, we
celabrated Christmas wilh the  pariner cooperalives’ employees  wirioglly ksl
December 15, 2022,



CERTIFICATE OF TAX EXEMPTION (CTE}

2022 was a tnarnphanl yedr lor HAT_OD MEBAL The Assovialion's applicalion {for CTE
wias approved. Thas privileges 1 not aulomatically grared e ME&s ke us, Byl we
rianaged 1o sabisly the singl regquirermanis of the Bursao of Internal Revenue [BIR).
Last July 6, 2022, Lthe BIF has relegsed our Cerlilicate of Tax exermpucnsg, with CTE Ma.

Q0024 NATCCO MBA] jz exampal Irom Income Tax eoly on the
leal leawinneg reve e Grorecepy.

Member's Contributions;
Premiums; and

Interest Income

This exempticn is valid for three (3} years.

ANNEX #R™ CTE: Valid from JULY 6, 2022 —
JULY 6, 2025

L oy
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ASSOCIATION (NATCOO MEAS INC
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TIN No 00028 5-To0-00
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MONEY LAUNDERING CERTIFICATE OF REGISTRATION

MATCCO MEAL szt like all clher insurance providers, 1z glse under Lhe regulations of

konery Launclering Coungil {ARLCEL Every tweg (21 years v are reguired L
rerewy our regisirabion aath AMLC as part of Lhe Insurance Cormmission [10]
requirements. Lasl February 17, 2022, the AMLC hag iszoed MATICOO MMBA| 17 AL

Poney Laundering Cerlilicate of Registralicn.

Polar cier, Our Associalion iy raguaired Lo report amy suspicogs Fansaclions Lhat may
or may nolL be direcly an aMLA Case &5 of Decarmber 31, 2022, there was no reported
AMLA transaction yet.

CERTIFICATE OF REGISTRATION

This I= o certify that WATCOD PAUTUAL BENEF TS ASSDCIATION, INC. has dudy comalied with the I
regisiration process of the Apt-fiorey Levssiermg Councl (ARMUC] For the purpose of wibmitiing Covered (&
B Sumpicicus Transsciion Reports purrusnt bo the anti-ddoney Bendening Act {Republic Act §160), x5 |
smerded, and It Revized implermenting Suiles and Regulations IE

This cerlBicalhiin bs insinsd LRt 1TTH iy il Fedcnacy JO2T = Phes CHy ool Pelldriila

dﬁ‘lﬂ;‘eﬁm dhaiEin

Exacubewe Liiresior

Cowind jond M. 200 T IR CALG




AMEMNDMENTS OF THE ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION AND BYLAWS

Wwilhe Lhee comiliroues change m the riucromsarn ance mcdgsiny an memibenrs insoance
recurernents, our aszociation has armended ks arlcles of Incorporalion and Bylaws
Lo ergurs thal we acldress these changes gnd efficiently gree mernbers Lthe night

products and

These two (2} dotarmenls have gune Lbrough siicl vahdation of Lhe [nearance
Cornmuzzien (1) and Secanbes of Exchanges Commission [SEC). Last January 31, 2022,
o regaest for amendmaents were approved and Lhe amendad cerulicales were
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ANNUAL CORFPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT {ACGR]

Qur roan regulatory body, the pswmance Commissicn {1C has ssued the Circular
Letter 2020 71 daled June 13, 2020, regarding the "Revised Code of Corporate
Geovernance for Ineyrgnoe Cormrnission Regulated Comp-anies”, ang our azsocigLicn i
manclaled 1 comply wilh Lhig annaal rapon,.

“The Code of Corpmorate Governance 5 niended (o orawe (e corporale
crever fagracae stanglardy of Insurance Cormrmssor Regulaied Cormparyies (1CRCs

g fewvel gt par vl i regeonal ard aglobal counterparls. The fates] G204
Orosrugatfon for Scororrpe Co opseration and Developrnent Principfes of
Corporale Qonerrrance, e acsocaiort of Sowibheast Asian Malions Corporais
Covernance Scorecerd, ard the Code of Curporate Governare for Putdcly
Lizled Comparies fsuedd by e Secuniies aod Eachange Corpremifssion [SECTH
weere psedd s Koy relapance mralerialean (he drafting of hus Code,”

Since 1022, HATCCO ME&] has been submmillmg by report andd gl relaved docurnenLs
re: ploaded in the MATOCO MEBAL websila,

ASEAH CORPORATE GOVERHANCE SCORECARD |ACGS)

The &LIEAM Corporgle Qowverngrde was  Jewveloperd  based  on inLermational
benchmarks such as the Drganizativon [er Economic oo operation and Development
{OECD), Principles of Corpmarane Sovernance, Lhe Internaticnal Corporate Governande
Mavwork Comporalion (100 Govaernancs Principles, as owell gs mdosiey
praclices lrorm ASEAMN and Lhe world], The ACGS iv a Lol used Le evalyale corporals
governgnee praciices. Endorsad by the ASEAM [inance mimslers n 2009, il was
designsd Lo help develop an milegrated capilal rmarkel [or (he region's Minancial
integration by 2015,

I is the pohcy of the Insurance Commuisscn o raise Lhe bar of corporals qover ngnice
in the insurance industry by adopling the corporale governgrae bes, praclices nthe
ASEaM region, Inits Ciroular Letler Ta 20132, 1he Insurance Cormrmission mandatecd the
adopian of &C05 e all ineyrgnce cormpaness and muldal benehls associbon {MBa)
grgeinng Lhe coversd cormpanies o develop their oompary websiles and Lher
responses 0o lhe 2005 guestionnare wilth supperting docorments.



The 005 covers live areas of the G2R/OECD Principles of Corparals Gover nange:
Rights of the Sharehclders
Equmatrle Treayrmert of Shareholdars
ale of Sharebolders in Corporale Governance
Disclosure and Transparency
Responsibilities of the Board

NATCCO MBAI’'s SCORE

Covered Year

Rights of Sharehclders

Equitable Treatment of
Shareholders

Roles of Stakeholders

Disclosure and
Transparency
Responsibkilities of the

and Penalty
TOTAL SCORE

This means our assooialion @ conlmuogsly yparadmeg ils corporals  gQovernances
praciices Lo alfectvely serve Lhe mempers and e ensare a steady flow of financial
SURETL 5 Lhat we can congistently delier our promises.

B.A.S.1.C MIS

Our Aszociabion s conumaoosy [ookang (or ways L irmproyes ourn pocesses, We knowe

the imporiance of having an acourale and alficien, M syzsbem thal would belp the

Head Office and partner ¢opperalees sazily aocass Lhe rmemibers’ enrgl|men, records

as Nle claims immediately. Thal is the goal why we =2l up the "Busmess

Application Solutions Inter CornnecLlion Managernenl o Lion Syskern™ aor BASIC
e ywere abile Loy nstall the system on bwenly eight (28) partners.



dleed o very challemngimg year, 1L owas Lhe year Lthal we need Lo e
rogre resilienl, resourceiul, hopeigl, and pogitree. I was @ yean of discovary for beter
soience and medicome, acall o good governance, o need Lo B rmore compassionals
yet forceful and st willeed. [U waz a vear of crizis ot also Lhe year wohen we slarled
Eromarc g bBack. I weas a vaar of Qpportdnity 0 give mprg prokeciion lor msrnbers ard
& wear LD make mgromnsurance svidilable o everyene, NATOOD MEAD vl always ke
proactive, Ever L zerye Lhe members ard [l e prormses. Frorm the DHicers
Lo Lhe ermployess, every bady is included and welvome o make Lhe association beller
andsironger. Thig s QUR ASS0C[ATION. Thiss QUR MEA, Ley's make ibwork angd mgra
accessible for everyone’s protection.

f__.- . .:1- e { L r.._.-"_\-\ll F
/ xﬂm’%-—ﬁi f ¥
f [

ol
Evelia Bardos Minerva G. Tejada
Board Chairperson President
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NATCCO MBAI o @
OPERATIONS HIGHLIGHT

Total Number of Active Members
with Inforce Policies

+® 66,400

Total Number of Active BLIP Policies

¢ 0 103,868

Total Sum Assured of
Active BLIP Policies

& 0 3,423,670,000.00

Total Number of Active CLIP Policies

¢ ‘ 47,157

Total Sum Assured of
Active BLIP Policies

& ‘ 2,042,017,196.42

NATCCO MBAI



NATCCO MBAI o @
OPERATIONS HIGHLIGHT

Total Amount of Contributions
and Premiums Received

@ ’ 56,360,076

Total Amount of
Claims Benefits Released

¢ ‘ 20,506,315.23

Total Assets

& 0 97,103,213

Percentage of
Claims Released Within 3 days

R 98%

Percentage of
Claims Released Within 10 days

o ® 100%

NATCCO MBAI



NATCCO MBAI o @
OPERATIONS HIGHLIGHT

Basic Life Insurance Plan

Mo. of Claims:

336

‘ ‘ Benefit Amount Released:

11,702,906.51

Hospital Income Benefit

No. of Claims:

9
’ ’ Benefit Amount Released:

12,100.00

Credit Life Insurance Plan

MNo. of Claims:

208
‘. ’ Benefit Amount Released:

8,791,308.72

NATCCO MBAI
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

CONFIRMATION STATEMENT
MATOCQ MMBA| Bourd of Trostees, ODilicers, and Managernem, Team confirrm g Tyl
cornphances with Corporate Goueernance. We lake corporale goyvernances W nedn “tha
Mramenork of rglss sysleme, and processes an Lhe assooiguon Lthal governs the
performance ol Lhe Board of Truzless and bMamagemenl of Lher iespectiye oulies and
responsibidities W omeaembers and  stakeholdars which incloyde, among olhbers,
Cuslonngr s, employees, suppHiers, Iinanceers, government angd cornrmgnily in which it

With thes  underslandimg, NATCCD MMEBAD bBirngds msel o prormole larness,
Lransparsncy gnd accounigbhe® inoall i corperale activilies and endegesrns

provides Lthe gesurance Lhat all mambars have ther nghls prolecied an
treated egquilably. Promaling lorg term sharebolcder valae s ampon Lant, Trysiess shall
deyole tha Lime and guenuon necessary W propely dischargs ther dulies and
ressponsibilivies, inoreidrn (o Lhe lrggt ageeen Lham by imembers, The Beard of Trosles
Fas a duty wodnescy, and manage [airly 6 all and acl wh prodence and justice.
Farnesss s intimately relaged oo . The BOT has the ultimate

responsitilivy (or creaung a cullure Lthal promoles slhcal praclice esponsiely
throughout the corporatmon. & truslee musy ensure thal Lhe company's goals,
slrategies, pohces, and pracyices are nghl, good, proper, moral, and legal. & lrosies
shall neluse his pesilion Lo make g prolil or ieacgquire benelicon advanlage for himsge|l
and/or related

Accountability recorriges Lhal the Board of Trusiees 15 answeerglle o memibars, (L s

responsitla for the acliong of Managerment, whach implemesnls policies and siraltenic
direcuonz: emanaling rom the Board 1L oinvolves  gssigrimg responsibadigy s
miEasunng rasulls, and gsing pohoees, plang, rizk ronanegemenl sesiemns, and olber
irfernal controels and accounting/reponing systems. 1L serves Lo masimge value whale
rieeling finangial and olher legal and conlracioag| ebhgations, In bnef, the BOT must
answer [ Lhe conssguences of 2elom gr macLon.

Transparency reguirss Lhal Lhe Board of Trustess ensure Lmealy and acourage

dlistlosyre of gl matenal mantars, such az the finanoal siualion, and periarmancs,
i luding disclosure of any malenal loresesabls nsks, 1, reguires o systerm of checks
and balances and g sysbem of mormiering and reporuang based on accepled slandarcs



el adequate dhisglosurs [or bolh hmancal and non linandial informs bon, There shoald
Be clear diviching lines among roembers, gskees, and managers YWhensver Lhey
cross [Ings such as when ruslees wear different hals (=g Trosles [ Comrmiles
Pelezrmiboer] Lhis should be disclosed accordmoly,

BOARD OF TRUSTEES
The Board of Truslees, compozsad of non erecutrye (restees angd headed by a
execylye champerson, derjves s powsr Irom the Gengral Assembly by msans gf
eleclignsg, governg by mesans of straleqic decizons, pohces, and oversghil, and is folly
accounlable 1w the General dsuemibly,

The Board = compozsed of ruslees wilh a callecuve working krdwledge, expensnce,
or exprerlise Lha jz relevant wothe assmcialion's secuogr.

INDEPENDENT BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Towvia 2] o Lhe severy |7} roemibers of e Board of Truslaes are Independent, Trgsiess,
They are independenl of managemenl and the controlling memberz, and are es
rorm any busmezs or alher relavionship, which could, or could regsonataly be pereived
L malenally interlers walth Lher erergise of independenl judoment, in carmying ol
Lheir responskliles a5 g tngshes,

BOARD MEETI
The Board of Trustess recgularly rnest quarLerly and also hold g special board mesling
il there are matters thal need W be discussed immecialely.

For 2022 the MATOCOD MEAI Bogard of Truslees had a wwlal of seven |T| mesungs, lour
{4) Regular Board Meetings, and Lhrae {3] Special Barcd fes linogs.



Meeting chates: March 12 Apnl 6; May 14; June 19; August 200 Septemm beer 10

December 6

BOARD MEETING

NUMBER
NUMBER PERCENTAGE

MEETINGS
ATTENDED

MEETINGS

1. EVELIA B. TIZON

CHAIRPERSON

2.ELLENR.

PASTORES CHAIRPERSON
3. JUPITER B. REGULAR

4. ROMEO M. REGULAR
MAGDAONG

*5. MA.VERONICA B. | REGULAR

6. ANGEL P. REGULAR
GARCIA, JR.

7. ADOLFO A. INDEPENDENT
8. RYAN ARTHUR DG. | INDEPENDENT

*January 1 May 30, 2022

December 31, 2022

BOARD COMMITTEES

Eoard cormrmitiess are s=1 up Lo supporl the elffecive performance of Lhe Board's

Marglhions, They are ermpowered W carry ool Lher [unclons &l commiless are

headed by a lrastes who reports Jireckly 1w the Board of Trustees The Chair of a

Commules 13 rezsponsibla for providing leadershap 1w enhance the effective and

ircdepandent luncuomng of Lthe Cormrrattea in proer Lo Tulhll s dubies.




CORPORATE GOVERMANCE COMMITTEE

The |[nzuranee Cormrmizsion «ithy ils oneglar Leer 2020 71, “Revised Corporate

Coverpngnge [or Insyrgnee Comermiszson Regulaled Companies,” has recommended

Lthe craation of a Corporate Govsrnance Comemillee, Cormposed of al leasl [ve (S)

marnbers appeinted by Lhe Bogrd of Trustess Thae composilion of which, gl be
Marbignal, The members wall serve Tor al kkasl ong (1] year lrom

appointment,

Elfaclng 2072, lhe NMATLCOD MBAI put Lhe Hommation Corrmalbes (MOHRCTRY arg
Ramgner aiion Coimrniles (ReCorp under Lhe COC

Committee Meetings:

Meeting dates:
Januwary X7, Febroary 246, March 24, May 5, Jun 16, Septamber 2

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

COMMITTEE (with NOMINATION & NUMBER OF R B

MEETINGS
REMUNERATION) MEETINGS ATTENDED
1 ADOLFO A CHAIRPERSON
2. RYAN ARTHUR
DG. PADILLA CHAIRPERSON
3. JUPITER B.
4. EVELIA B. RESOURCE
5. ROMEOC M. RESOURCE
MAGDAONG
6. MINERVA G. RESOURCE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Composed of Lhree members, headed by anondependent rosies, walb gl merbers
Fawing Lhe abibily Lo read linanoal reporls. Resouros Persons sie also irvled Lo Lhe
mieeling W help the commiltes discuss and decicde on impaniant mallers,

Also, effective 2022, becauzs ol 115 aige, MATCCO MBAI decided Lo put Lhe Board Risk
Drezrsighl Commilles (BROC] and Relalad Party Tranzacuon Commilles [RPT}H under
Audit Committee.



This Comrmatles i amelectve syslem ol intemal conlrel thal wall ensane the mlegrily
the fmancial reporls angd the protection of the assels of Lhe assocation (or the
benefit of all members.

Committee Meetings:
Meeting dates: Fel T, Apcil 5, May 4 May 6, Dctober B

AJDIT COMMITTEE {with BROC & NUMBER OF PERCENTAGE
NUMBER OF MEETINGS

ATTENDED

MEETINGS

L RYANARTHUR | - A IRPERSON

DG. PADILLA
2. ADCLFO A,

CHAIRPERSON
3. ELLEN R.
PASTORES
VERONICA B. RESOURCE
**5. ANGEL P. RESOURCE

6. ZORAHAYDA RESOURCE
A. CAFIRMA
7. MINERVA G. RESOURCE

*January 1 May 30, 2022
December 31, 2022

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Execulive Cornmijlles @ compesaed of the: Board of Trosteas Chairperson and yice
Chairgerson, wilth e Board Treasurer and Prasidenl of Lthe Qperaticns Team. The
EAECOM shall exaroze the powers and parform the dulies of Lhe Board of Trusiees
duning Lhe inkerverimg pericd belvwean Lhe Board of Troslees meetings.



Committee Meetings:
Meating dates: January 15, Febiuary 19, April 2, Octobrer 8, Novermbeey 12

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE NUMBER NUMBER OF PERCENTAGE

MEETINGS

MEETINGS ATTENDED

1. EVELIA B. CHAIRPERSON
PASTORES CHAIRPERSON
3. ZORAHAYDA

A. CAFIRMA

4. MINERVA G.

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

Cormpozsed of (he Board Charrperzon, Board Treasurer, one {1} Regular Board of
Trustees, and the President of Lhe Operabionz Tegm. The cormrniiles raviews and
recornmends lor approseal by the Board, Lhe investrmen, pohcess, meiucdima eask gl
objeclves and strgleges. They also recommend or Board approval the seleclion of
irnveslment managers, ouslodane, consullants, and olher invesiment professionals as
appropriate.

Committee meetings:
Meating dates: Felwuary 22, August 25

NUMBER
INVESTMENT COMMITTEE NUMBER OF PERCENTAGE

MEETINGS MEETINGS
ATTENDED

1. ZORAHAYDA A. CHAIRPERSON

2.ELLENR.
PASTORES CHAIRPERSON
3. ROMEO M.
MAGDAONG
4, MINERVA G. RESOURCE




POLICY REVIEW COMMITTEE

e ol the powers of Lhe NATCCOD MEB&I Baard of Tiwsless 15 “From time to time,
garcrrpeaferae rutes arrg peaulalions conpsistend willr Fese Dy faws, and to review, revise
g arprerad dfre rarme wehen o deerns recessdry o e manggerment of e
Asuocation’s besiresys g affars" (NATCCD MBS Bylavws &l 6, Sec 1, paragraph al
aid the Board of Trusless, Board Resoluton # 24 20270 dated July 1, 2020 was pasyed,
crzaling Ve Pohcy Reviewy Cormmitlee (POLREVCOM).

Committee meetings:
Meeting dates: Felwuary 28, March 16, August 235, October 19

NUMBER
POLICY REVIEW COMMITTEE NUMBER OF PERCENTAGE
MEETINGS MEETINGS
ATTENDED
1 EVELIAB. CHAIRPERSON
2. ELLEN R.
PASTORES CHAIRPERSON
3. ADOLFC A.
VERONICA B. RESOURCE
RESOURCE
GARCIA, JR.
6. ZORAHAYDA | RESOURCE
A. CAFIRMA
7. MINERVA G. RESOURCE

*January 1 May 30, 2022
December 31, 2022

PRODUCT REVIEW ANMD DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

In responee 1o Lhe conslantly changing nesds of our membaers, Lhe Board of Troslees
decmed L necessary o creale g comrmiles vl corcduct penodi reviews of
current products and research in order 1o develop new responsive

Board Resclution # 30 2020 dated Sept. 12, 2020 waz passed, crealing Lhe Producy,
Fevizy aned Developmenl Comminkes [FRD 4k



Committee meetings:

Meetity

dates: lapuary 22, Jul

9, Hovermbyer 5

PRODUCT REVIEW AND NUMBER NUMBER OF PERCENTAGE
DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE MEETINGS
MEETINGS ATTENDED
1. ROMEO M.
MAGDAONG CHAIRPERSON
2. RYAN ARTHUR
DG. PADILLA CHAIRPERSON
3. JUPITER B.
4, MINERVA G. RESOURCE

MARKETING COMMITTEE
To acheeve the msulouognal yigion el 300000 slrong MMBal by 2025, 1the Board af

Truztees: passad Bowad Resaluuon &
karkelimg Comm e {MMC} Lo 3o the seralteoges marketing direcucon of MMBAL

ittee meetings:

Meeting dates: January 26, July 23

dlated Morearnber 14, 2020, crealing Ltha

NUMBER

MARKETING COMMITTEE NUMBER PERCENTAGE
MEETINGS
MEETINGS = 7>
1 JUPITERB. CHAIRPERSON
2. MILDRED C.

CHAIRPERSON

3. RYAN ARTHUR
DG. PADILLA

4. MINERVA G.

RESOURCE




MANAGEMENT INFCORMATION SYSTEM |MIS) COMMITTEE
Topgpidde the raanagemsnl eann n bhe progess lransilgn irorm rmganagl sy iomgled,
Lthe Board of Trostess craaled the Managermaert Information Syslem (MIS) Cormrmalles

Committee meetings:
Meating dates: February 17, Septambar 39, Octoker 20

MANAGEMENT INFORMATION NUMBER NUMBER PERCENTAGE

SYSTEM COMMITTEE

MEETINGS
MEETINGS ATTENDED
1. RYAN ARTHUR

DG. PADILLA CHAIRPERSON

2. ROMEO M.
MAGDAONG CHAIRPERSON

*3. MA. VERONICA

GARCIA, JR.

5. MINERVA G. RESOURCE

*January 1l May 30, 2022
December 31, 2022

INDEPENDENT CHECKS AND BALANCES

Duided by Lhe assog@auon's core values ol imearity and excellence, independent
chec ks and balanses aclivibies gre regularly carriec ou wakh Lhe help of e audnorns.

Internal Auditor

The Bgard of Trusles: yearly appomils the Internagl Aodivor toensare elleciiez mlernal
control megsures. M, Bobert abhao was nitially appomnted on bMay 29, 2008, w be Lhe
Internal Auditor. He was re appomled (o the same poziuon on bMay 23, 2019, July 27,
2020, May 25, 2021, and May 31, 2022,



External Auditor

Racomumenged by the audil Commilies and approved by the Board of Trugloos,
Acguing, Mala, Calica, angd Associales AMO E Azsooiates) served gy the Exlernal dudigr
ol NATCCD MBAL WiLh Lhe audil [se gl PFEOX000 (=12% VaT! and all olber expenses
incurred by Lthe audilors dunng the gudit pencd, vhey audived Ltheg 20232 Finanoial
Slaterment gf the assooalion, whoch was allicmed by Lhe Beard of Trusiess on Margh

Company Compliance

To engure Lhe associglion's compliance with all the regulatory bodies, especially the
Irvsurance Cormrrnzscn, 8 Counplianee Oilcer, and allermauve Complianoe Cllcer was
appaanled by Lhe Boerd of Trustess, The Complianee Diicer will @lsoe cany ool the
corractye aclions recommended by the mbermal and exienal audinors,

OF CONDUCT AND BUSINESS ETHICS

The MaATCIO MBal Code of Conducl is the foundalion how the Officers and

Emprleyess concduc ), ther bozipess, L pols MMBA| values nto pracice and guides the

Qilcers” and emplovess’ ethical behavior wheanever and wherever Lhey do business or
behalf of NMBAI.

The cornducl of the Insgrance bosimess = rmbued with bigh poble oz &l HaTCI0
PABAL oflicers gngd employess mst conduct themaehees with the bighes, dagrees of
respinsibaliy, mbagrily, lewyvally, and efliziency and mozst remam aoeouniabls w the
MEABA| stakebglders.

Ths, i is the ddeclarsd policy of NATCCD MBAT Lhal all QMicers and smiployess mus),
al all Limes, comply with all apphcakle laoes and regulations. HATCOO MBAL will 1
condone the aclrvivies ol ollicers and employees who achieve resuls through violagion
ol L anclior unethical business dealings.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

The Broand of Trusless has Lhe overall respomatbnilivy of enzaring Lhat Lhere s g group
wincle pohey and system governing relaled parly transactions (RPTs) anc other uregsua|
or infraguently oooyrmng transaclons, parbicularky Lhose thal, pazs cengim Lthreshe

ol rmmaterighly. There i an appropnate review gnd aeproval of malenal or signibicant



RPTs, wihich guoargnless ([airmess and wansparency of the lransaclionzs The pobhcy
engormpasses all entibes wilthijn the groog, wakimg mlc account, Lhear zige, sirocLgre
risk prodile, ancd cornplesaly ol operations

Ensuning Lhe inteorily of relalsd parly ransacions 5 an rnporlant Goauciany duty of
the trysles, L iz the Board's role Lo mibiale polices and msasores geared wowards Lhe
prevenbion of abyse and prormowon of ansparency, and o comphance sah
apphcable lgws and regulations 1o prolegl the mberest ol all memibsers

TRANSPARENCY AND DISCLOSURE
Ensunmng Lthe members and stakeholders are gapdated on Lthe processes and
whersabmas of the assogalion, MATCCOO MBAL communicales i thern throggh
different channels;

° www.natccombai.comj Thas conlams Lthe rmangals andd policies of Lhe

gruoCialion, as veell gz the aF5 annual Raporis, mangles of the meeunngs, and
prorkar indoarmanion for Lhe members.
e Facebook Page |

jal} for faster and
eazier conmacuon W Lthe members, the assooabon aulizes alsg FE in
communicati members.

] 2352 3408, 0298 524 o712 in all activilies and campaigns for 1he
rnemberzs ang] stakehoiders, the MNATCCD MEBAL i pubhzhing these conlac),
ridrnbers Lo indorm Lhe pubhc vhal they can reach lhe gssooalion anytime,

STAKEHOLDERS'’ INTERESTS
Stakeholders especially Lhe members, are Lhe core of HATCOD MBAPS easlence, thus
giving Lherm the besl programes and seraces i Lhe wop proicrsity.

Customer YWatfare Policy

MNAaTOCQ MBAl's Customer Wellare Folicy promoles farnesss and wrarnsparency
Businezy deabngs walth members and panner cooperdlives, Dop Azsocialon s
committed to our cuzstomer's gualily slandarcds ina mulually fan and
satsfactory mannen withoul carmprormising the busmess ehics sel by Lhe Sssocialion.

To protect yzlormer salely angd welfare, we abide by Lhe relevanl [aws, roles
regulations sal by the Phabppine govermment,



corruption Policy
Corruptionis a form of dishonesty criminal offense undertaken by a perscn or
orogar galion entrgsledd wilth g posiion of aylthormy, Lo acguire dlen berehls o abose
ol proaveezn [or gne™s privale gam.

The employes, by wiriye of his employment, is boand nol @ belray thal rost by
sesking Lo gain any undoe persanal o pecuniary advantage eiher Lhan the righclal
proceeds of employmert rom bis dealings watbe o [or and on behall of Lhe
Ausocialion, Employvess mamlam Lhe lighest standards of honesty and professional
condys L Seeking undue linancial anc matenal advantgge mom transaclions salh the
Acsocialicon is 8 breach of Irust belaween the ermployes and Lhe associlion,

HATCCO MBAI values its repulalion [or eliucal behavior and [or inaneial probity and
redigbalitvy. IV recogrnges thal ower and above the cormmijzgsion of amy crime, any
irnvevemeEnl i bribery wall @lso reflec] adversely on itz rmage and reputation.

Environment Friendly Value Chain Policy

AT MBA| s cormrmjlles] e Lhe protecign of Lhe erperanrnanl, Lhe hegllh, arng the
salaly of s emplevess, membery, cuslomers, and the cormrmanily.

We shall continue to;

Adopl syztems Lhal promols emvironmenlal prote lion, ooy pational beallh
and salely, andd compaliange with relevan, sialutory and regulatory
reguirements;

Seek weaws Lo elligen Ly e materials and enaragy,

Faview gnd nmprowve our salely, haalth, and emvironmental perlormanees;
Cornmgnezals aur ervironmmental activilies Lo oor ermployess, Lhe public, and
relevant authorities,

Encourage employes inilialives thay conlribule Lo sale and mproved
arvarcenmental work gl horme and the community.



Safeguarding Credmor's Rights

RATCCO pBA| " Code of Conclucl sels out ebacal slardards and policres Lhal arn w

uphold its reputawn [or acling respenzibly and wilh integrly al gl Limes in dealings

wilh our miermbeers, coeoperdlive parlners, supphers, credilans, cornpallors and society

as @ whole 1L s every ermployes™ respoanzbilny o prolect themleres) and inteognly of
sociakion angd mgintaim the highest standads of conduct 1o promote a bigh

level ol ermployes and corporale perlormanges.

RATCCO MEBAN: main creditors are s supplers. In dealing with said supplisrs of
gqooxds and services, Lhe Associalion maimnlains Lhe bpghest possible standards of
integrily in busmness relalonzbops wilh sad sopphers.

Dividend Policy {Free and Unassigned Surplus)
As stated in IC Circular 2015 &£, Rulzs in the Applicauon of Seclion 08, Paragraph 3
of Lhe Smended Insyurange Zoda on Flee and Unassigned Surplus.,

Applicatle Prowvision, Secjon 08, paragraph 3 of the Insurance Code, as
amended provides that;

“A rmytual benelil aszociation shall only mairnain a free and unassionesd surpis of
roL more Lhan twenly pereent [20%) of nz coal lathilhibes as venlied by the
Comrvassioner. &rvy gimount in Lhe excess shall be relurmed w Lhe members by way
ol chvidends, enhanong the @gquiy vahga, or provicmg beneinz in Kind ard ol
relevanl services. Inaddinon, subjecl w Lhe approval of the Commissioner, a mutual
bensliL associglion may allocale o porgon for the capaciy bulding and research
and developrmenl such as devaloping new progucts and services, ypgradimg aned
IFTIRATCHY 1110 xpesr gLing Fysherns and aguipment, and conkinumeg memikser edus

Definition of Terms.
d. Dividends. Thiswerm shall be constrged wornean any adadibienal benelr, w el her
ircash ar inkndd, green we members of an MBS, The Lerrm shall nol be consimaed as
dividends for steok corparations as dehined ander the Corporation Code of the
Fhulippimes and as dividends payalala, il any, under a parlicipalng plan.

Wilh these, MATCOD MELNS ea and unassigned surplus in eocass of 20% wal| e
dishibated Lo membrers by enhancing equity valye ar proviching benelns in kind and
ciher releyvant seryices. Moretver, as approved by LThe Commizsioner, NATCCD MBAL
roay gllocate a porlbon e capacity bulding and reseaich and developrment such as



develeping new products and senaces, oporading and rmproving pRperaling systemes
of enuipraent, and conbinging regmber sdacaiion.

Whistleblowing Policy

Crealad on June 19, 2008, Lz Whisllebkraimg Policy airns Lo give all employees and
miarmbers Lhe conlidence Lo raise concarns aboul wiong Behoavior and pracuce, and
to mitigate risks and lpszes thirough Lhe early dhiscovery of rregular acyivibies, NATOCD
PG cormrrts msel o break dovn cormmunicalion barmegrs and providing @ sals
intermal commygricalion Chanmel o all employees Lo express Lher conpcerns Lthrough
the enactment of the Policy, whuch allowes Ton ganorymous dizclozures and Lthe
prooechion ol infermanls from zansuons undsr specihc concdibions. The policy cowvers
all rzpons or infrmalben n orelauon Lo acloal o suspecied [reod, rvsoonduacl
aclrvibies, unlaw ol goly or ermjgsion:s, vinlationz of Lhe Code of Conducy, danasr w
heallh and salety, mpropneass o malpracuce in the aorkplacs, includng those
relativa Lo malters of lnancal reporung, mlemmal conel andfer audilmeg. Al
ermnpleyess, regardless of posilien or rank, who are wiinesses Lo anormalies in the
wirkplace ars obliged Leospeak up and reporl the sarme personaglly ar in wniling
Frisdhueer unil, bead o aree of Lhe ollicers, verbally or o wnking.

EMPLOYEES AND MEMBERS DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM

Annual Physical Exam (APE}
i5 one ol the health programe of the assooauon for s gualiled employess, This
engpurages all ernployees W0 undergo laboratony lesis to cheack thar current bealll
condipen and prevent whalewver dizegss Lhey may acguire. Due 1o the pancerma, ol
loyeres wypre abile 10 hawe the APE. QOf Lhe sighn {3) emiployess, (oo (&) had Ltheir
APE, whnle Lhe resy wers unable w ssoyre an appoimnirment due @ the quargntins
slaluzm ther arga of residesnce.

Training and Development

Jub performance gesessmenl, slall lrairimg, and developrnen) are kay performance
indicgtns and developmenls for @mployess w0 ensyure thair conbimgad learmngs aned
skills enhancerments. AL a member of MIMAP [Ramans), employvess are enoouraged
L allend traimang relaled 1o their specilic unction, and apply new learmmnags: W Lheir
everyday performance.

FaATCCO MEBAI alsg holds l=armimg sessipns wath the mernbers, al leasl once g year, &
thorough discuzson on Lthe prodocts and services s baing done Lo enzsare Lhay [ully
and correctly understand Lhese and all quesLions and concerns are goddressed,



Training Attended

MINERVA G. TEJADA
PRESIDENT & COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Data Privacy

Aabd Lé Tarogeted Frinancigl Sanclions July 12, 2022
AMLC Registration and Reporting Guidelines July 20, 2022
AML/CTF Fundamentals July 26, 2022

August 18,
Lakbay Aral mMB&A Operauonz of CARD MB& CARE MBA

August 24,
IFRS 17. Expetatcns gnd Reahljes

August 24,
Meawy Financial Peporying Framewvsork Icr MBAs
Favizitmg the Zomphance ard Baporional
Faguirgmenls for Monslook, Honproiil August 24,
Corporations
Developimng Enlerprse Risk Management, August 25,
Framework Workshep

Burkley and Agquino

Crealng Dala Privacy Manual ler MiMB&z' Dala | Law Office August 26,
Privacy Compliance
kaking Elecirome Invoicing f Peceipling Third Channel August 26,
System Available for Mi
Reinforcing Mi Resilience through August 26,
Cosasler Risk Reduclion and Managemenl,

August 26,
SLrengitherimg Agcht CormirnjLbee

August 26,

What 1L means 1o be a Top Wilhholding &genl?

Leadership Training

Development Plan Review

Development Plan Review




YANI M. YUGO
ACCOUNTING SUYPERVISOR & ALTERNATE COMPLIANCE

Data Privacy

August 18,

PBA Dpergunpnzs of CARD MB& CARE MBA

August 24,
IFRS 17. Expectatcns gnd Realljes

August 24,
Mew Finangial Peporying Frameworlks [er MBAs
Faviziting Lthe Zomphance ard Raeporional
Requirements for Nonstock, Nonprofit August 24,
Corporations
Developing Enlerpnss Risk Management August 25,
Framework Workshep

Burkley and Agquino

Trealing Cala Puyacy HMamgal o HMikABAS Law Office August 26,
Data Privacy Compliance
kaking Elecirom Inveicing { Receipung Third Channel August 2o,
System Available for Mi
Reinforcing Mi MBA Resilience through August 26,
Cusasler Risk Reduclion and Manggemesn),

August 26,
Strengthening Audit Committee
What Lmmeans 2 be a Top Withholding August 26,
Microinsurance Forum
Leadership Training
Development Plan Review

JENNIFER M. ESTOCADA
CLAIMS SUPERVISOR

Data Privacy

August 18,
Lakbay Aral MBA Operalions of CARD MBS CARE MBA

August 24,

IFRS 17. Expectaugns anid Realljes




August 24,
New Financial Peporting Frarmework lor MBas
Faviziting Lthe Zomphance ard Raeporional

Reguiremenls for Morslock, Honprolil August 24,
Corpcrations
Developing Enlerpnss Risk Managermenl August 25,

Framework Workshep

Burkley and Agquino

Crealing Dala Puyacy HManga| lor hibABAS Law Office August 26,
Data Privacy Compliance
kaking Elecirom Inveicing { Receipling Third Channel August 2o,
System Available for Mi
Reinforcing Mi BA Resilience through August 26,
Cusasler Risk Reduclion and Manggemesn),

August 26,
Srrengthermng Agchit Cormrn| Lz
What Lmmeans 2 be a Top Withholding August 26,

Microinsurance Forum

Leadership Training

Development Plan Review

MA. CHERISH G. SOLSONA
MIS SUPERVISOR

Data Privacy

August 18,
Lakbay Aral mMB&A Operauonz of CARD MB& CARE MBA

August 24,
IFRS 17. Expectatcns gnd Reahljes

August 24,
Meaws Financial Peporting Framework lor MBas
Ravizitmg Lthe Cormphance and Raporonal
Faguirgmenls for Monslook, Honproiil August 24,
Corporations
Developing Enlerphise Risk MManagermenl, August 25,
Framework Workshep




Burkley and Agquino

Crealing Dala Puyacy HManga| lor hibABAS Law Office August 26,
Data Privacy Compliance
Making Electronic Invoicing / Receipting Third Channel August 26,
System Available for Mi
Reinforcing Mi MBA Resilience through August 26,
Csasler Risk Reduclion and Managemen),

August 26,
SLrengithermg agychit CormirnjLpee
What it means to be a Top Withholding August 26,

Microinsurance Forum

Leadership Training

Development Plan Review

MA. ELIZABETH B. AQUINO
MIS STAFF

Data Privacy

SLrengthermg Agycht CormrnjLlbee

August 18,
Lakbay Aral mB&A Operauonz of CARD MB& CARE MBA

August 24,
IFRS 17. Expetatans gnd Reahljes

August 24,
Meaw Financial Peporting Framework or MBas
Favizitmg the Comphance and Raporlonal
Faguirgmenls for Monslook, Honproiil August 24,
Corporations
Developing Enlerprise Pisk MManagermenl August 25,
Framework Workshep

Burkley and Aquino
Crzating Dala Poyvacy Manaal for MiIMBAS Law Office August 26,
Privacy Cempliance

kaking Elecirome Invoicing / Peceipling Third Channel August 26,
System Available for Mi
Reinforcing Mi MBA Resilience through August 26,
Cigasler Fisk Reducuon and pdan

August 26,




Whal 1L means e be a Top Yithholding August 26,

Microinsurance Forum

Development Plan Review

DHONNA R. FRANCISCO
ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF

August 18,
Lakbay Aral MB&A Operglons aof CARD MB& CARE MBA

August 24,
IFRS 17. Expetatcns gnd Reahljes

August 24,
Meawy Financial Peporying Framewvsork Icr MBAs
Favizitmg the Zomphance ard Baporional
Faguirgmenls for Monslook, Honproiil August 24,
Corporations
Developimng Enlerprse Risk Management, August 25,
Framework Workshep

Burkley and Aquino

Trealing Cala Puyacy HMamgal o HMikABAS Law Office August 26,
Data Privacy Compliance
kaking Elecirome Invoicing f Peceipling Third Channel August 26,
System Available for Mi
Reinforcing Mi lience through August 26,
Cosasler Risk Reduclion and Managemenl,

August 26,
SLrengLhermg Agychit Cormrn e
What Lmmeans 2 be a Top Withholding August 26,
ARMEL JAIRUS D. PATAWARAN
ACCOUNTING

- r ]

August 18,
Lakbay Aral mMBA Operaguonz of CARD MBA CARE MBA

August 24,
IFRS 17. Expectatcns gnd Realljes

August 24,
Meaw Financial Reporting Framework lor MBas




Revisiting the Compliance and Reportorial

Faguirgmenls for Monslogck, Monproiil August 24,
Corpcrations
Developimng Enlerpnse Risk Management August 25,

Framework Workshep

Burkley and Agquino

Crealing Cala Poyvacy Manal for RMiMBAS Law Office August 2o,
Data Privacy Compliance
kiaking Eleciromg Inveicing § Regeiplng Third Channel August 26,

System Available for Mi
Reinforcing Mi MBA Resilience through
Csasler Risk Reduclion and Managemen),

August 26,
SLrengitherimg Agcht CormirnjLbee
What 1L means 1o be a Top Withholding August 26,

Data Privacy
Microinsurance Forum

Development Plan Review

SUNSHINE O. MARIANO
ACCOUNTING STAFF

Data Privacy

August 18,
Lakbay Aral mMB&A Operauonz of CARD MB& CARE MBA

August 24,
IFRS 17. Expetatcns gnd Reahljes

August 24,

Financidl Feporing Frarmework [or MBas
Favizitmg the Comphance and Raporlonal
Faguirgmenls for Monslook, Honproiil August 24,
Corporations
Developing Enlerprise Risk MManagermenl, August 25,
Framework Workshep
Burkley and Aquino

Crzating Dala Poyvacy Manaal for MiIMBAS Law Office August 26,
Data Privacy Compliance
kaking Elecirome Invoicing / Receipling Third Channel August 26,
Systemn Available for Mi




MBA Resilience through August 26,
Cugaster Risk Reduglion and Manggemenl,
August 26,
Sirengthermog Sgchit CormrnjLiee
What 1L mmeans 1 be a Top YWithholding August 26,

Microinsurance Forum

Development Plan Review

JENINA DJ. DELA CRUZ
MARKETING OFFICER

Data Privacy

August 18,
Lakbay Aral mMB&A Operauonz of CARD MB& CARE MBA

August 24,

Expectations and Realities

August 24,
Meaw Financial Peporting Framework or MBas
Ravizitmg Lthe Comphance and Raporional
Faguirgmenls for Monslook, Honproiil August 24,
Corporations
Developing Enlerprise Pisk MManagermenl August 25,
Framework Workshep

Burkley and Agquino

Trealing Cala Puyacy HMamgal o HMikABAS Law Office August 26,
Data Privacy Compliance
kaking Elecirome Invoicing f Peceipling Third Channel August 26,
System Available for Mi
Reinforcing Mi MBA Resilience through August 26,
Cusasler Risk Reduglion and Managemen),

August 26,
SLrenguhermg agclit Cormrn|Llee
wWhal 1L means e be a Top Withholding August 26,

Microinsurance Forum

Development Plan Review




BOT and OFFICERS’s Trainings

Asicle from ermployess, Lhe Bognd of Trustees also allended lraimng,

EVELIA BARDOS
CHAIRPERSON, BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Data Privacy

August 18,
Lakbay Aral mMB&A Operauonz of CARD MB& CARE MBA

August 24,
IFRS 17. Expetatcns gnd Reahljes

August 24,
Meawy Financial R=poriing Framegwork
Favizitmg the Zomphance ard Baporional
Faguirgmenls for Monslook, Honproiil August 24,
Corporations
Developimng Enlerprse Risk Management, August 25,

Framework Workshep

Burkley and
Crealng Dala Privacy Manyal lor MiMBaz' Dala Aquino Law Office | August 26,
Privacy Compliance

flakirag Elecuonig Inveioing f Receipting Syslern | Third Channel August 26,
Available for Mi
Reinforcing Mi lience through Disaster August 26,
Fisk: PreducLign angd Manaogermerl

August 26,
SLrengLhermg Agychit Cormrn e

August 26,

What 1|, means i bea Top Wilhholdimeg &genl?

Development Plan Review




ELLEN R. PASTORES

Data Privacy

VICE CHAIRPERSON, REGULAR MEMBER OF BOARD OF TRUSTEES

SLrengitherimg Agcht CormirnjLbee

August 18,
Lakbay Aral MB&A Operguons of CARD MB& CARE MBA

August 24,
IFRS 17. Expectaugns gnid Beahljes

August 24,
Meawy Financial Peporying Framewvsork Icr MBAs
Favizitmg the Comphance and Raporlonal
Faguirgmenls for Monslook, Honproiil August 24,
Corpcrations
Developing Enterprise Risk Management August 25,
Framework Workshop

Burkley and

Crealmg Dala Privacy MManual lor MikMBaz' Dala Aquino Law Office | August 26,
Privacy Compliance
Mlakirg Eleciicnig Inveioimng f Receipling Sysler August 26,
Available for Mi
Reinforcing Mi kBA Resilience through Disasler August 26,
Fisk Rreducign angd Managermen

August 26,

What 1L means 1o be a Top Wilhholding &genl?

Development Plan Review

JUPITER B. BONILLA
MEMBER, BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Data Privacy

Lakbay Aral mMBA Operaucns af CARD MBS

CARE MBA

August 18,

Expectations and Realities

August 24,




August 24,
Mew Finangial Peporying Frameworlks [er MBAs

Faviziting Lthe Zomphance ard Raeporional

Reguiremenls for Morslock, Honprolil August 24,
Corpcrations
Developing Enlerpnss Risk Managermenl August 25,

Framework Workshep

Burkley and
Crealmg Dala Privacy Manual for kipABas' Dala Aquino Law Office | August 26,
Privacy Compliance

Plakinig Elecucnag Inveicing f Receipling Syslerm | Third Channel August 2o,
lable for M
Reinforcing Mi mMB& Resilienoe Lthrough Disazler August 26,
Fisk: PreducLign angd Manaogermerl
August 26,
Srrengthermng Agchit Cormrn| Lz
August 26,

Wohat i\, means b be a Top VWithholding

Development Plan Review

Data Privacy

ROMEO M. MAGDAONG
MEMBER, BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Lakbay Aral mMB&A Operauonz of CARD MB& CARE MBA

August 24,
IFRS 17. Expetatcns gnd Reahljes

August 24,
Meaw Financial Peporting Framework or MBas
Ravizitmg Lthe Comphance and Raporional
Faguirgmenls for Monslook, Honproiil August 24,
Corporations
Developing Enlerprise Risk MManagermenl, August 25,

Framework Workshep

Burkley and
Crealmg Dala Privacy Manual lor MiMBas' Dala Aquino Law Office | August 26,
Privacy Compliance
Making Electronic Invoicing / Receipting System | Third Channel August 26,
Available for Mi




What it means to be a Top wWithholding agenl?

Reinforcing Mi MB& Restlience Lhrough Disazler August 26,
Fisk Recduciign angd Managermeng

August 26,
Sirengthermog Sgchit CormrnjLiee

August 26,

Development Plan Review

MA. VERONICA B. SIERRA
MEMBER, BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Data Privacy

ANGEL P. GARCIA, JR.
MEMBER, BOARD OF TRUSTEES

SLrenguhermg agychit Cormrn| e

August 18,
Lakbay Aral MBA Operalion:z of CARD MBS CARE MBA

August 24,
IFRS5 17. Expectaugns and Realljes

August 24,
Mew Finangial Peporying Framessork Ior MBAs
Favizitmg the Comphance and Raporlonal
Raguiremenls for MonsLock, Ranprolil August 24,
Corpcrations
Developing Enlerpnss Risk Management August 25,
Framework Workshop

Burkley and

Crealmg Dala Privacy Manual lor MipBAz Dala Aquino Law Office | August 26,
Privacy Compliance
Plaking Eleguanig Inveicing f Receipting Sysler | Third Channel August 26,
Available for Mi
Reinforcing Mi mBA Resilience through Disasler August 26,
Risk Reduction and Man

August 26,




Wyhat 1L means 1 bea Top Wilhholging &genl?

August 26,

Development Plan Review

ATTY. ADOLFO A. IBANEZ
INDEPENDENT TRUSTEE

Data Privacy

August 18,
Lakbay Aral mBA Operalion:z of CARD MBS CARE MBA

August 24,
IFRS 17. Expetaucns gnd Realljes

August 24,
Mew Finangial Peporying Framessork Ior MBAs
Favizitmg the Comphance and Raporlonal
Faguirgmenls for Monsiock, Monproiil August 24,
Corpcrations
Developing Enlerpnss Risk Management August 25,
Framework Workshop

Burkley and

Crealmg Dala Privacy Manual lor MikMBAz Dala Aquino Law Office | August 26,
Privacy Compliance
Mlaking Eleciicnis Inveicing £ Receipling Syslerm | Third Channel August 26,
Available for Mi
Reinforcing Mi lience through Disaster August 26,
Fisk Rreducign angd Managermern

August 26,
SLrengitherimg Agcht CormirnjLbee

August 26,

What 1L means 1o be a Top Wilhholging &genl?

Development Plan Review




RYAN ARTHUR DG. PADILLA
NDEPENDENT TRUSTEE

Data Privacy

August 18,
Lakbay Aral  MBA Dperauons of CARD MBA CARE MBA

August 24,
IFRS 17. Expectatcns gnd Realljes

August 24,

Finangiagl Peporying Framework o MBas

Faviziting Lthe Zomphance ard Raeporional
Faguirgmenls for Monsiock, Monproiil August 24,
Corporations
Developing Enlerpnss Risk Management August 25,

Framework Workshep

Burkley and
Crealng Dala Privacy Manyal lor MiMBaz' Dala Aquino Law Office | August 26,
Privacy Compliance
Plabirieg Elecucmnig Inveicing f Receipling Sysler | Third Channel August 2o,
Available for Mi

MBS Remlience Lhrough Disazler August 26,
Fisk: PreducLign angd Manaogermerl
August 26,
SLrengLhermg Agychit Cormrn e
August 26,

What 1|, means i bea Top Wilhholdimeg &genl?

Development Plan Review

MILDRED C. CEREZO
BOARD SECRETARY

Data Privacy

August 18,
Lakbay Aral mMBA Operaguonz of CARD MBA CARE MBA

August 24,
IFRS 17. Expectatcns gnd Realljes

August 24,

Meaw Financial Reporting Framework lor MBas




Ravizitmgg Lthe Cormphange and Raporional

Whal 1L means L ke a Top Wilhholdimg &genl?

Faguirgmenls for Monslogck, Monproiil August 24,
Corpcrations
Developimng Enlerpnse Risk Management August 25,
Framework Workshep
Burkley and
Aquino Law
Crealma Dala Privacy Manual for MiMBAz' Dala August 26,
Privacy Compliance
kaking Elecirom Inveicing { Receipling August 26,
System Available for Mi
Reinforcing Mi MBA Resilience through August 26,
Cusasler Risk Reduglion and Manggemesn),
August 26,
Srrengthermng Agchit Cormrn| Lz
August 26,

Development Plan

ROBERTO A. ABAO
BOARD AUDITOR

System Available for Mi

August 18,
Lakbay Aral mB&A Operauonz of CARD MB& CARE MBA
August 24,
IFRS 17. Expetatans gnd Reahljes
August 24,
New Financial Reporting Framewcrk for MBAs
Favizitmg the Comphance and Raporlonal
Faguirgmenls for Monslook, Honproiil August 24,
Corpcrations
Developing Enlerprise Pisk MManagermenl August 25,
Framework Workshop
Burkley and
Aquino Law
Crealing Dala Privacy bManual (or MitMMBas' Dala August 26,
Privacy Compliance
klaking Elecbrome Inveicing S Regeipling August 26,




Reinforcing Mi lience through August 26,
Cugaster Risk Reduglion and Manggemenl,

August 26,
Sirengthermog Sgchit CormrnjLiee

August 26,
Wyhat 1L means 1 bea Top Wilhholging &genl?

Development Plan Review

ZORAHAYDA A. CAFIRMA
BOARD TREASURER

Data Privacy

August 18,
Lakbay Aral mMB&A Operauonz of CARD MB& CARE MBA

August 24,
IFRS 17. Expetatans gnd Reahljes

August 24,

Financidl Reporting Framework for MBas
Favizitmg the Comphance and Raporlonal
Faguirgmenls for Monslook, Honproiil August 24,
Corpcrations
Developing Enlerprise Pisk MManagermenl August 25,
Framework Workshop
Burkley and
Aquino Law
Crealng Dala Privacy bManual (or MitdBaz' Dala August 26,
Privacy Compliance
kaking Elecirome Inveicing { Receipung August 26,
System Available for Mi
MBA Resilience through August 26,

Csasler Risk Reduglion and Managemesn),

August 26,
SLrenguhermg Agchit CormrnLee

August 26,
Whal 1|, means g be a Top Wilhholdimeg &genl?
Development Plan Review
Microinsurance Forum




TREASURER’'S
: REPORT

MS. ZORAHAYDA A, CAFIRMA
TREASURER

NATCCO MBAI



TREASURER'S REPORT

Oparalicnz gl NMBAL are nowes ngra conlrg lable ancd haye reveriad Lo g pre

12 lewel thanks (o Lhe Board of Troslees contnuous supporl, dechcation, and
copperaucn with Lthe rmanagement. Doe Lo Lhig, the Associalion s expanding
gee g sucoesy despile Lhe mnpacl of rizmg nflaton.

The financial begbhights of HNATCOD MBAL IMMEBAL revealed a comprehensiye ncorme
ol B2,00%: Troem 2027 Thag s due Lo anise inrgvenug [rom PS2.SE mullionm 2027 Lo PSE, 5
million in 2022. Because sorme spendimng werl Beyong bodoget, the wolal expenses
chirmbed by only PS4 rralhon, or 188, rgrm 2021 Dezpime Lthiz, L nevertheless had g
lavorabile overall mpact on NATCOD MBAI's operations, producing e bigoer
comprehensye inoomes ol PE1 millicn in 2022 than P4.43 million in 2021.

The [apt Lhat Lotal gssets chmbed by P1S1E malhon, o 18.31%, [rome F27.01 rmllieron
2022 o PELAS rallion i 2021 s wery siamhcanl andd shosws bowey comrmilled our
marmnmbers dre Lo NMBAL The ingreaze imn aszels was due Lo Lhe P11.39 million in lcans
and other receivables.

s of Decermber 31, 2022, NMBAI had F1672 rmullizn in cash and cazh egquivalents,
which was roace gp ol Lthe Tollgwing; Cazhom Banks ol P12.092 million and
investments of P4.014 million.

The net cash flow for 2022 is PZra20 rmilhion. The myesbmenls 1o Lthe UITF
L deposils arewhal caused Lhe Tunds Lo dechne

The current mvestinant portdolio of RkBA] are nil Invesumert Trust Fond
Bayanihan Fund (UITF MBA Pooled Investment created by Rimansi is now
al P3o.a7 millign, government securilies as our Suananty Fured of P2<410 mullion and
Lirme deposils of P12.00 rvallion.

The fmancial slalaments ol MATCCO MBAl as of Decermber 31, 20212, were audiled by
AT & Azzociaies, aur exlernal auditor.

The MEB& wall cortirese 1 beom overall surpluz m e corvimgg vear, even Feoncdiiions
are sl diffizult @od hard g owe conunges Lo imelsmeni the new sirdlegy o 2019 Lo

g . O

EORAHAYDA A. CAFIRMA



G, NATCCO

COMMITTEE
REPORTS

NATCCO MBAI



CORPORATE

GOVERNANCE
COMMITTEE

ATTY. ADOLFO A. IBANEZ
COMMITTEE CHAIRPERSON

NATCCO MBAI



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

COMMITTEE MANDATE:

The Corporate Goyermance Cormrmilles [COON i Wwekad o assisl the Board ine the
performanes of Ly corporala govermanes respongibities, ingladmog the Tyngtjcns that
weere [oprmerly gszigned 1w a Nomnunauogn angd Remuneraugn ormrnillee. The CGCs
tasked with erzunng complianee with and proper obssrvance ol corporale
OUWETTENCE principles and praclices.

RESPONSIBILITIES {as stated in its charter);

o {Diverzess Lhe imiplemeartation of the torporale governance (rarmework and
perivdically reviews Lthe said ramesaork to enzare Lhal i remaing appropiels
ir hgh ol material changes w Lhe corporglion's bige, comipleaty and business
slratengy, as el gs s bosiness and regulalory @nvronmenls;

o {Diyerzess the penodic pe [ormances evaluaumn of Lhe Bogrd and ils comimn lees

sowal] ay execulive managermenl, angd conductls an annual =21l evaluation of
its performance;

o Enszuras Lhat the resulis of Lhe Board evaluation are shared, discossed, and Lhat
congralts aclion plans are developed and implememed o gdoresy e
identified areas for improvement;

e Fecommends conbimuing  educationflraiming  programs [or direciors,
azagriment of Lasksfprojecls w board commitlees, succession plan lor the
bBoad mambers and serior ohcesrs, gnd remagneralion packages [or oor e ale
and individual performa

o Adopls corporgle goreernancs policizs and ensares Lhat these me reviewed and
updated regularly, and consistently implemenled inform and subzslances,

o Proposes gndd plans relevanl tramings lor the rmemibwers of Lhe Board, and
Establishes a Mormal and ranzparent procedure e develop a policy Tor
deterrmuning Lhe remuneraton of direglors gand offcers thal iz congjslent with
the corporation's cullure and slratecgy gs el @ the buziness envrgriment m
which it operates.

[ ]
MEMBERS
1. Adolfo A, Ibanez Chairperson
2. Ryan Arthur DG. Padilla Chairperson

3, Jupiter B. Bonilla

4, Evelia Bardos Rescurce Person

5. Romeo M. Magdaong Resource Person

6. Minerva G. Tejada Resource Person



ACCOMPLISHMENTS:
Formlated |hese new policies:
21 Sustanabihly Repor/Environmental Program
2.2 Allermative Crzpute Resolulion Mechansm
2. 3 Suncession Planming Pohcy (for BOT, Dilicers and managemenl
2.4 Evalualion Form Ior Oiligers (Secretary, Tieasarer
Revised Election Code
Momingled candidates for 2022 BOT ElecLion
Dilliciated Lhe 2022 eleclion [or Regular and Independanl Board of

Declared the following BOT;
Atty. Adolfo A Ibanez  Indgpendent Tiysles, June 20K2
Ryan Arthur DG. Padilla Independery, Tigsies, June 2022
Romeo M, Magdaong Regular Trustee, June 2022
Angel P. Garcia, Jr. Regular Trustee, June 2022

Creetings of goodwall ancd prosperivy rormeseo officers and stall o

of procuclive and dynarmic operation has pazsed. Your officers and managsimenl,
Frawe been relenessly sealong ways Lo deliver Lhe oplinnum service Lhal yog desan e,
e peviesiec] and updated our pelicies oo comply wilh govermament rules and o make

FE T EEEOT LD Serves v betler. Qoo and relevant policies don’ corme Mo
Lhirvanr. These gre Lhe rezull of a conirmnmg stucy of their relevances o your needs and
of the ervitonment, Hanee, your obpec leee feedback ard evaloglicon of our poboes gre
crilical Lo rmaking Lhese polices uselul, May we engourane you e e aotive and candid
ir o nionrg e ellecliveness ard relesances of our policiss? Sier all, yoo ares e vary
regsen (or Lhe exsience ol NATCOCO MEAL

MABUHAY ang NATCCO MBAI!

Adolfo A. Ibahez



AUDIT
COMMITTEE

MR. AYAN ARTHUR DG. PADILLA
COMMITTEE CHAIRPERSOMN

NATCCO MBAI



AUDIT COMMITTEE

COMMITTEE MANDATE:

The Audit Comrmntse s astablished w aphange ng ouersjight capabibly ower the
compary's himancal reporting, internal cortrol systern, irjermal and exlermsl agdin
procesges, and complisnoe wilh applicable laws and regulations. The commi Lee
shouldd be cormiposed of an leazl, Lhree ap propnately gualiied non executive directors,
Lhe magpority of whomm, mcluching the Chairman, should bBe independent. &1 of the
miarnbers of e cormriliee mgst have relevam background, knowledge, skills, and/or
expanance jn \he areas of acoounting, guditing arnd inancg. The Chairman of the
AucdiL Cormrmtles shogld ney be Lhe chairman of Lhe Board or of any olher
committees.

RESPONSIBILITIES {as stated in its charter);

e Recommends the approval of Lhe Inlernal Audit Chartenr (1A Charler], whach
fearrmally delines the robe ol Inlermal Sgchil and Lher g, plarn gs sl a5 o sees
Lhe implermartaion of the & Charler;

e Through the Inkermal Auditwr {1&), monivors and svalaales the adeguacy and

e Lreenasy of the corporation's mternal conlro svsterm, integrigy of [Inangisl
reporung, and secanly of physical and informangn azsels. well
internal control procecdures and processes thal waill provide g spsien of chechls
and balances should be in place in order to:

(a] saleguard the company’s resources and ensure Lheir ellecjve ulilizauon

(b prevenl occarrences of fragd and ok mregalaniies,

prodech [he soouracy and rehatalivy of the cormpany’s finanoal data, and

{d} ensure comphance with applicable laws and regulaions,

e FRucommniends Lhe appomlment and remcoyval of the company s exlermal audnor.

o Aszezung Lhe inkegrity gand mdependance of gxlarnal guditors

o Exmigising eflectre oversighl o orevigw amd monivor the egterngl aud
independence and ohecialy; and

o Ewercising effechvs gversight o reviesy arvd momlor Lhe elleciiveness of Lhe
audilt process, Llakang mle consderation relevanlt Philppine professional and
regulatory requirements.

o Puor o lhe cammencemenl of Lhe audi, discusses with the Exlernal audior
Lthe naluyre, scope and expenzes o the aoadi, and emewres Lhe proper
coorchinauon af more Lhan one agcil [irmm s imvalved in Lhe aolvily W0 secyra
prHaper coverage and riunimige duphcauon of eilors;

e Evaluatesand determines the non awddin, weark, il arvy, of Lhe Esternal Sadilor, and
periodically reviews the non audn (ees paid 1o the Exverngl Suchivon im relalicn o
Lhe e fees pand LG him and w the corporalion’s overall corsullancy expanses.



The committee should disallow any non audn, wrk Lhal will confhcl with his
duties ay an Extermal Auchilon or may pose athreal wo bz inge pendence. The non
il work, F allgred], should be ghisclozed n Lhe corporation’s anmgal Repon,
and anrgal Comporale Governance Reporl;

o  Ruowvisyws ancl approyes the Interrm and Anngal Finanoal Slatemenys balore Lheir
subimmszicon W Lhe Board, walh partcalar femg s o Lhe folleraarg roallers:

«Any change’s n accounting policies and praclices

= Aream where a sigmicant armounlt of pudgmenl has been exercised;
= Signiflicant adjustments resoling o bhe audil;

=  Going concern assumptions;

= Cornplignes wilth gooounimg slandards, and,

Complignee wath Lax, legal and regulanry reguirernmsnls,

o FReviews Lhe dispusmion of the recommendations in Lhe Extermal aodivors
management letter;

o Farforrma pwarzight Munchionzs over the corporabion's Inlermal and External
agudilors, U engures the independence of ingernal amnd Exerngl audilons, and
that both audilor: ara given unresiricled socess (oall records, properies ard
personne 1o enable thamn w parfarm Lheir respacive audit [umcLions;

o {omrdinales, mmomlors and [acilitates  comphance  with laws, rules and
requlalions, recommeands Lo Lhe Board Lhe appoimtment, reappointment,
remval and fees of the Exlernal auditor, duly acorediled by Lhe Cormmmissn,
who undenaks: an independent godit of the corporaucon, and proyides an
obpe; e gssurance on Lhe manner by which the linanoal sialemenils should ba

ol and presentsd W Lhe members

MEMBERS:
1. Ryan Arthur DG. Padilla Chairperson
2. Adolfo A, Ibanez Chairperson

3. Ellen R. Pastores

4. Ma. Veronica B. Sierra * Resource Person

5. Angel P. Garcia, Jr. Rescurce Person

6. Zorahayda A. Cafirma Resource Person

7. Minerva G. Tejada Rescurce Person
May 2022 / ** June



ACCOMPLISHMENTS:
wWaliddated Lhe 2021 &F 5 and recormrmended iLs approval Lo the Board of

Racormrmenged Souing Mala Calica & Azuocales (AMC & Associates) as the
External Auditor for 2022
appomled M Robelo & abao az Lhe Inkernal auditor of MATOOO MEBAL

Y Al Comimilles rermams shesdlast and commulled o ypholding ils mandate
as providedd [or jnoes cormrnlee Charter, Ag such, due yvalidation of our 2021 AFS has
Becn cormpleted and the BOT has subseguen Uy approresc suach, 1L s roleysor by
Lthial during the recently conclodso el e bing wilh ogr exlemal auditor, &pd4C &
Acgiciales, Lhey hove mentioned Lhal oo Agso st ion is Bery ran vl

currenl Managemant angd BOT.

WiLh recards Lo inkernal convral, our internag| aadilor, M Rebert Abwo, has
contduciad cerlam imemaews of our Mansgerment and siall as well a2 a review of our
Fisk Pegister. His azsessment led barm Lo conclude that the NATCCO MBAI is not
exposed] Woary signilicanl nzk: Lhal can e desmed ez cntical or of hegh mmpact Lo
our Asscciation.

Botorn hine, boa b exlermal and mternal assessmenls madeal eadent thal our
Association is in good hands.

RYAN ARTHUR DG. PADILLA
COMMITTEE CHAIRPERSON



PRODUCT
REVIEW AND

DEVELOPMENT
COMMITTEE

MR. ROMEQ M. MAGDA EIHG
COMMITTEE CHAIRPERSON

NATCCO MBAI



PRODUCT REVIEW AND DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

COMMITTEE MANDATE:

In response W the constandly changmg needys of members, Lhe Produst Reyiew ad
Ceveloprmenl (PRO} Cormrmmles i orealad. Lowill conduct penodic reveeaes of Current
procducts and condocl ressarchoin order Lo develop new responsive products and

SPONSIBILITIES (as stated [nits charter):
. Raview o current procduacts and serces
. ssess product performance ol all existing progducls and services at least
once a year.
* Prowids recorrmendations in lermes of maEmnlenance, enhandermenl o
and services.
° products and services
o Corducl markal research and swodes o order o corme up eahom
and gpphcat:le products and seraces [or 1the members 2L leasl pnce g year.
° Evalualien of Inzurance Parlnarshag
° Fullill oLher duties or responsitalines relaled o producy, rewviewse 2rd
cleve|oprmant as delegated by Lhe Board of Troslees [rarm lmes Lo Lrme.

MEMBERS:
1. Remeo M. Magdaong Chairperson
2. Ryan Arthur DG. Padilla Chairperson

3, Jupiter B. Bonilla

4. Minerva G. Tejada Rescurce Person

ACCOMPLISHMENTS:
1. Recommendesd Lhe MMBA| &rogg. 4 bazic lile mearance product for imembers

2. Racpmmended parimsrshag with non lifz msarance comiparny Lo promote
life wrsurance producis o esesting NATCI0 MEBA| partner Cooperal ives
3. Sl vy Lo decregzse Lhe acloal opergling eapernses of the assocrlbon.



In compliancs wilh s mancale Lo conduct market iesearch and studies inorder Lo
come up with in dermand and gpphcabile products and services lor Lhe members, the
cornulles recormmendaed the MMBAL Araga Plan. L is a Basic e msuranee prodycl
for members Torenaywghle up we 20 years old. To increase prooducy, oilenmgs,
Lhe Zormmijllee recormmended 3 partnership wath 2 non life insurance company 1o
promote and offer non hife inswiance products W o exasbing NATOCD MBAL parlier
cooperatives. As delegated by Lhe BLT, Lhe PRD Cornrmiles sludied wiays ko decregse
the aciual gdrimistraliveg expense of 1the azsoogbien. We conbinually respond w tha
constantly changing needs ol RMMBALD pariners and members.

ROMEO M. MAGDAONG
Committee Chairperson



INVESTMENT
COMMITTEE

M5, ZORAHAYDA A. CAFIRMA
COMMITTEE CHAIRPERSDHN

NATCCO MBAI



INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

COMMITTEE MANDATE:

Qe ol the responsibiblies of Lhe NATCOO MBAI Board of Trustees az indicaled m Lha
HATCC O MBAI Amended Bylawes, Section W1 Board of Trustees, item ¢, “to invest the
farpcis of MATCOO MBAT 0y other corporalons or for sach purposes oltesr dharr Dhoses
for wfughy Lhre Agsocialion wias orgarisocd, sobpecl 0 sneh apprpval of the roernbers gy
may be required by faw

With Lhizs, the Boand of Truslees has oreatsd the Invesiment Camrmillae Lo help the
body come up wilh recormrnendglons relatmg o inveshiment polcy, gudelnes and
performance.

To ad Lthe Board of Truztess, Board Resclution 15 2018 daled June 18, 2018 was
prassed, crealmg the Invesymenn, Cormrmil e,

RESPONSIBILITIES {as stated in its charter);

o ormrmallee shall have aocess o any of the gssocauon's relevant
docurnents arnd records Lhal are necessary for il Lo Carmy oun s dutess,

o The commniLLes riay reguire an calfger or ernployes 10 allend ezl sl
commualtes rmselings [or the purpose of ebraming mformation relevant
Lop Wb cormrmi Lee's oy lies, excep as Lhe board may probubil.

. Eszlablizh the grsocianions imvestmert, pobces and oguidehnes g revizyy
them regularly.

J kionitor the mwesimenl [unds' paerlarmeanes, mslading the imipacl on tha
association's policies and guidelines.

. konivor, ratain o replace mveslmant managers and the porliolio's
investment funds.

. Review Lha comemillee meambers’ backgrounds o ensure no conlhicls of
interest exist.

. Inbesr pared, irwestimen, policies andg resobve assocrled gueslions about the

o Ravienw leas imeurred by he poantfoho W ensure Lhey  re reasonable.

. Selecl, ot and replace Lhird parky advizors and congullames of Lthe
poriiolio [ar elfecliversss and approprialensss of respons balikes,

o Stay current with changes in laws and eqgulglons and  prepars
amerdments L Lhe portiolo as reguired,



MEMBERS:

crahayda A. Cafirma Chairperson
llen R. Pastores Chairperson
Romeo M, Magdaong

inerva G. Tejada Rescurce Person

ACCOMPLISHMENTS:
1. Crafted the NATCCO MBAI Investment Policy
2. Recomrmended addmonal armount e e anwvazsied i BRF| Bayanihan Fund and
Lo brank s meveshment producls

The Irwesiment Cormimalles was eslablished try (he Board of Trozstess o assisl the
bBody m (errmalating recommendationsg  abooy rreeziment policy, oriteng, and
performance.

The Irnvestrment Cornrmmlles went over s Invesymenl ooy, stancarcds, and Charler.
iviorally, Lhe [ollowing i suogoesled:

Famlamirig the regquired farnds for the 2 months expenses and capital
expenditures;

Time deposils al epuolably banks, gowerprnenl securities, and UITF
investments.

Wi or thee Invesiment Cormamilles baheve that Lhe HMBA's investments are being
ellectively managed and are n g lendamentally sound position, as staed n the
aydned hinancgl stalamenls

b fe O

1

W
ZORAHAYDA A. CAFIRMA
Committee Chairperson



MARKETING
COMMITTEE

MR. JUPITER B. BOMNILLA
COMMITTEE CHAIRPERSDOHN

NATCCO MBAI



MARKETING COMMITTEE

COMMITTEE MANDATE:

To help achiewe the instilubienal vision of 200,000 mernbers by 2025 g 10 sel thae
shrategic mankgung dweg bon of NATCOO MEBA

RESPONSIBILITIES {as stated in its charter);

o Assist and guide the saopialicn in the developrment of Lhe markeling plans
and gelnaties inong idsnfed dirscuon.

o Evaluale, review and recommend Lhe markeling plans of HATOCD MEBAL

° sure adegquale esources and proper usage of Lhe rmanketing hond

the strategic

o Fullill riher elulies and responsibilibes relgred w lhe Markaling Comrnillze s

riay be direcled by Lhe Board of Trostsey

MEMBERS:
1. Jupiter B. Bonilla Chairperson
2. Mildred C. Cerezo Chairperson

3. Ryan Arthur DG. Padilla

4, Minerva G. Tejada Rescurce Person
5. Jeninna DJ. Dela Cruz Resource Person
ACCOMPLISHMENTS:

1. Approved corporale gryeaways lor pariner copperatyves, Released n May [or
Lhe celebration of NATCCO MBal Anmal fMeeling angd December for the
Chrestrngs and Mew Yean celsbnation.

Raviswed Lhe Kaagapay Proogram of HaAaTCOCO MBal

Cralied new marketing names and logos For HMATOOD MBS producLs
NMBAI PLANADO Basic Lile Insurance Plan {BLIF) lor Lhe Frimcipal
Plermbiers and Lherr gepandsn
NMBAI PROTEKTADO ELIP [t the Pringipal Members and Lheir
depandenis wilh Telal and Permanen) Cisatalivg (TRPD) coverage (or
Principal Members
NMBAI PANATAG ELIF Ior Principal Members andd ther dependents and
g Hozpital Ingome Benelit (HIB) coverags for Principal Members
NMBAI SIGURADO  ELIP Igr Pringipal Members and ther dependents,
TPD arvd HIB lor Principal Members
NMBAI ARUGCA BLIF lor Prncipal Marmbers goges 65



NMBAI YAMANG PROTEKTADC  Credil Lile Insarance Plan {CLIPY Lhat
insures the Members principal loar armoun and will be payakble v (he
cooperalive or member's benaelciary in caze of Membear Borrower's
untimely death

This yaar, the rmarketng commulles (oo uses il eflons on rebrandimng the
gruocialion’s products and cregling speciic logas to represent each product
prachage. Rebranding can be a povearlul markeling sirakegy o mprove Lhe valboe
pHEposiuon of Ihe associauon. By ewihving Lhe brand idenliey Loabgn wilh e
assoralipn’s mission anc goals, our rebrancmg eflorl can belp w communicate
Bretler the value that NMEBAL provides looals mermibers and stakeholders,

Additionally, & retrrand can also belp diflerertizie the NEFBAL rorm CormpeLiors m
Lthe markelplace, increass mermber engagement and retenion rales, and aract
new members whe may have previogsly owverlooked the azsoralion,

JUPITER B. BONILLA
COMMITTEE CHAIRPERSON



MANAGEMENT
INFORMATION

SYSTEM
COMMITTEE

MR. RYAN ARTHUR DG. PADILLA
COMMITTEE CHAIRPERSDOHN

NATCCO MBAI



MANAGEMENT INFORMATION SYSTEM COMMITTEE

COMMITTEE MANDATE:

In response W Lhe conglanily changing needs of gur members, Lhe Board of Trosloes
decmed L necessary 1o cregle Managernent Informnglion System (MIS) Cormmilles
which will conduct periodic reviews of [T's besl praclices angd decide on whal, arg Lhe
micesk applicatls lor Lhe Associalion.

RESPONSIBILITIES {as stated in its charter);
Review of current micro insurance system;
Proweds recormmendations in lerms of mamnlenance, enhandemenl o
out of the system;

o Tondurl malkel ressarch and siugdies i order Voo gl micsl

apphcatre syslem Lo be gzed for the entre e msurancs processes;
Review and recommend all IT relagled reguirermenis of Lhe Associabicrn; arnd
Evaluate and recommend partnership with 3

MEMBERS:
1. Ryan Arthur DG. Padilla Chairperson
2. Romec M. Magdaocng Vice Chairperscn

3. Ma. Veronica B. Sierra*
4. Angel P. Garcia, Jr.**

5. Minerva G. Tejada Rescurce Person

ACCOMPLISHMENTS:
1. Pengchs reyisve of the NATOCO MEBAL Insurancs Systern and its mstallaiion i
partner cooperatives
2. Swched Lhe prumible effecls and changes of Lhe MMBA| syslem beoause of the
IFRZTY, Lhe new agoounlingg reporling sysierm, Lhal wall be rmplantsd Lo MEAs

3. Pawvized Lhe MATCCOO MBA: Daly Privagy Policy,

Lk Lhe use of our cunenl Micrainsurance System developed for us by Brothers
Planagement Systern, our gssecalion has expenenged onparallsled elicency m

variggs memiber dala especially in the aregs of member 2nrollment aned
claimes processing. Such efliciency hoaever dermanded a revisimg



and a revision of gur Dala Privacy Pobgy whegh the cormamities had alreagy
completed.

Wour bMIS Commulles remaing comuamtted Woensuarmng thal the Micioimnsorances
Syslar s able o acddress our gssocialion's demands m an aalomaled manner gy we
make ourselves IFRS17

Iry |irve b thas, Lhe Managernent bas beeromsiracied to contings Lhe rollog of Lthe
said system to our parkner copperalives which hgwe nol beneliled yel Irom such,

RYAN ARTHUR DG. PADILLA
COMMITTEE CHAIRPERSON



POLICY

REVIEW
COMMITTEE

M5, EVELIA BARDOS-TIZON
COMMITTEE CHAIRPERSDN

NATCCO MBAI



POLICY REVIEW COMMITTEE

COMMITTEE MANDATE:

Ome of Lhe parwvers of the MATOCD MEBAI Board of Trustses i
“Eroacrt [irre Lo (Frme, garorrieona e rules an recufairns consslent wilh (hess
gt [0 rewie, renase o arnencd Lhe samie wher A dearny pecassary for the

rmanagement
of L dssocialion's Dusinesy angd affars” (MATOCD MEAI Brylaws Arl G, S 1,

T ad the Boargd of Truzlees, Board RezalyLion # 24 2020 dated July 11, 2020
prassed, creaung the Pohoy Review Comevles (POLREVCT M),

A% stated in the PBOLREVCOM Charter, the responsibilities of the committes are
as follows:

Rawvizyy of pohces and recommend revesons, il any, o Lthe BOT

= Pangchs reyigwy of all exsling operation

. pohcy adwch nseds grgent allention, as directed by the BOT
= Corfprrmiy with changes in the HNMBA] Ervlaves and regulalory

Develop alther policies related Lo Lthe Tuncions of Lthe POLREWCOOM,

MEMBERS:
velia Bardos Chairperson
llen R. Pastores Chairperson

dolfc A. lbanez

a. Veronica B. Sierra * Rescurce Person
ngel P. Garcia, Jr. ** Resource Person
orahayda A. Cafirma Resource Person
inerva G. Tejada Resource Person



ACCOMPLISHMENTS:

Reviewed and updated the following pclicies:
1. Employee Benefits Policy
Compensaticn Policy
Recruitment Pclicy
Cornparsalion Policy with Salary Strucliore
Foligy Rewess Commmlles Chanler

vk W

The Borard of Troslizes s Lhe lone al the top. &nd Lhe besl way it can sel the direclion
ol MATOCD MBAL while kaeping abreust wilth regqulatory mandales and proactively
acldress loresesn challengss and opportunities, 1p L formulate andfor revies policies
The 2022 POLREVCOM Lakes pride in baing nslramentgl i pohoy making, which is
one Gf Lhe major (uncuons of Lhe

]

EVELIA BARDOS
Committee Head
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NATCCO MBAI

2022-2023 BOARD OF TRUSTEES

EVELIA BARDOS-TIZON ELLEN R. PASTORES
CHAIRPERSON VICE-CHAIRPERSON

JUPITER B. BONILLA ROMEO M. MAGDAONG ANGEL P. GARCIA, JR.
TRUSTEE TRUSTEE TRUSTEE




NATCCO MBAI

2022-2023 BOARD OF TRUSTEES

ATTY. ADOLFO IBANEZ RYAN ARTHUR PADILLA
INDEPENDENT TRUSTEE INDEPENDENT TRUSTEE

-

MILDRED C. CEREZO ZORAHAYDA CAFIRMA ROBERT A. ABAO MINERVA G. TEJADA
SECRETARY TREASURER AUDITOR PRESIDENT




2022-2023
COMMITTEES
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NATCCO MBAI
COMMITTEES

°®

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
b

» 4 & &

EVELLA BARDOS-TIZON ELLEM R. PASTORES MIMERYA G, TEJADA ZORAHAYDA A CAFIRMA
CHAIRPERSOM VICE CHAIRPERSCM MEMBER MEMBER

AUDIT COMMITTEE

WITH BOARD RISK OVERSIGHT AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION COMMITTEE

>

LA AYAN ARTHUR DG. PADILLA ATTY. ADDOLFO A, IBAREZ ELLEM R. PASTORES
CHAIRPERS QM VL E CHAIRFERSCM MEMBER
3
aF
N
P, UEﬁbHitﬁ. B. SIERRA AMNGEL P. GARCIA, 1R. MIMERYA G. TEJADA ZORAHAY D A CAFIRMA

RESEFUEGE PERSCON RESSURCE PERSON RESCQURCE PERSON BESOURCE PERSON

NATCCO MBAI




NATCCO MBAI
COMMITTEES

°®

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

WITH NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

3

¢ >

ATTY, AD‘DLFDA IBAEEE RYAN ARTHUR DG, F'F«DILLP-. JUPITER B. BOMILLA
CHAIRFPERS VICE CHAIRPERS HMEMBER
EVELLA BARDOS-TIZOMN ROMEDQ M. MAGDACMG MINERWA C. TEJADA,
RESCOURCE PERSOM RESOURCE PERSON RESOURCE PERSON
MANAGEMENT INFORMATION SYSTEM (MIS)

{

COMMITTEE

3

Ry .ﬂ.ﬁTHL.I-ﬁ' DG, PADILLA  ROMED M. MAGDACMNG AMGEL P. GARCIA, JH. MIMERVA G. TEJAD A,
-’_'H;_".'Ihl-‘EH'EnL?l"J VICE CHAIRPERSON MEMBER HESUHIRUE PERSDLNN

NATCCO MBAI



NATCCO MBAI
COMMITTEES

°®

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

L o8

ZORAHAYDA A, CAFIRMA, ELLEM R. PASTORES ROMED M, MACDADNG MINERWVA G. TEJADA
CHAIRPERSCN VICE CHAIRPERSCMN MHMEMBER RESOQURCE PERZON

MARKETING COMMITTEE

7 4 v ﬁ

JUPITER B. BONILLA MILDRED C. CEREZQ RYAN ARTHUR DG, PADILLA MINERVA G. TEJAD A
C_':J;i‘F!:F’_.FF-!ﬁﬁ-:"J VICE CHAIRPERS QM MEMBER RESQURCE PERSON

NATCCO MBAI




NATCCO MBAI
COMMITTEES

POLICY REVIEW COMMITTEE

» 8 &

EVELIA BARDCS-TIZOM ELLEN R. PASTORES ATTY. ADOLFO A, IBAREZ
CHAIRPERSON WICE CHAIRPERSON HMEMBER

AMNGEL P. CARCIA, IR, JORAHAY DA A CAFIRMA MIMERWVA G. TEJADA
RESOURCE PERSOMN RESOURCE PERSOMN RESCLURCE PERSON

NATCCO MBAI
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Management Team

From left to right:

MMa. Elizabeth &quino (M5 Assaciate), Jennifer
Estocada {Claims Unit Head),

Sunshine Mariano (Accounting Staffl, Yani Yugo
[Accounting LUnit Head), Minerva Tejada
[President), Jenifia Dela Cruz (Marketing
Officer], Armel Jairus Patawaran fAccounting
Staff], Ma. Cherish Solsona (MIS Unit Head], and
Dhonna Francisco [Administrative Assistant].
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NATCCOMBAlI ¢*¢

1th Annual Meeting
May 31, 2022 | Via Zoom
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' NATCCOMBAlI ¢*¢

Management Monthly Meeting 2022

® February

VAN BN
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' NATCCOMBAlI ¢*¢

Management Monthly Meeting 2022

@ July ® August

NATCCO MBAI



NATCCO MBAI

Webinar 2022

@ Learning Session: All about Microinsurance Product & Services

i
Learming Session

all aboul Microinsurance

Froducts ang Sendice

R __

with NATCCO MBAI management team last February 18, 2022

® Ako Naman Muna: Healing & Selfcare

wel B M i~ mEw
ol oo B RS B R
" FAER L

with Mr. Michael Lu and Ms. Niftia Maricheliz Ubalde of Mindwell.PH last August 4, 2022

® Financial Smart Goals
WATOE O WAL WRRTRAR %

oLl A L

[ y F

N
. s ¥ fony
= A ‘ L : .-

with Ms. Caroline Dalofin, CIA, AWP-AEPP, Unit Manager of Phoenix Prulife UK last October 7, 2022

® Christmas Party with Partner Cooperatives

m A FuLLal fe.

Chitistmas Paidy
L !.'IZ:TI MEL

gt NG < The - i
Masquerade Christmas Party with Partner Cooperatives last December 15, 2022

NATCCO MBAI




NATCCOMBAlI ¢*¢

Exploring Partnership with New Cooperatives through
Microinsurance Product

La Trinidad Vegetable Trading Post Multipurpose Cooperative last November 8, 2022 at La Trinidad
Benguet

AN DN
N
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NATCCOMBAlI ¢*¢

Exploring Partnership with New Cooperatives through
Microinsurance Product

Cordillera Overseas Contract Workers & Families MPC last November 9, 2022 at Loakan Road

Baguio City

4 - e BN

Stobosa and Community Consumers Cooperative last November 9, 2022 at La Trinidad Benguet

Baguio Entrepreneurs Credit Coop last November 10, 2022 at Kisad R. Baguio City

4

A NATCCO MBAI
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NATCCO MBAI

Process Orientation with Partner Cooperatives

Taloy Farmers Multipurpose Cooperative

NEC Multi-Purpose Cooperative
o TP'H'Z'-_. D ::""fit'_ | £=
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o NATCCO MBAI



' NATCCOMBAlI ¢*¢

Sending out First Aid Kit to Partner Cooperatives |
May 2022

VAN BN
N o NATCCO MBAI
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NATCCO MBAI

Midterm Development Plan & Review &
Team Building
June 16-19, 2022 | Lola Corazon Leisure Farm, Pampanga

LAK REVIEW
N TEAM BurLom:

N - NATCCO MBAI



NATCCO MBAI

Oath Taking of New Board of Directors & Officers

June 16-19, 2022 | Lola Corazon Leisure Farm, Pampanga
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NATCCOMBAlI ¢*¢

Lakbay Aral with CARE MBA

August 18, 2022 | St. Jude Cooperative Hotel & Event Center, Quezon
Province
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' NATCCOMBAlI ¢*¢

Action Planning
August 19, 2022 | St. Jude Cooperative Hotel & Event Center, Quezon Province
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' NATCCOMBAlI ¢*¢

Lakbay Aral with Nan Shan Life Insurance Co., Ltd.
December 9, 2022 | Taipei, Taiwan

AN DN
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NATCCOMBAlI ¢*¢

Sending of Giveaways to Partner Cooperatives
December 2022
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NATCCO MBAI o®
MICROINSURANCE PRODUCTS

NMBAI SIGURADO

The ultimate coverage, BLIP for Principal
Members and their dependents, with TPD
and HIB for Principal Members.

NMBAI PLANADO

Basic Life Insurance Plan (BLIP) for the
Principal Members and their dependents.

NMBAI PROTEKTADO

BLIP for Principal Members and their
dependents with Total and Permanent
Disability (TPD) coverage in case of disability
due to accident or illness of the Principal
—— Member.

N\
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NATCCO MBAI o®
MICROINSURANCE PRODUCTS

NMBAI PANATAG

BLIP for Principal Members and their
dependents and a Hospital Income Benefit
(HIB) coverage that will provide financial
assistance in case of Principal Member's
hospital confinement.

NMBAI ARUGA

BLIP for Principal members with ages 65-75

NMBAI YAMANG PROTEKTADO

Credit Life Insurance Plan (CLIP) that insures
the Member’s principal loan amount and will
be payable to the cooperative in case of
Member-Borrower's untimely death

O\
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- NATCCO MBAI
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¢ NATCCO MBAI :
COOPERATIVE PARTNERS

NCR

 Department Of Agrarian Reform Multi-Purpose Cooperative

» Mindoro Occidental Sustainable Skills Multi-Purpose
Cooperative

e NEC Multipurpose Cooperative

e Red Ribbon Multi-Purpose Cooperative

LUZON

e Bacarra Multi-Purpose Cooperative

e Batong Paloway Agrarian Reform Cooperative

e Bayanihan Hundred Islands Arc

e Buklod Ng Buhay Arc Multi-Purpose Cooperative

e Camsur Multi-Purpose Cooperative

e Del Rosario Multi-Purpose Cooperative

e Dur-As Savings and Credit Cooperative

e Five Star Multi-Purpose Cooperative

e Gp-125 Golden Pance Multi-Purpose Cooperative

e Labo Progressive Multi-Purpose Cooperative

e Lourdes Multi-Purpose Cooperative

e Manguyang Agrarian Reform Beneficiaries Cooperative
e Mansalay Agriculture and Fisheries Development Cooperative
e Nabua Development Multi-Purpose Cooperative
e Northern Quezon Saving and Credit Cooperative
e Pangasinan Savings and Credit Cooperative

e Payompon Development Cooperative

e Pili Market Development Cooperative

2o

e Pingkian Multi-Purpose Cooperative

NATCCO MBAI




¢ NATCCO MBAI :
COOPERATIVE PARTNERS

LUZON

e Samahan Sa lkauunlad ng Pamayanan Multipurpose
Cooperative

e Samahang Magsasaka ng Brgy. Sta Maria Agrarian Reform
Cooperative

e San Isidro Development Cooperative

e San Miguel Farmers and Fishers Multi-Purpose Cooperative

e San Nicolas Multipurpose Cooperative

e San Ramon Multi-Purpose Cooperative

e Self Reliant Team of Palawan Multi-Purpose Cooperative

e Srt Puerto Princesa Cooperative of Palawan Multi Purpose
Cooperative

e St. Anthony Development Cooperative

e Talisayon Multi-Purpose Cooperative-San Lorenzo Ruiz
Branch

e Taloy Farmers Multipurpose Cooperative

VISAYAS

e Cadiz City Credit Cooperative

e Dumangas Agrarian Reform Cooperative

e Guimaras Brethren Multi Purpose Cooperative

e Hda Maria Multi-Purpose Cooperative

e Northern Samar Savings And Credit Cooperative

e Panay Agrarian Reform Cooperative

e Southern Negros Agrarian Reform Cooperative

» Development Workers For Savings And Credit Cooperative
e Holy Child Multi-Purpose Cooperative

2o

NATCCO MBAI




¢ NATCCO MBAI :
COOPERATIVE PARTNERS

MINDANAO

e Alipao Multi-Purpose Cooperative

e Bacbacan Multi-Purpose Cooperative

e Baclay Multi-Purpose Cooperative

 Dagohoy Multi-Purpose Cooperative

 Dalawinon Farmers Multipurpose Cooperative

e Davao De Oro Credit Cooperative

e Glansar Credit Cooperative

 Kabangasan Mapua Dahilig Arc Coop

e Katilingbanong Programa Sa Maayong Panglawas-
Kinaugalingong Paningkamot Multipurpose Cooperative

» Kauswagan Agrarian Reform Beneficiaries Multipurpose
Cooperative

e Kisandal Multi Purpose Cooperative

e La Libertad Agrarian Reform Beneficiaries Cooperative

e Limbahan Small Coconut Farmers and Women Multipurpose
Cooperative

 Millennial Credit Cooperative

« Nagkahiusang Mag-Uuma Sa Guinhalinan Dev't. Cooperative

e Springside Arb Irrigators and Farmers Multipurpose
Cooperative

e Sta. Cruz Multi-Purpose Cooperative

e Zamboanga Sibugay Credit Cooperative

e Zanorte Community Credit Cooperative

2o
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BUIEE WELL INSURANCE

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of Mational Confederation of Cooperatives Mutual Benefits
Association (NATCCO MBAJ, Inc. = responsibbs for the preparation and fair presentation of
the finencial statements including the schedules attached therein, for the years ended
December 31, 2022 and 2021, in accordance with the prescribed financal reporing framework
indicated therein, and for such intemal contral as management determines is necessary to
enabie the preparation of financial statements that are free from materal misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial stalements, management is responsible for assessing the
Aszzociation's ability to continue as a going concemn, disclosing, as applicabie matters related
to going concem and using the going concemn basis of accounting unless management either
intends to iquidate the Association or to cease operalions, or has no realistic allermative but
o do s0.

The Board of Trusiees is responsible for overseeing fthe Association's financial
reporting process.

The Board of Trustees reviews and approves the financial statemeants including the schedulas
altached therein, and submils the same o the members of the Assockation.

AMC & Associates and Banaria, Banaria and Company, CPAs, the independent auditors,
appointad by the Board of Trusiees for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021,
respeciively, have audited the financial statements of the Associstion in accordance with
Phifippine Standards on Auditing and in their report o the members have expressed their
opinion on the faimess of presentation upon completion of such audit.

R MINERVA G. TEJADA
BOT Chairpe P

ZORAHAYDA A. CAFIRMA
Board Treasurar

Signed this 39 day of Apri 2023

MATOED MUTUAL BEREFITS ASSOCIATION 1NE.
22710 pAL 5T, PEQUECT &, 1509 OUEDON OTY, PHILIFPMNES
wew mabopomnbai.ong  Telephane Mo, {321 25623508
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Board of Trustees and Members 227 |.P. Rizal 5, Bayanithan
MNational Confederation of Cooperatives Project 4, Quezon City
Mutual Benefita Association (NATCCO MBA), Inc.

(A Non-Stock, Non-Profit Association)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of National Confederation of Cooperatives Mutual
Benefits Association (NATCCO MBA), Ine (the Association), which comprise the statements
af financial position as at December 31, 2022, and the statement of comprehensive income,
statement of changes in fund balance and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Association as at December 31, 2022, and its financial performance and
its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards (PFRS) applicable to Mutual Benefits Associations (MBAs}.

Basis for Cprinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (I'5A). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Audilors” Eespensibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Stnternents section of our report. We are independent of the Associabon in
accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the Phulippines (Code of Ethics)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
in the Philippines, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements, and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Crther Matter

The financial statements of WNational Confederation of Cooperatives Mutual Benefits
Association (NATCCO MBA), Inc, for the year ended December 31, 2021 which were presented
for comparative purposes, were audited by other auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion
on those financial statements on report dated April 6, 2022,

T ||:|EI4.'I:|'
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governawce for the
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fale presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with PFRS applicable to MBAs, and for such internal control as management
determimnes is necessary o enabla the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Association’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Association or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so,

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Associabon’s financial
reporting process.

Auwditors’ Responsibilities for the Awdit of the Financial Statements

Chur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whale are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, bat
is ot a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with PSA will always detect a material
misstabement when it exists. Misstaternents can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with PSA, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also;

+ ldentity and assess the risks of material misstaternent of the finandal statements, whether
due to fraud or error, deslgn and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resuliing from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

s DObtain an mderstandj,ng af imternal control relevant to the andit in order to des'tgn awdit
procedures that are appropriate in the creumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Association’s intermal control.
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* Ewvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Association’s ability ko
comtinue as a going concern, If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Cur conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Association to cease to continue s a going concern.

s Evaluate the owverall presentation, struchure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
Iransactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among othor matters, the
plarned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Cur audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial
staternents taken as a whole. The supplementary informetion for the year ended
December 31, 2022 required by the Bursau of Internal Revenue as disclosed in Note 32 of the
financial statements is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of
financial statements prepared in accordance with FFRS applicable to MBAs. Such
supplementary information is the responsibility of the management. The supplementary
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the financial
staternents and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relabion to the financial
statements taken as a whole,

AMC & ASSOCIATES

Ao 7 SELES

Jaseph Cedrie V. Calica

Partner

CPA Cert. No. 94541

TIM 163-257-226-000

PTR Mo. 9586559, Jan. 3, 2023, Makati City

BIR Accreditation No. 08-002582-1-2020
(Oct. 8, 2020 to Oct, 7, 202%)

SEC Accreditation No. 94541-5EC (Group A
(valid until 2022 andit period)

IC Accreditation No. 9454 1-1C (Group A)
(valid until Dec. 31, 2024)

BSP Accreditation No. M4541-B5P (Group B}
{valid until Dec. 31, 2025)

April 3, 2023

FIFM A CCREDITATION

Agminm, Mata, Calica & Amsociates 774
BT Avoc pedSiniSoe Mo, £275 « walid witll June 25, 2023
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NATIOMWAL CONFEDERATION OF COOFERATIVES

MUTUAL BENEFITS ASSCCIATION (NATCOO MEAJ INC,
(A MNar-Steck, Nor-Profit Associztion)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 203
{With Comparative Figures for 2021)
(gl ds Philipgeiog Pagal

2ana bl |
ASBETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cashand cash equivabent (Nl 4) F 16113085 T 36,542,935
Loan and other recelvables (Mot 5) 28,551,923 17 S 154
Financiel asget at fair valup through profit or losss (Piode 6) B0 511 5713854
Short-term fnancal assets (Toke 7) 4,00, DR -
Prepaysents (Moke §) 700,755 TEDSET
Total Careent Asset 58,566,267 i 380, 504
NOMN-CURRENT AZSETS
Financlal azsets at amartzed cost (Nake 5} 35,673,053 18,9 2675
Crher funds and deposits (hake 10) il 678,518
Property and aquipment (W 71) T84, 657 1,716,652
Total Mon-current Assets 38,536,926 21,355,855
TOTAL ASSETS P 97103213 P B1,5E7 4349
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Linbility an individual equity value {Mofe 12) P 42366175 T 37,205,783
Members contribution received i advance (Mot 13) 3415, X9 1.B03E32
Clairms payable on basic contingent benafit (Wofe 14) 2702,773 2,335 455
Opticnal benefit reserves (Wefe 15) 4,615,650 4, 17557
Claims payable on optional benefit (Wote 18) 2.033,536 1760170
Basic contingemt benefit reserve [MNate 17] 6404312 B,023,5684
Crher payables (el T3 H14.8 3.336,260
Total Current Liabilities 83,277 178
MON-CURRENT LIABILITY
Pest-employment benefits Hability o 451574
Total Lialilites 26,708,752
FUND BALANCE
Ausipned fund balance (Mot 24) 21,981,382
Revalustion surplus MNofe 24) 158,207
Fres and unassigned fund balance (Wote 24) 6,058,116 I, QER 408
Total Fund Balance 31,343,631 2, 728687
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE F 97108213 P 1,937,439
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NATIONAL CONFEDERATION OF COOPERATIVES

MUTUAL BENEFITS ASSOCIATION (NATCCO MEA), INC,

(A Non-5tock, Non-Profit Association)
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022
{With Comparative Figures for 2021}

(Amounts fn Philippine Peso)
M2z 2021
REVEMNUES
Premiums and contributions (Nate 20} P 55,901,050 51,418,866
Others (Nate 21) 459,026 1,156,939
6,360,076 52 575 BOS
EXPENSES (Note 22)
Benefit expense 19,514,083 19 442,845
Other benefit expense 18,414,448 15,952,819
Operating expenses 10,607,337 8,558,809
48 535, 668 47590 473
NET PROFIT 7.824,208 4,581,352
OTHER COMPREHEMSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
Ttems that will mot be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss
Femeasurement of
post-employment benefit cost (Note 19) 290,736 147,071 )
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME P 8,114,944 4,434,261

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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MATIONAL CONFEDERATION OF DOOFERATIVES
MUTUAL BEMEFITS ASSOCIATION (RATODO MAY, [N,
{A Nom-Efock, Mou-Frafit AssacinFiog)
STATEMENT OF CHAMGES [N FUND BALANCE
FOHE THE YEAK EMDED DRCEMDER 31, 3022

(Wit Comparabiog err‘ﬁlrm:l
[Amovrts i Fielippine Peeso)
Amaigned Fani Revaluation Tree ana Linassigned
TEalamce Barplus Fumd Balance
Mot M) Nt 243 Mok 4] Tertal
Bahinee at Jaruary 1. 7023 r nmm F ELT T LosEam T 79,738 587
Treeafir to sssigred hund balings 254,530 = [ 2,854,580 ) -
Toinl comprehesisive income for the yes - H0.735 TR [ANERCE
Balance at Deceiber ¥, 2023 [ ELR e R 148543 B G051 T 343,51
Balnce ak [amaary 7, W00 P BaEe P b S B43600 ) 15,774,425
Trensfer 10 asslgned bapd halnee 649233 - i LRI :
Totnl comnpreharsive tnceme {loss) for Bhe yoar - { MRy 43Mam ddae
Belance ot Dleverrber 51, 2021 P 035 F 13T F 1061458 F plr
Sea Motes fo Financial Strfrmemes.
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MATIONAL CONFEDERATION OF COOMERATIVES

MUTUAL BEMEFITS ASSOCTATION (MATCCO MBA), INC,
(A Nim-Stock, Nei-Frofit Asasciation)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FUR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMTER 51, 2022
(With Comparative Figures for J0F1)

iAmonnts in Philippine Pesa)

2z e
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Bet prodit r T.RM.208 P 4,581,532
Adjusinients for:
Retirement éxpense (Mofe 19) 200,738 | 187071
Deprecistion (Mo 11) 142,330 T4
Intereat inosone (Mode 27) { A6 1052032 )
Operating profit before working capétal changes 7816238 3588072
Incresse in boans ather receivablas (Yot 5) q{ 11,388,965 [ 42,700 }
[roreass in prepayments (Mot 8 [} FLIes] | 441,930 §
[rcrease in akility on individoal squity (Note 12} 5,160,302 B, 757 306
rerense (decrease) in members contribution received in sdvance (Mol T3] 611,377 | 10,105,396 )
Decreasy in post-employmient benefits Habiliy (Wie 13) i 22E5) F34.541 )
berease (decrease] in claims payeble on basic confingent benefit (Nole 14} 303,08 | A516)
Increase imoptiooal benedll reserves (Tofe 13) 4011 023 2,859,793
Increase i claims payable on optional benefit (Mote 16) 213357 7aga
Increase im basic contingent benefit reserve (Neote 17) 345,528 5,317,500
Docrease [n other payables (Mole 18) { 131,490) 1,556,505 )
Cash penemted from operations 3,439,135 6,581, 8
Iriterest received [Make 4 15,652 R
Nzt Cash From Cperating Activities 3ARAZT  _ &608T66
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Intorest recelved 425,533 1,053,550
Addidons o francisl aseets at amortlzed onst (Mafe 5 i 16;700.378) | 2,150,700 )
Additlons o short-term Francal assss Mok 1 { A0MLN0] 5
Additoes o Hoaneinl aisets trough profit or loss (Mete G i{ 2.987660] 29,208 )
Acrulsitions of property and squigasent (Nele 21) { 621345 | 452400
Additions o cither funds and deposit (Mot 10) [ ] 867 )
et Cash Ulsad ihln.'rﬂl.i:n,ﬂ Activibes i Z5BEATIT) 0 1A33TES )
MET INCREASE (DECKEASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS i 20,429,890 } 457,043
CASH AND CASH BQUIVALENTS AT BECIMNING OF YEAR Eﬁﬂ_ﬂ'ﬂﬁ 35742
CASH AMND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR (Node 4} P 15113085 P 35541965

Spr Motes fo Flnarcial Statenenris




MNATIONAL CONEEDERATION OF COOPERATIVES
MUTUAL BENEFITS ASSOCIATION (NATCCO MBAY, INC,
{4 Non-Stock, Mon-Prafit Assedation)

HOTES TCO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMEER 37, 2072
| Witk Compara tive Figueres for 2021
{Amennts i Philippiae Peso)

CENERAL INFOREM ATION
Crgrrrization and Cbfectives

Matiomal  Confederation of Cooperatives Mulual  Benefils  Association
{(NATCCD MBA), Inc. {*the Assocation”} was incorporated in the Philippines and
registered with the Secatities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on Apeil 24, 2009 with
registration number CN2MM56M. I members are active members of any coopermbive
affiliated with the Mational Cordederation of Cooperatives (MATOCD), Tt is a regulated
eriithy under the Ingurance Commission,

The Association is primarily engaged 10 extend nancial assistance to its members, sponss,
arid children in the fatm of benefits, sickness benefits, provident savings and Ioan
redemption assistance; to ensuse continued access to benelits or resources by actively
involving the members in the management of the sssociation that will inclnde
implernentation of poliies and provedures geared towards sustaingbility and improved
services; to da and perform any other acts and things and t6 have and exercise any other
power and functions as may be necessary, convenient, legal and appraopdate to accomplish
the purpoac for which the mutual benefits association it establishad of orgenized.

The regisiered office of the Assoriation iz located ak 227 )P, Rizal 5t., Bayanthan, Project 4,
Liwezon City,

Tax Exeneption

On July 6, 2022, the Association obtaired tax exemption from the BIR under Certificate Tax
Fxemption Mo, RRTAD-2022-CTEMNH which is valid unbl July 5. 2025, As a non-skack,
noreprofit sesociatiem, the Assodation i3 exempt from the payment of Inconw: tax under
Section 30c of the Natlonal Intemal Revenue Code. However, the income of whatever kind
aml character of the Association from any of its properties, Teal or personal, or from any of
iks activities conducted for profit, regardless of the dlsposition made of such inrome, shall
be subjected by tax. Moreover, intersst meome derived from the deposit with banks are
sultect to the fpal e,

Appreval of Finareial Statemonts

The finaneial statements of the Association as at and for the year encted December 31, 2022
{inclading the comparative (iancial statements as at and for the year ended
December 31, 2021) were authorized for iggme by the Association’s Board of Trustess (BOT)
on April 3, 20623,
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2.
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies that have been used w the prepambon of these
Financial statemnents are supamerized below. The pelicies have een consistently apphed te
all the years presented unless otherwise stated.

Basiy of Prepavation of Finoacial Statements

& Shrtement of Compliane with Phiippine Financiel Peporing Shandirds for Mehel Benefis
Asspcurhions (IBAs]

The linancial statements of the Assoctation have been preparsd in accordance with
FhiJippine Financial Reporting Standards in the Philippines applicable to IBAs.

Fursuant b Section 189 of Tha Amended Tnzutance Code, the nsurance Cormnission
izgued Cipcular Letter Mo, 2004-41 daked Ssptember 25, W14 yequirng all newr and
exdsting mazhual benelits associabions doing busmess in the Philippines o use and
taitain the revised Stmdard Chart of Accourts (STA) for MBAs The 5CA 15 the
prescribed frameveork: for the Associabion In the preparation of financial statements,

The SCA for MBAs list a wniform system of acconnt numbers categorized based on
MEAs' revenue, expenses, assets, liabilities and fund value for stvdlay ransactions and
events, in compliance with the latest FPhilippine Accounting Standards (FAS) and
Philippme Fransal Reporting Sandards (FFES).

The finandal statements have been prepared using the measurement bases sperified Ly
PERS applicable to MBAs for each type of agsets, liabilities, incoms and expense. The
measurement bases are more fully described in Uhe accounting policies that follow.

& Presentalion of Fimamicral Statenienis

The financial statements are presented n accordance with the Philippine Accovnting
Standard (PAS) 1, Presendasion of Funmaes Sindemenis. The Association presents all llems
of income and expenises ina single statement of comprahensive INComE-

The Asseciation presents the third statement of finaneial position at the beginning of
the preceding petlod when it applies an accounting policy retrespectively or makes a
remospective Testatement or reslassilication of itemna that have 4 matorial atfect on the
infenmation i the statement of financial position at the beginning of the preceding
period. The related netes to the third sakenent of financal postten are et required Lo
bz dlisclosed-

c.  Frmeficont! and Preaomdalon Corrency

These {inencial staterents are presemted in Philippine pesos, the Assaiafion’s
Functional and presentation currency and all velues repregent absolute armaunts except
when otherwise indicated.

Jtems inchaded in the financial statements of the Association are roeasured vsing its
functinmal currency. Fanctonal currendy 15 the currency of the primary economic
environment in which B Association Operates,
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Adoption of Wew and Amerded to PERS

A Effective in 2022 thet are Helevant B the Asociation

The Association adopied for the first time the followwg amendments and acraral
improvements Lo FFRS, which ere mandatory effective for anmual perinds begmning on
or after Janmany 1, M

F A4S 16 [ Amemdmets) : Property, Flanr and Equipment - Proceeds Before
Intended Use

PAS 37 [Ammdments) : Provisions, Contingent Lisbilities and Contingent
Asgets - Onerous Conbeacts - Tost of Folfilling
a Contract

Annsal Improvements

FERS (2018-2020 Cyele)
PERS % Amendments) : Financial [nstruments - Fees in the 10 percent

Test for Derecopnition of Liabilifiss

FFES 16 {amendments] :  Leases - Lease Incentives
Liscussed below ora the relevant informetion about these pronouncemanis:

i, FAS 16 (Amendments), Froperty, Plant mad Eguipment - Proceeds Before frrfended |1z
The amendments prohitit deducting from the cost of an item of propedty. planl
and squipment any proceeds trom selling ilems produced while bringing the asset
o the location and condition pecessary for it o be capable of operating in the
manneT intended by management. Instead, an entity recognizes the proceeds from
sellng such items, and the coat of preducing those items, in profil or loss. The
azplication of these amendments had no significant impact em the Association’s
finoncial statements 2% there were no sales of zuch ilems produced by properfy,
plaait and equipmsnt made before being avadlable for vae oo or after the beginning
of the earliest periad presented.

ii. FPAS 37 (Amendments), Provistons, Comfingent Linbrlibes and Confimgent Assefs -
Omerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling 0 Conéract. The amendments specily that the
‘st of Rulhllmg a contract comprises the 'costs that relate directly to the contract’,
Costs that relate directy o a cankract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling
that cortract {examples wauld be direct laber, matertals) or an allacaten of other
ctats that relste divectly to fulfilimg contracts (an example would ba the allocation
af the depreciation chazge For an itzon of property, plant and equipment used in
Fulfilling the contract). Mamagement assessed that there is no sigraficant lmpact on
the Avaocatior’s Anancial statements since none of the existing contracts as of
January 1, 2022 are identified a3 orerous.
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fil. Anwal Improvements w PFRS 20182020 Cyele. Among the improvements, the
fellewing amendments which do not have a significant impact and which are
eifective from Jaruary I, 2027, are relevant bo the Assodation’'s fnancial
staterments,

»  PFRS % (Amendsents), Financial Fastruments - Fees in the 110 percent® Test for
Derecogrition of Lubilifies. The improvements clarify the ke that an entity
includes when assessing whelher the terms of a pew or modified financial
liability are gubstantially differsnt from the terms of the original financisl
liability. These fees mclude only these pad or peceived bebwesn the borrower
and the lender, including fees patd or received by either the borrower or
lander em the other's behalf.

»  Ilustrative Examples Accompanying PFRS 16, Lerses - Lense Incentres. The
amendments remove the potential for condusion regarding lesse incemtives by
deleting Ilustrative Bxample 13 the reimbursement relating to leasehold
improvements as it had not been explalned clearly enough as lo wiether the

retmbursemnent would meet the definition, of 2 Iease in accordance with
FERS 16,

b, Effective is 2022 et ane noil Relemant o the Assocation

Among the amendments to FFRS which are mandatory and effective for annual
pericds beginming on or after [avwary 1. M2, the following are not relevant to the
Aagoriaton’s financad staternents:

i PTRS 3 {Amendinents), Business Combirations - Reference bo the Cemeepttst] Fravnemork
{effective from January 1, 2022

. Anural Ymprevements wo PERS 2018-2022 Cycle. Among the improvements, U
following amendments, which are effective from [anwary I, 2022, are not relevant to
the Assoctation:

» PFIS 1, First Thme Adoption of Phufipmme Financtal Reporimg Stendards - Subsidury
e A Firsi-tinee Adoptar

+ [PAS 4], Ayriculture - Texalion in Fasr Value Measuremeni:
¢ Effectine Sutirsequen! v 2022 b nod Adopled Barly

There are amendrments to sxisting standards effective for anmual penods subsequent bo
2002, which are adopted by the FRSC. Management will adopt the following relevant
proncuncements in acecrdance with their kansitional previgions; ated, unless Othervise
stated, nere of these are expacted to have a significont impact on the Association’s financial
statermenls:

L PaS 1 [Amendments), Presentation of Finencul Sateswnls - Classification af Liabililies
as Current or Non-curvent (effective January 1, 2023},

i TPAS 1 and FFRS Practes Statemert 2 (Amemdments), Presmintiond of Fineecial
Sarterertts = Diselnsure of Accorntimg Policies (effective January 1, 2023).

d. PAS B (Amendments), Accounting Estimates — Defmition of Accounding Fstmates
[effective from january 1, 205, B2
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lv. FAS 12 (Amendments), Ineonw Tares - Defrred Tar Related by Aseets mmd Ligbalbites
Aiseriy from a Single Tramsachon (effective lrom Jarmary T, 20230,

v. I'FES 17, Inswrance Contmacks leffecdve from Janmary 1, 2023, The Insurance
Commission [[C), through its Cirealar Letter J0MRG2, has deferred  the
implarmentation of FFRS 17 far the life inrurance and nonGlife tnaorance indastry

on January 1, 2025,

vi.  PFRS 17, [Amendments), Inseramce Coriracts = Initil Appifcetion of PFES 17 and FFRS 9
- Comipeiaine Infiymeriioe {effective Jannany 1. 2023} The Insurance Commission (1K},
through its Ciecular Letber 26202, has defsread thie implementation of PFRS 17 for
the life insurance and non-life insurarce industry on January 1, 2065,

vi. PFRS 10 (Amendmenta). Consplideted  Fimoncial  Slofements, omd  PAS 28
fAraendpients), miesimnls v Aswcintes avd Joine Vesrures - Sale or Conimbution of
Aggets Betrveen an Tnvesfor and if's Asspofales or Jormd Venbure (effective date deferred
indefinitely).

Crerrent vevtug Non-Chrrent Clasgification

The AssociaHon presents assets and liabilikies in the statement of financial position baged
oo current and not-current classification, A asset is cucrent when it is:

¢ Expected to be realized or interded ta be sold or consumned in the noronal operating
cycle;

* [1eld primarily for the purpose of ading;

*  Expected to be realiced within twelve months after the reporting period; or,

= LCash or cash equivalent wnless resiricted from being exchanged or wsed ko settle a
liability lor at leagt turelve months after the repecting peried.

All other aszets are classified as Ton.cureent.
A liabiliky ig current wien:

Lt iz expecied po be settled In de notmal operatng cycle;

Lt is held primarily for the parpose of ading:

It 15 due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting period; or,

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least
hyalve rnonths after the reporting period

Celecred income tax azsels and lHabilities are classified a3 nopecurrent asselts
and lGahllides.,
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Finaneial Instrtmeents

& Firranrjal gsseiz

Financlal assets are recognized when the Assocation becomes a paaty fo the
cemtractaal terms of the financial instromwtite, Except for these receivables that do not
cotviain & sipnificant Erancing comparent aud are measured at the Baneacion price o
accordance with PFRS 15, all financial assets are Initially measurcd ab fair valae
acjusted for ansachion costs (where applicable). For purposes of classilying linancial
asa2ts, an instrument is considered as an aquity instrurnent i it is non-detivative and
meets the defirdHon of squity for the issuer in a¢cardance with the criteria of PAS 32,
Firnamcial Instruments; Presenfations, All other non-derivalive financial msbuments are
treated as debt Inskruments,

The farepoing categonss of Anancial insruments of the Azsosaton ave more fully
described below:

I, Finmpcig) Aasels ot Aneoraed Cosl

Financial assets are measured at amortized cost if both of the following conditions
are met (and are not deglgnated as FVTPLE

+ the assat iz held within the buginess mndel whess abjective iz to hold financial
asse ks in ovder to collect comtractual cagh fHowws (“held 1o collect™); and,

+ the conractual terms of the insledovent give rise, on specified dates, to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and nterest ("SPFT) on the
principal amount outstancding,

Except for trade receivables that do not conlbain a significant [inancing component
and are mesgared at the kransacton price in accordancs with PERS 15, all financial
assets eeting these criteria are measured inihally at feir value plus pransachen
costs. Thesa ara eubsecuently measured at amortized cost veing the efiective
inrerest method, less sy impairment in value.

The Association's flnancial assers measured at amorbized cost comprise of Cash
and cash equivalents, Loans and ather receivahbles, Short-term financial asset, Chher
funds and deposits and Financlal Assets at amortized cost m the statements of
financial positiem.

For purposes of cush flows reporting and presentation, cash and cash equivalents
sompirse ascounts with original maeturities of theee menths or less, inclnding cash.
These generally include cash on hamd, demand deposits and short-texm. hughly
Liquid investments readily convertible to knewn amourts of cesh and which are
subject o an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Finarvial assets measured at amortized cost ate included in the cument aseets,
except for those with maturibies greater than 12 months after the end of reporting
period, which is ¢lazsified az fon-current assets.
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B Fiamreint Assets of Fair Value Timongh Otfier Compretresaye Income (FYLCT)

The Association accounts for Anancial assets at FYOCL if the assets meet the
Following conditions:

= they are held undet @ business model whese objective is to hold to collect the
agapciated cach flaws: and s2ll ("hold to collect and sell™); and,

» the contrachral berms of the financal assets give rise b cash flows that are SPF]
on the principal arnoent outstanding.

Al initial recognition, {he Assoctation can make an imevecable electon (on an
instrument-by-anstritment basis) to designate equily investments as at FYOCL
however, such designation 15 ot permitted if the equity nvestment is held by the
Aszociation for bading of 25 mandatorily required ko be classified as FYTPIL.

Financial assets at TYOCI are inltially measured at fair value plis transachicn costs.
Subseguenty, they are measured at fair value, witlh no deduction for any disposal
cosks. Gains and lesses ansing from changes in [air value, including the foreign
exchange component, are recognized in other ¢omprehensive income, net of any
eflects arising from income tawes, and are reported as part of the Bevaluation
Rererves aconunt in aquily. When the asset is disposed of, the cumulative gain or
foss previously recognized in the Surplus rezerve account is not reclassifisd to profit
or loss but is rectassified directly to the Surplus free account, except for those debt
securities classified as FYORCT wherein cumulabive fair value pains or lesses are
recyeled o profitor loss

Interest income is calculated by applyimg the effective interest rate to the gross
carying amount of the financial assets except for those that are subsaquently
identfied as eredit-impaired. For credit-immpaired financial assets. the effeciive
intevest rate is applied o the net carrying amount of the finameial assets {after the
deduction of the less allowance) The interest eamed is recognized in profit or koss
Ly the statement of comprahensive incorne as part of Interest income.

Any dividends earned on helding equity instruments are raeognized n profit or
loss when the Association's right to receive dividends is esmblished, it is probable
that e economic berefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Assocation,
and, the amount of the dividend cam be measured reliably unless the dividenda
represent the recovery of 4 part of the cost of the investment.

As at December 31, 25t and 2021, the Associatlon does not have financial assats
designated at PVOCL
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bi. Einancinl Assets at Fair Vatue Through Frofit or Loss (FVTFL)

Financial assets that sre held within a different business model other than
“liold to collect” or “hald to collect and sell” are categorized at FYTEL, Further,
imespective of the business model, financial assets whose contTactual cash Flones
ave not SPPT are accoumted for at FVTFL Also, equity 3ecurlbes are classified as
financial assets at FYTEL, unlazs the Associabon dazignates an eqmity investmant
that is not held for wading as et FVOCT at inttal recognition.

Financial sesets at FVIFL are measured at falr value with galns or losses
recogrized in the profit or loss as part of Inferest income in the statervents of
comprehensive income. The fair values of these jinancial azsets e determined by
refererce to acHve market rapsacHons or using & valuation technique where no
actve market exisks.

Interest carned on theas investrwents is inclizded in the net fait value gains (Josses)
on these assets presentod as poert of Intersst income in the statememts of
voimprahensive noome.

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, e Assoclation has financial assets desigrated
at FVYTPL amounked to P3,701,514 and 3,713,854, respectively.

The Asascistion can only reclassify Financial assets if the objective of its Tusiness model
for managing those linancal assets changes. Accerdingly. the Assetiation Is required o
reclassify financial sssets () from amortzed cost to FYTPL, {f the objective of the
Dastress moddel changes so that the amortized cogt ariteria are no longer met; and, (i)
from FVTTL to amnortized cost I the objeclive of e businass model changes so that the
amorbized cost criteria start to be met and the chamacterlstic of the instrument's
contrachual cash Flows meet the amortized cost criterla,

A change in the objective of the Association’s business model will ke effect onty at the
beginning of the nest reporting perlod following the change tn the busingss madel.

b, Impairment of Firancial Assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Assocabion assesses jts ECL on o a
forward-looking basis assaciared with its financial asets carried st amorlized ¢ost and
debt instruments measured at FYOCL Recognition of credit losses is no longer
dependent on the Asseciatior's idendfication of 2 credit loss event. nspead, the
Assodation considers a broader yange of information in assessing credit risk and
measuring expected credit losses, wcheding past eventy, cument conditions, and
reacemable and supporiable forecasts that affect the collectability of the future cash
flowss of the financial sszet.

The Association appliss the simplifled spproach in reasuring ECL, which uses a
lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade and other receivables anu contract zssets.
These are the expected shortalls in contractual ¢ash flows, considering the polential
bor default at any point duting the life of the financial assets. To calculate ECL, the
Association uses ds historical experience, external indicators and forward-leoking
information to calowlale the ECL using a provision matrix, The Assoclation also
assesses the impairment of trade receirables om a eollective hasic as they possess
shared credit pisk charackeristics and have been grouped baged on the days past due.

156
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For debt instruments measured at FVOC] and amartized dost, the allowanee for coxdit
loszes iz based on the BOL associated with the probability of defaalt of a firancial
migtrument in the next 12 rmonths. unlesa there has been a signaficant merease in credit
rigk since the arginebon of the financial asset, in such case, a Jiferime FCIL for a
purchased or griginated credit-impaired, the allowrance for cradit losses iz baged on the
change in the ECL over the lfe of the asset The Associabon recognizmed a loss
allowance for much losses ak each ceportmg date,

The key eternents uged in the calenlation of ECL are as follows:

. Probalelity of defendi - Tt is an estimate of the lkelihood of defaitlt over a given
time hanizan.

. Loss gavede defiaulf — [t i an estirnate of logs arising in the caze where default accurs
at a given tme. It iz based on the differance betwreen the contractuad cash flows of
a financial msbrument due to conmberparty and those that e Asseciation would
expect o receive, Including the realization of any collateral.

. Exposure at defauell - It represents the gross carrying amount of the financial
Instruments subject b the impairment calculation.

Measuratnent of the ECL is derermined by a probabiliby-weighted sstimake of eredit
leszes over the expected life of the Fmeancial instrawment.

The Associatiom considers & fmancial asset in default when contrachirl peyments are
30 days past due. However, in certain cesss, the Associalion may also consider a
flmancial azset o be in defaclt when intetnal or external infonmation indicates that the
Associabion is unlikely to receive the putstanding contractual ameunts i full befere
taking into account any credit enhancements eld by the Association. A fnarcial asset
is written off when there is no reasonable expeclation of recovering the contrachal
cash flows.

Items of Income and Expense elated to Financial Assets

All inwome and expenses; mcluding impaleaent losses, releting o financial asseta that
are Ie::ug;‘ujz-ed in ];rrl;rﬁl; or loss are Fresxen‘ted a5 part of Inters=t imeome o Interest
expense, Impalrment losses, Gain on disposal of financial assets, Dividend meome and
Recowveries Fram accounts written-off (presented as part of Other income) in the
Statement of comvprehensive inome.

Morecompounding interest, dividend imcome and ather cash flows resnlting from
helding finandia)l aseets are recogmized in profit or [oss when earnmed, ragardiess of bosr
the related carrying ameunt of firvancial asseks are measared.
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d. Derccoguition of Financizl Assets

The financial assets jor where applicable, & part of a finamciz] asset or part of a group of
financial assets) are derecognized when the eomtractual rights wo receive cash flows
frown the Financial instruments axplre, or when the financial assets and all substantial
rtks and rewards of ownership have besn bansierred fo another perty. I the
Assodation nelther transfers nor retams smbstantially 2ll the ks and vewards of
ownership and continues o control de weansterrad azset, the Assodiation recognizes its
retained interest in the asset and an associabesd Tability for amounts il may have te pay.
I the Assooabion mtaine substandally all dve vsks and rewards of owroership of a
ransferred financial asget, the Association continges t9 recognize the financial asset
arid also recopmizes collateratized orrowing for the proceeds received.

e. Frngueial Liahilities

Firancial Labilitles ave iniHally measured at fair value, and, where applicable. adjustad
for transaction costs unless the Association desipnated a Anancial Hability at famr vahae
througl proflt o Toss, Subsaquently, hnanclal liabilities are measured at amortized
cost waing the effective wmiterest method except for derivatives and (inanciel Labililies
designated at FVTPL, which are carried subsequendy at fair vajus with gains o losses
recogrized in profit or loss (other than derivabve fmancial instrumnents that are
designabed and effective as hedging mstruments).

Financial liabilities include liabdity on individoal equity value, members' comimibubon
received in advance, claims payable on basic contingent benefit, optional benelit
reserves, <laims payable on cptional benefit, bagic contingent benefit reserve and other
payables accounts, (excludlng tax payables and post-employment benelfit obligation).
lease liabilities, legal policy veserves and member's equity aml cotiributions aie
recogrized when the Association becomes a pary to the contractual terms of the
instument. All interest-related charges ate revognized as Inferest expenses in the
ckatement of comprehensive income.

Liability on incividuz] equity valie is recogrized infrially at fair value, which is the
igsue procesds (Fair value of the conzideration received).

Oher payatles anl membas' contribulions mecerved i Bdveiwe, are racognized
initially at their fair value and subsequendy measured st amortized cost for maluilties
berond one year. less settlement payments.

Clairns payable on basic contingent benefit, cptional benefit reserves, claims payable
on optional berefit. and basic contingent benefit reserves are recognired at fair value
wrhich 15 the amveunt recommmended by ax indeapendent achiary.

Financial lizbilities are derecognized from the statement of financiel position ooly
when the obligations are extinguished either through discharge, carcellabon oF
gxpitation, The difference between the carying amwount of e financial liabilivy
darecognized and the consideration paid or payable is vecognized i profit o loss.
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o O¥fsetting Mnanciel Instrnents

Firamcial assets and Habilities are set-offs and the regmlting net amount i repored in
the statemert of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to ofiset the
recagnized amounts and there is an intention to settie on a net basis, or realize the asset
and settle the lability simultaneously, This is not generally the cage with master
netting agreements, and the related aseets and liabilities are presented az groas in the
statement of financial position. The dght of aet-off mmst be available at the end of the
repocting pericd, that is, it is not contingent on a future event It must alse e
endorceabls in the normal coarse of tasiness, in the event of default, and in the event of
insolvency or barkrupicy; and must be legally snforceable for both entily and all
connterparties to the financial hsimoments.

Froperty and Equipmrent

Property and equipment are carmied at acquisition or ranstruction cost less accurmdabed
depreciation and any impairment in valve.

The rust of an asset comprises [ty parchase price and directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to working condition fur its wtended use, Expenditures for additions, major
improvements and remewals are capitalized; expenditures for repairs and maintemance are
charged to expense as incurred. When assete are sold, retired or otherwise disposed of,
their cost and related acournulated depreciation and ompairnent losses are removed from
the acconnts, and any resultmg gain or loss is reflected in income for the pericd.

Depreciction ia computed a1 a straight-lne bazis over the estimaled useful Life of the
aseel s ad follows:

Office forratare s fixpares 3-5 years
Cffice equipment 3= 10 years
IT Equipment 4 - 10 years

An assel’s carrying amount is written down ioumediately 1o ite recoverable amount if the
asset’s carryring amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amomit.

The residual values and estimated useful life of property and squipment e reviewed and
adjpusted If appropriate, at each repocting dale.

Ar itern of property and equipment, ncluding the related secumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, is derecogmized wpon dispesal o1 wiven no fahizee econcmic benefis are
expacted o arise from the conbnued use of the ascet. Any gain or loss arsing on the
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference betwesm the net disposal proceeds
and the cerrying amount of the jterm) is inchided in the staterments of comprehensive
income in the year the tem 1s derecognized.

Prepoiments

Prepayments pertain 1o other resources controlled by the Association as a result of past
events. They are recognized in the financial sarements when it is probable that futura

eronomic benefits will flow to the entity and the assst has a cost or value that can be
rreasured reliably.
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Prepaytoents inwlude prepatd axpenses which will be amortized over the tero of te azvet.
Prepayments ate recognized and measured at wanster cost and other assels are recognized
am] measured at transfer cost or the amoant of cash paid. Subsequently, these, are charged
to expemize 53 they are corzumead in operations or expire after the passage of tHme.

Impairnent of Non-fineneial Assets

The Association's property and cquipment are subject to impairment testing. All other
ndivicual assets ave tested fov impairment whinever events of changee in dreumestances
indicate that the carrying amownt may oot be recoverable.

Far purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grovped at the lawest Tevels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows {cash-gemerating anits), As a resull, assats arz
tested for impaiment either individvally or at the cash-generafing undt level.

Impzaiviment loss is recognized For the amount by swhich the asset’s ar cash-generating
wrdt’s canying amount sxceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of its fair value Jess costs to sell and its vabue in vee. In determining vabus in wse.
management sstimates the axpevied (e cash fows from sach cashegenerating voit and
determines the suitable interest rate in order to calculate e present value ol thuse cash
flows. The data uzed for mnpairment testing procedures ace directly linked to the
Association's latest approved budget, adprsted as necessary b exclude the effscts of agset
snhancements, THscount factors are determined individually for each cash-generating unit
and reflect management's assessiment of respective rish profiles, such as market and asset-
apecific rigk fackws,

All Baseks are subdequently reasseased for indicatiors that an itnpatrment loss proviously
moopnized mey na longer exist. Ao Lapalement losa is reversed if the assel or
cash-generating wrat’s recoverable amount excesds its carrying amelind,

Mravisions and Contingencies

Provisions are recognized when present obligations will probably lead & an outflow of
SConoic rasources and they can be estimated reliably even if the tiring or amount of the
outflow may stll be uncertain. A presant obligation arises from the presence of a legal or
construcdwe cbligation that has resulted from past events.

Frovisions are measured st the estimated expendilure required o geltle the present
obligaticn, based on tha moest reliable evidence available at the end of the reporting, period;
uweluding the risks and uncermintes associated with the present abligation. Where there
are & pumber of smilar obligations, the likelihood that an cutflow will be required in
settlernent is determined by considering the class of obligabons as a whole, When the time
velua of money is material, long-ferm provisions are discounted to their present values
USinlp o pre-tax rate that reflocks market assesgments and the risks specific 1o the obligation.
The wrease b the provision due to the passage of tme is recognized es an interest
expenze, Frovisions are reviewed at the end of 2ach reporting period ancd adjusted 1o
Teflect the current best estimate.
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Inn those cases where the possible outflow of erONOMmIc TesQUICEs &3 & result of present
shligations ia considered improbable or remate, or the amount to be provided (01 canaot
be measured reliably, no liakiity is recognized fn the financial statemnents. Srularly,
possible inflows of economic bensfits to the Assocation that do net yet meel the
racognation ctiterin of an asset are considered contingent assets, hence, they are b
vecopnized in the finansial stalements. On the other hand, any reimbursement that the
Associatiort can be virtually certadn to collect from 3 third party with respect tn the
obligalion is recognized a5 a separate agset not exceeding the amount of the
relaved provision,

Reveriie and Expenise Recogmition

For other income ariges in the performance of the Assodation’s services, the Associaticn
followrg a B-step process to determing whether to recognize Teverie:

Idextifying the contract with & customer

Identifying the pedormance cblipatens

Detenmining Whe ransechion price

Allocating the transaction price to the perormane obligabiuns
Recogruzing revenue wheny as a performance obligation(s) are satislied.

o 0 b

For Step 1 to be achieved, the following five gating criterla must be present

i the pardes to the eontract have approved the comtract either in writing, orally or in
acoordarwee with other customary business praciloes;

i, each party's rights regarding the goods or services to be translerred ac perfarroed can
e iclent Lized;

iii. the paymenk terms for the goods or services W be wansferrad or performed can be
identfad;

iv. the contract has comonercial substance {i.g, the risk, iming ¢r amount of the future
cash flows is expected te change as a result of the coniract); and,

v. eollectinn of the consideration in exchange for the goods and services is probable,

Revenue it recogrnized ¢ither at a point in time or overtime, when (or as] the Assoriation
salislies perlonmance oblignbons by fansforing the promésed goods or services to ita
CUFLOTRES.

A performance obligation is satistied at a point in dme unjess it meets one of the fellowing
eritaria, m which caze il is satished over dme:

i. the customer simultaneously recelves and consumes the berefits provided by the
Association's performance as the Association performs;

ii. the Association’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls
s the ssset i3 created o1 enhanced; and,

i, the Association’s performance does nob create an assel with an altermative uge to the
fssoctatior, and the entity has an enforceable sight to payment for performance
cotnpleted 1o date,

The Assciation recogrizes contract Babilities for consideration received in respect of
urzatishied performance obligations and reports these ameunts as other habdlitiss in the
staberment of fnancisl position. Similarly, if the Association satisfies a performance
obligation before it receives the consideration, the Assecdation recognizes cither » contract
asset or a receivable in its stavement of fAnanclal pesition, depending on whether
something other than the passage of required befure the consideration i dus,
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Incorne that was vecoprized under the above criteria is dizcusse] as [olfows:

. Premius and contriutions - revenue is recognized monthly as they become due from
mambers and is reliably measured.

b.  Irterest imcpme. Interest income arising from eash and cash eguivalents, short-trm
financial assets and investment securities at amerHzed cost, and loans and recelvables
are jecognized cn an sucrual basis using the etfective inlersst methed, The effective
inberest rate (EIR) is the rate thak exactly discounts the estimated futore cash receipts
through the expected life of the financal asset. The BIR is estublished on inihal
recognition of the financial asset and is not revised subsequently. When the related
fimancial assst becomes impaired, the recognibon of interest income is suspended
andfor limited up to the extent of cash collections received.

e Orther ineoine - revapue is recopnized ag they incarred,

Cost and nperating expenses are recogrized in profit or loss upon vhilization of services ar
at the date they are incwrred. All [Inance costs are reported in prafit ox Jos on an acerual,

Emiptoye: Benefits

The Association provides short-term benefits and post-employment benehis to smployees
theough a defined benefit plan, as well as various defined comritnition plans,

. Defimed Benefit Pl

A defined benefit plan is & pogtemployment plan that defines the amount of post-
amployment benellt that an employee will receive on ceticernent, wavally depenident on
one or more factors snch as age, years of service and salary. The legal olligation for
any benefits from this kind of post-employment plan remains with the Association,
even if plan asaets for funding the defined benefit plan have been acquired. Plan assets
may inclade assets specifically desigrated to a long-temm benefit Amd, a3 well as
qualifying insuratice policies. The Association’s defined benefit post-employment plan
covers all regular full-tume employees.

The liability recognized in the statement of financial position for the Jefirwed benefit
plan is the pressnt value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting
period less the falr value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated
armually by independent actaaries wsing the prajected wndt credit method, The present
value of the defined benefit cbhgation is determined by discounting the estimared
future cash outflows using a derived discommt vate basad on the interest rates of rére-
cowpon government bonds as published by the Philippine Diealing and Exchange
Corporation that are densminated n the curreney in which the benefits will be paid
and Wial have terms to mahuity approximating the terms of the related post-
emplovment liabilivy,
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Actuarial gains and losses ave charged or credited to profit or Joss in the year in which
they arise.

Pagt-service costs are recopmized immediataly it profit or loss.,

¥, Defired Coelrilation Plam

A defined-contributon plan is a postremployment plan under which the Asscclatlon
pays fived contributions to an independent entity. The Association bas no Tegal o
comattuctive obligations to pay Durther contibutions after payment of the fixed
conrtributon. The conbributions recognized in respect of defined coniribubon plans ars
expenzed ag they fall due Liabilides and assets may be recognized if underpayment or
prepayment hag ocourred and are included in carcent liabilities or current assets as
thay are narmally of = short-teom nabice.,

¢ Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is erminated by the Assoctalion
before the noromal retivement date, or whenever an employe: acoepls voluntary
redundancy in exchenge for these benefits. The Associalion recognizes termination
benefits when it Ja demonstrably committed bo either: (i} terminating the employment
of current employees arcording to o detallsd formal plan without the passibility of
withdrawal, or (i} providing terminetion benefith a2 a resdlt of an offer made ko
encourage voluntary redundancy. Benefits falling dne mere than 12 months afrer the
and of the reporthng period are discounted bo present value.

Leases

For any new contracks entered inko on or after [anmary 1, 2019, the Assoclation considers
whether a contract is, or contains a lease. A lease is defined as a contract, or part of a
contract, Bhat conveys the 1ight bo use an asset {the underlying asset) for a period of tme in
exchange for corsideration. To apply this definition, the Assaciatien assesses whether the
confract meets theee key evaluations which are whether:

+ the copiract conlains an wdendfed asssl, which is either explictly identificd in the
contract or bmplicitly specified by being identified at the time the asset is made available
b the Association:

+ the Assoctation has the right bo oblain substantiaily all of the economic bemefits from the

use of the identifisd azset throughout the period of vae, congidernng its rights within the
defined scope of the contract; and,

v e Associsbion has the right to direct the use of the identified asset throughoul the
perind of nze. The Assodation assesses whethar it has the right to direet 'how and for
what purpase the asset is used throughout the period of use,
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AL the Leage comumencemsnt date, the Asscclation recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability in Hie statemnent of finanrial pesition, The right-of-use asset i maasured ab cost,
which is made up of the initial measurement of the lease liability, any indtial direct eocks
incurred by the Association, an estimate of any costs (o distnantle and remove the asset at
the end of the lease, and any leese payments made in advance of the lease conunencement
dates {net of any incentves received). Subsequently, the Asenciation depreciates the right-of-
use astet on a straight-line basis from the lease commencerent date o the exrlier of the énd
af the wuseful life of the Light-of-use asset of the end of the lease berm. The Association slse
asgesses tha rght-of-uge agset for impairment when such indicators exist.

O the other hand, the Association measures the lease Hability at the present value of the
lease payments unpaid at the commencement date, discounted vsing the nterest rate
implicit in the lease if that rate ¢ readily avaiable or the Association's incremental
horrowing rate. Lease payments include fixed payments (incleding in-substance fieed) less
leage incentives tecelvable il any, variable lease papments based on an index or rate'
arnpunts expected to be payable onder a residual value guaraniee’, and payments aniing
from options {either remewal or tetming ion) reasomably certain be be exercised, Subsequent
to the initial measurement, the Lability wifl be reduced for payments made and incraased
for irterest, It i remeasured to reflect any reassessment or medification, or if there arz
changes in in-substance fixed payments. When the leage labiity is remeasored, the
corresponding adjustment is reflected in the righkof-use asset, or profit and loss o the right-
of-use aszet is already reduced to zero, The Assaclation has elected to acoount for short-
term leazes and leases of low.value assets using practical expedients. [hetead of recognizing
a right-of-use asset, and a Jease Labillry, the payments in relation to these pre recognized as
an expense in profit or loss on a shraight-line basis over the lease tenm On the statement of
financial posldon. right-ofuze assets and leage liabilities have been presentod separabely
from properey and equipment and other liabilites, respectivaly

neome T'exes

Currert b assebs or liabilities comprise those claims from, or obligations to, fiscal
muthorities relabing bo the cutrent or price reporting pariod, that are uncollacted or unpaid
at the end of the mporting period. They are caleulated using the bax rates and tax Jaws
applicnble to the fistal periods to which they velabe, based em the ¥axable profit for the year,
All changes Lo current tax assets or liabilities are recogrized as o component of b expense
i profit or loss,

Furd Balance

Assigned fund balance comprises of the appropriaton transferred from unchistribated
EAIMINES,

Reraluation reserves pertaing to defirad benelit plan reserve on actuvarial gain or logs dus bo
remeasurement of redrerment benefit obligation

Free and unassigned fund balances inslude all cureed and prior pericd results a8 disclosed

m the statements of comprehensive income, net of ranslzred to assigned fund balenced
arud clividends 1F asy.

Related Parfy Transactions and Relafionship

Related party WansactHons are bransfers of resources, setvices or obligations between the
Association and its related parties, regatdiess of whether 3 price is charged.
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Fartied are congidersd ko be related if one party has the abllity 12 control the oller parly or
exercise sgmificant wflvence over the other party in making floawial and operabug
decisions. These parties include (a) individnals awning, directly or indirecily thrangh ene
or mere intermediaries, control or are ombrolled by, or wnder common contral wath the
Asgnciation; (b) associates: and, (£] individuals owning, directly or indirecly, an interest in
the voting pewsr of the Association that gives them gsignificant influence over the
Association and close members of the family of any suchindividual,

In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance
of the relationship and not merely w0 the legal fora,

Enents after the End of the Reporhisg Peviod

Arny postyear-end event that provides addibional information about the Association’s
financial position at the end of the reporting period (adjusting event) is reflected in the
finarwial statements. Past-jreat-end svents that are not adiusting events, if any, are distlased
whiztt they material to the fonancial sktements.

SIGNTEICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The Association's financal statements prepared 1 accordance with PERS mequite
management to make udgments and estimates that affect the amounts reportect in the
Financial staternents and related notes, fudpments and estimates are continually svaluated
ard are hased on historical experience and other fartors, inchtding expectations of luhtre
avente that aro bolieved to be reasonable nnder the circumstances. Achral rasalts may
ull irately Jifler oo these estimabes.

C‘riﬁca!_fudgmgﬂhs in Applying Acconmting Peolicies

In the process of applying the Association’s accounting policies, management has made
the fallewing judgments, apart from those involving estimatton, which has the most
sipnificant effect on the amaunts yecognized in the Anancial statements:

#.  Determonation of Laree Ters of Comtracts toith Rertoval and Termination Oplions

In determining the lease term, management corgiders all relevant factors and
citrumstances that create an econontic cantive to exerdise 8 retvewal option or not
exercize a termination opton. Renewal optiuns andf/or periods after termunalion
opticms are anly included in the lease term if the Jease vermn is reasonably certin o be
exbetrded or mat terminated.

Bar leases of offices, Mw factars that are normally the mest relevant are {a) if their
significant panalies shonld the Associatiom pre-terminabe the contract, ard (b I any
leaseheld improvements ste expected te have a sigrificant meaning value, the
Assoclatdon §s reasonably cerbain Lo extand and not to tertainate the Isese combract,
Crtherwise, the Associalon congiders other factors including histerical lease durabions
and the costs and business distuption tequired 1o eplace the leased asset.

The Association mcludes the renewal pedod as part of the leage term for leasts of
offices due to the significance of these assets 10 its operations. These leases have ghott,
noenwcancellable [ease periods (e, four to ten years) and there will be a significant
negative effect on production if a replacement is ot wadily available.
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The lease term 18 reassessed if an ophon 13 exerised or not exercised or the Assodation
becomes obliged to exerasa o not exersise it The assessment of reasonable cerlainly is
ondy ceviged if a significant event 4r a stgnificant change n ciroumastances ooours,
which affects this assesement, and thar is within the centrol of the Asseciation.

Apprilication of ECLon Financiel Assets af Aneoriized Cosf

The Association wsea a provision matrix to caleulate BECL for all debt instruments
carried at smortized cost The allowanee Eor impaicment iz based on PCHs amsociated
with the probability of defuult of & financial mstrament in the next 12 months unless
there has been a significan! increase in credit risk since the onigination of the financial
instrument, in such case, A lifstime ECL for the instrument is recogmized.

The Association has established a policy to perferm as assessment, at the end of each
reporting perind, of whether a financial inswruments credit risk bas incressed
sigmifican ly since initial recognition, by considering the change in the tisk of a default
oocuring over the remindiog hife of the financial mstrument.

Exvetuation of Dnsiness Model Applied in Mawaging Financial Instryments

The Assorizticn mansges L5 finuncial assets based on business models that maintain
an adequate levet of financial sssets w makch its expected cash outllowes, latgely its
corve deposit funding arising from members’ withdrawals and conbinuing loan
disbursements ko members, while maintalning a strategic portiolic of financial asseta.

Upon the adopton of PRRES 9, the Association developed business modals that reflect
how it manages its portiolis of financial insbroments. The Asscciation’s business
models need not be assessed at the entity level or as n whole but shall be applied a1 the
level of a porticliv of financial mskruments {12, a group of finandal instruments that
are managed together by the Assoclation) end not on an ingkrament-ty-instrument
basis {i.e, not based on intenticn or speclfic characteristics of the individual
firancis] insmrwoent).

In determining the classification of a financial instrument wnder FFES ¥, the
Association evaluates in which business medel a finarcial instrument or 2 portiolio of
fnandial instruments belongs tking inte consideration the chjectives of each business
model established by the Associadon fe.g. held-fer-trading, generadng accrual
ingome, direcl malclung to a specific Liability) as thoge velating to the Assoclation's
Investment strategles,
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A, Testing the Cash Flows Charachrishics of Firurmcial Assets and Cortinuing Eunluation af the
Brisimess hioads!

In determining the classification of finandial assets under PEFRS 5 the Associatiom
assessed whether the contrachusl terms of the financial assets give rise on spetifled
dates to cash flows thet are SPPL on the principal outstanding, with interest
representing the time value of meney and credit risk sssociated with the principal
amount oubstanding. The assessment a8 to whethet the cash flows mest the test iz
made in the coamency in which the finandal asset is denominated. Any other
contrachuil term that changes the tiing or ameunt of cash fows {unless it s a
variable inkerest rate that represents the Hme value of money and eredit risk) does not
meet the amartized cost eritena. In cases where the relationship between the passage of
tirrie apd the intsrest yate of the financial instrument may be imperiect, kmown as the
modified time value af money, the Association, assesses the modified tme value of
money festure to determine whether the financial instroment sl meer the
SPF1 crterion,

The abjective of the assessment is o determine how different the wmdiecnnted
contracheal cash Mows could be from the wmdiscounted cash flows that would arise if
lhe Hime value of the money element was nol inedified (the benchanark cash flows). I
the resulting diffsrencs 1= significant, the SFPI criterion iz not roet, In view of this, Uhe
Assocabiom considers the effect of the modified time value of the money element in
each reporting period and cumulatively owver the Life of the financial instrument.

In addition, PFRS 9 emphasizes thal 1f more than an infrequent sale is made out of a
portiolio of financiel assefz carded at amortized cast, an entity should assess whether
anid how much sales a2 congistent with the objective of collseting contractual cash
lows, In making this pdgment, the Association considers certain circumstances
documented in its business milel manual to assesd that an increase in the frequency or
vahie of sdles of financial insbuments in a particular peniod 15 not necessarily
inconsistent with & held-to-collect busiress model i the Association cah explain the
teagems for thase sales and why those sales do not reflect a change in the Associabion’s
objective for the hsingss mvodel,

e. Determination of Timmng of Sbsfaction af Performmance Ohligations

The Asseciation determines that its revenue from services shall be recopnized over
Hme In making its judgment. the Association congiders the fiming of reccipt and
conswaption of benefits provided by the Assodation to the borrowears or customes.

In determindng the best method of measuring the progress of the Assotiaton’s
rendering of services, management considers the input method under PFRS 15 because
of the ditect relationchip between the Association’s effort. m terms of ncwrred labor
heurs, and the ansfer of service i the customer or bormrver.

[ Recogrition of Provisiors wnd Contingensies

Judgment is exercised by management to distinguish bebween provision: and
contingencies. Policies on recognition and disclosure of provisiuns and disclosure of
cemtingenciss are discussed o Mote 2 and relevamt disclosures are prosented In
Mote 26,
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fey Sources of Estimaiion Uncertainty

Presented below and in the suctesding pages are the key assumphons concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainky at the end of the reparting period,
that hawve a significant risk of causmig a materfal adjustment to the carrying amounts of
resemrees and lisbilities within the mexr financial veéar

& Esdivaniior of Allvwance for ECL

The measurement of the allowance for ECL on financial assets ab amottized cost 15 an
avea thak requires the use of significant assumptions about fuhure ecemomic conditiony
and credit behawvior (e, e lkelihood of customers defaulting and  the
resulbng Iosses).

The caying value of loans and other receivables and the analysis of the related
allowanee for impairment on such financial assets are shown in Note 5.

b, Farr Value Measreaent for Financipl Instremenis

Management applies valuaton technigues to deteyming the fair value of firencial
instryments where acive markst quotes are not available, This requires management
W develup estimates and assumplions based ¢y market Wputs, using otservable data
that market perticipants would use in pricing the instroment. Where such data is not
observable, management uses its best estmate, Estimated fair values of fnancial
instrirments may vary from the actual prices Bhat would be achieved in an arm's length
tranaaction at the reporting date.

The faiy valves of the Azsociation’s Francial instnuments are disclosed in Moke 28,
€. Estinstion of Usefial Lives Property mad Equfpment

The Assocation sstimates the useful lives of property and equipment based on the
period over which the assets are expected to be available for use. The estimated useful
lives of property and equipment are reviewed periodically and are updated i
expectations differ from previous estimates due to physical wear and tear, echrical or
commmercial obsolescence and legal or other [imits on the nse of the assks

The carrying amounts of property and aquipsent property are analyzed in MNote 11,
Based oh mianagement assessmnt a2 ot Docomber 31, 2002 and M, there & oo
change in the eytimated useful Lives of those assets during those years. Actual reaults,
however, may vary due to changes in estimates trought sbout by changes in factors
mentioned sbowe.

d. [mpairment of Non-fingticil Assels

PFRS requires that an impairment review be performed when certain impairment
indications are precent. The Association’s policy on estimating the impairment of ton-
linancial assets i3 discwssed in detail in Mate 2. Though managoment Believes that the
assumptions wsed m the estimation of fair values reflected in the finacial statements
arg appropriate and reasonable, significant changes in these assumptons may
materially affect the assessment of recoverable vaiues and any resulting impairment
lass could have & material adverse effect on the reanlf of opetations,
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e, Valuation of Fost-enmioyment Definen Benefit COligetion

The determvination of the Association’s metirement benefits s dependent on the
selection of certain assumptions ussd by actuaries in caleulating such amounts. Those
assuumptions are deseribed in Note 1% and inlnde, among others, discount rates,
axpected retrrn om plan sssets and salary increase rate. In accordamce with PFRS,
actal pesules that differ from the agsumptions sre acctnulated and amortized owver
fubure periods and therefore, generally affect the recognized expense and recorded
obligation n such future pericds,

£ Valuwation of Cpiiona] Bemefit Reseroes ad Bnsic Conmmyent Bengfit Reserve
Valuation of Opticnal Benefit Reserves and Basic Confingent Benefit Reserve represent
estimates of the present value of future bengfit payments to members. These estimates
are based on the valuation method subject to the provisions of the Insurance Code and
guidelines seb by the Insurance Comnlision.
At wach reporong date, these eshmaies are ressscmsed for adequacy and changes will
be reflected in adjustments to the liabilicy.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

This account comprisas of the following:

LA A1
Cash in banks F 12000079 [ 36502905
Short-term plawements 4014016 -
Fetty cash fund - LLELLL

E_16113095 [ 20idl Ny

Cash in banks generslly eams interest at rates based on daily banks deposit rates,
Shart-term placemerts are made far varying periods ranging from 30 to 90 days and ¢am
effective interest ranging from 1.25% to 1.5%per anroun in 2022, The interest earned in
cash in banks ameounked to 15,602 in 2022 and F2Z,082 in 2021 and is presented a= part of
the interest on deposity with banks in the sktements of comprohensive income
fsee MNote 21).

LOAN AND QOTHER RECEIYABLES

The detaiis o this aceenent ave shown below:

2032 A0
Contgibuten loan r 282127190 P 17526602
fecrued mbsrest receivable 73931 -
Advances v officers and empleyees 25,850 21,506
Accounts receivable - pthers 139052 15000

B 28951923 E. . 1Z363]58
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Contrtibuton loan represents automatic <ootdbutions applied by the Assocaanon, as
provided for in the membership certificate, to cover contnbution(s) due on the ertificate
but £l onpaid within the grace period. This loan together with intezest is payable on or
belore hiz mext conttibatlon dus date, bt if it iz not peid. both Joan and interest
automatically become @ new loan on such contribution due dabe on which intereat will be
charged at the ate previded by the actoary i effect from that date. The mdal interest
income on this lvan amountsd to F1552,041 and PS19.6%1 and was presented as part of the
premdurn and contribution in the statement of comprehensive income,

Acorued interest receivable pertains to lnterest moome gamed o bonds buk mot yer
ifllected by the Associalon,

Aevances o officers and employess refer to duly approved cash advances for official
business officors and employees, subject to liguidation in accordsnce with  the
ArsoCintion's palicy,

ACCDUNEE recelvable - otbers include benefits paud in advance o employees and small
claims of the Association i Basic Life Insuramce Plan, (BLIF).

The above meoivables ave expected to be collected within ome (1] year from the end of the
reporting date. Mo provision for impairment logs was recognized during the year since the
brapagemnent befieves fiat these rocaivables are all collectible.

FLNANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGII PROFIT OF LOSS
This ascount pertyies to pertain tp wwvestment In Unit Investment Trust Funds - BFi

Bayanihan Fund (UITF-BEF) amotnted to PB,7U1514 in HE2 and F5.713.854 in 2021 and was
recognized at fair value at the end of the reporting dare. The moverment of this account is as

follows:
203 P11
Balanre at brginning of year F 5713884 T° 5653047
Addition during the year 2 987 650 -
Urrealized Fair value gain fsee Mok 21) - 59,907

L BZ0L31d E__ollsw

SHORT-TEFM FINANCIAL ASSETS

The accomnt epresents a time deposit with terone of 30 to 90 days and earns intérest ok
(ho25% per annum amwunting to P4,000,008 25 at December ¥, 2022

Tatal interest incotne earned on time depesits as at December 31, 2022 and 2021 amounting
to F14,016 and B2, 750 which i meluded fn the other income acontnt (se¢ Mok 21),
FREFAYMENTS

This account perlams to the unamortized portion of prepaid reinsurance premium

amouniing to F799,755 and F760,587 as at December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively. This
will be amprtized over 12 months after #pagmd of each reporting perinds.
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FINAMNCIAL ASSET AT AMORTIZED COST

This account pertains to bw lowing:

| B M
Treasary bills (T-bills) P 35200000 F 100,000
Unamortized premdum (discount) | 426,947} BrET

F_32570003 P __LLJTZ673

The T-Bills partain to investment In bonds - goveriament securitiss with berms ranging
fram 3 po 10 vears and bears an annual eflective interest ranging from 2.63% to 6.858% in
2022 and 2021, The interest samed on this finansial asset at amortized dast amourted to
P410,650 in 2022 and P10S7.200 in 2021 and ave presented as part of Other income i the
statements of comprelensive meome (see Nofe 21).

The above investrents were set aside Iy compliance with the Association’s reglstrabion as
a mubual benefit Assodation,

OTHER FUNL'S AND DEFOS[IS

The account sepresents time deposit with terms ranging (rom 30 to %0 days and earns
interest of 0.625% pet annunL As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the balance of other
funds and deposits amounts ta [57%, 186 and P675.515, respeckively.

Total interast income earmed on tGme deposits for year ended December 21, 2022 and 2001
pmcunting bo Pe68, are induded in the ather incerne account (see Note 2I).

The above brme deposits were restricted for retlrenvent purpases only.

CROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

The gross carrying amonnts and the accwmulated depreciation at the beginning and erd of
2022 and 20621 are shown belaw:

Offica 11}
ipment _ _Eguipment Tolal
December 3T, 2022

Coat P 113771 F ZEREGIND PO 7R

Ageamulated depreciation L WGy | GOE1MY {_ 1.541105)

Met cartying atownk L_M uﬂﬁ T LELEET
Dheppmbar 31, 121

Cast F b U o sronEn Foo5104.445

Accupilated deprecintion { Piro ey SEGAESY (. 1LA9R.TH5)

Mel carrying amount I‘.',,_._Zﬁﬂ LJM mﬂﬁ



1L

13

-

The reconciiation of the carrying amaunts ar the beginning and end of 2022 and 2021 ol
property aad equipinent is shown below:

Qffice IT
Egui]:gml; Equipmpgjt ‘Tokal

Balanwe at Janwary 1, 2022,

net of accurnilaked depreciation I ToETS I LE22AEF [ 1068
Aqdditions 252345 4652000 621,245
Depreciation for the

Ymar {see Mok 22) ! % 33N 1900y [ 142330)
Balance at Ceramber 31, 20122

et accumnialed depreciation P 07T Rz EAAGEEET
Balaree at Janwary 1, 2021,

netof accumulaked depreciation F I7L3Ee P 1267975 F 1439106
Additions 10,500 4B 500 452 400
Depraciaton For the

vear [sez Mok B2 (106355 ) | 119468y (220843}
Balanea AF Do bey 31, 20E1

nat accumulated depreclation I D47 P LegdSly F _LINGES

Ag at December 31, 2022 and 2021, there was no investrment property pledged as coliakeral
for liakilities, There were na expenses recagnized related to Brmpainment in both years.

LIABILITY ON INDI¥IDUAL EQUITY VALUE

This partaing is pertaing to Bty percent {30%) of the basic contribution In aceerdence with
the provisions of the [nsurance Code, every ousstanding membership cerbfiate sl
have, after three [3) Full years of being continuously in force, an equity value of at lzast
E(1% of the total membership dues collected from the membsers. The equity is payable to
the members upon the teymination of their membership o the Associatior. In accordandce
witly the samne code, the Asseciation is required to put up a reserve Tabdlity wot lower than
the equity value of all in-force, active certificates ag at the end of each calendar year,
Liability on he individual =quity value of the Assaciation g st December 31, 2022 and
2021 amounted ke P42,266,175 and F37,205,783, respectively.

The individual equity vahue shall earn intersst as declared by the Assodation but in ne
cage lower than the average deposit interast rate that the top three (2] banks in the country
offer for their savings deprsit The equity value shall also share in the divisible surplus, if
any. of the Association. The Associstion declarss an annwal interest of 2% in 2022 and
2021. Total interest expense amounted to P23TLNZ and PIS38728 as of
Deceinbar 31, 2022 and 2021, respecvely, presented as part of other benafit expenses
the statetnents of comprehensive incoome (e Mote 223

MEMBERS' CONTRIBLTIONS KECEIVED LN ADVANCE
This account represents members contribution received which is not yet dve/earned

arnounted to F3415,209 and P2.803,832 as of December 31, 2022 and 221, espectively,
The account is expected ko be applied within the next reporting date,

T72
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CLAIMS PAYABLE ON BASIC CONTINGENT BENEFIT

This account represents the s of the individual claims on the membership certlficate
amounting to F2,702773 and F2339.455 as of December 21, 2022 and 2021, respectively,
that have alrsady cccerzed but on which potice has net yet been meceived by the
hesaciation. This ectimabe takes into acecunt any policy reserve lahility sst up by the
Aseociation and any amount recoverable from the Teinsurers. During the year, claims
benefit payables have already been settled.

OFTIONAL EENEFIE RESERVES

Optional benefit razerve represenks the tetal achearial réerve amonniing 1o 14,618 650 anvd
(4,217,557 as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, cespectively, set up by the Associabion
pertaining bo the palicies under optiomal bensfit that is in force 23 at the end of the
accoubing period. Tt vefers ko the amount of liability that the Association establishes for
an optional policy to mest the contractual ebligation ag it falls due. Actuarial valuations
were performed to determine if the reserve is eough to cover this ebligation, its actuarial
regort was dabed March 14, 2023 and March 27, 2022, raspectively.

CLATM PAYABLE ON OFTIONAL BENEFIT

This account represents the sum of the individual ¢laims on optional policies that have
akeacy ocourred but on which notice has not yet been received by the Association
ameunting to P2033.5%% and PT.760,179 as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.
This estimate takes into nccount any policy reserve lHability set up by the Association and

ALY [MIrSUreTs,

BASH, CONTLUNGENT BENEFIT RESERVE

This represents the total achiarial resetve amounting ba P5.409.312 and PA023,934 as of
Trecamber 31, 2002 and 2021, respactively, setup by the Asspriation perraining to the basic
Life Benefit that is in force st the end of the accounting period. It relers to the ameunt of
Hebility thak e Association establishes for o cortificate ta meet the contractual obligation
my it fails due Achuarial valuations were performmed to determine the resetve, its acmarial
report was dated March 14, 2023 and March 27, 2022, respectively.

OTHER PAYABLES

This account consists of the fallawing,

20 2021
Accruad expenses r ioes [ o8, S48
555, Pag-ibig and Philbealth

canimibution gayable 58,382 245,079
Withholding tax payable 12,706 51,628
Accounts payable - ofbers 2,731 602 2.961,133

E_ 3804638 L 2500008
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Accrued expenses pertan to accraals of prufessional fess and other unpaid bensfits of the
Agsoclption's smployees which am notmally settled within one 10 three months afier fe
end of the reporting peried.

555, Pag-ibig. and Philkeslth comtributions payable and withholding tax payable pertain o
statubery paysbles ta BIR and ather government agencies which are remitted at an average
bertn of 10-25 days after the end of the financial mperting period.

Ascounks payable - others pertain 1o unidentified deposits, advance payments, due from
brothet s maragement spstem, employes’s dues, insurance and cormmlzsion payable.

EMFPLOYEE PENEFITS

Expenses recagrized for salaries emd employes benefits ave prasented below:

20022 AN
Salares and employes benefil r assse P 5504887
Employee welfare and benelils 549875 L 0EQ
Social securify costs 270007 220 506
FPost-employment benefit costs 268,191 106 B4

P S313042 E 4880000
Post-Erployment Benefitz

'The Boatd of Trustees duly approved the adaption of the Republic Act (R.A] Ne. 7641, the
provisien on providing retilement benefits to its emiployees. The Association's nek defined
benefit liability amounted to P409.029 and F431,57¢ as at December 31, 2022 and 2021,
Taspectively.

The Association has a plan asset thet is restieted from withdrwal to support ks
post-employment benafits lialility isee Mok 7,

Actuarial valuations were performed to determine the refirament expenses and liability to
be recognized in the financial statement of NMATCCO MBAI on Fobroary 8, 2023 and
Teomary i2, 3022 for the years ended December 21, 2022 and 2021, respectively, n
accordance with the Philippine Accounting Standards No. 19 (PAS 19) and te determine
appropoate arnounts for ondng.

Tha Preyected Unit Credit (PUC) methed of valuation was nsed. The discount rate used
during the year was 5105% pa., which was based o approximated zero-coupon yield of
government bonds with the remaining period b maturity approximating the estimated
average duration of benehit payment. The avernge duration is estimatad to be 1B yaars
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To approximate the zere-coupan yield far 2 given period to maturity, U BV AL reference
rake as published by e POS Growp with the same period to maturity was siply
adopted. This approximation method is based on the principle that Zsro-coupen bomd
yields oonld be higher ar lower than the coupon-paying bond ytelds depending on interest
rate sutleok and Investors’ liquidity requirements as shown by a stady of actual market
wangactions and thue, such rates should be close on the average. All other papular
methods praduce results consistently fower or high than the coupon-paymg yield given s
normal yield corve, The salaty increase mte wag asgumed at 5.00% per annum Bking inte
consideration the prevailing inflaidon rate and Association pelicy-

The movement in the net Lability recogpdzed In the finandal positon Is presented

as follows:
il rad e

Het defined benafit linbility

al begirmdng of pear P =74 b Toa. 215
Fust-ernployment benelit cost 268,191 196,805
Eemeasarernent of net dehined

benefit Lability {asset) [ 290,736} 147071
Eetirement fund - { B7E 314)
Balance al end of year E_____daa0m r___ 431574

The changes m #he present vaioe of defined berefit cbligation are presented as fellows:

2023 cl0)ch S
Present value of defned benefir liability
at begnning of year I 431,574 F 760215
Remeasurement of net definad
benefit kability (asset] ( 200,734} 147,071
Current service cost 212,353 168,916
MNet fnteroat in the et defimed benefit Hability 55,635 27800
Eslirement fund . | E7B518]
Present vahoe of delined benefit iabdity
at end of year L 400073 [ __3¥lo7g
200 PREMIUMS AND CONTRIBUTTIONS
The aceount consists of the following:
20 PLIF|
Membrers comtribotions F 20231076 [ 3670579%
Prermiums 17,551,665 16,278,869
Premiurss ceded b reingurers-micre ( 1531, 692) | L5965, 795

D 55000000 L__Sldloiot
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Members' cantributons represent considerations given by the member in exchange Eor Lhe
promises of the Associalion be pay a stipulated sum in the event of a luss covered under
the basic benefits indicated in the Internal Rules and Eegulations (IRE) of the Agseciancr
and/or mermbership certificatez.

Pretriurms represent ronsiderations given by the insured in exchange for the promises of
the Associatdon o pay; a sHpulated sum m the vt of a logz covered vhder the sphiomal
instrarvce conlrect of the Assaciatitn,

JTHEL INCOCME
The acemunt consists of the Followving:
2022 i |

IMtecest inceme - Inreshnenta r fApesq P 1,067, M1
Inkeyest inconte - bank deposits 15,602 22082
Dremation: and conikibuations received 13,000 5,000
Interest invome — Fime deposit 14,684 plviii |
Fair value g2in - S, N

452028 E__LIS635S

Dionations and contibutions reselved represent the amount received from Climbs Life
and Ceneral nsuranc: Ceop,

Fair value gain pertains to the change of market value in Twiit Invastment Trist Fireds -
EPI Bayanihan Fund {UTTF—EEF}.

EXPEMSES

Benefit Expense

The composition of this acectnt is as fellows:

2022 N
et benelits f clanmna- basic benefits P 11655418 P 12238334
MNet benefits/ claims ~ vptional - micre 7320665 &,627,4¢1
Berefits / claims - basic benfits {bttal) 338,000 375,000

19018088 [ 1334204

Benefits /claims expense rapresenits the aggregate losses and claims, inchiding a refund of
equity value. if any, ngoinst the Asgociation arising from the certifieates and insurance
conbracts issued te membors. This eom be further classfied into basic and eptienal
Premiuimns.
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Ottrer Beuefif Erpenses

Below are the dekails of cther benefit expensgas:

Meamberehip erwollment and markedng evpenge P BIXLA3) F 805235371
Ivecrease i tegerve for

asic contingant benefit 385,328 5317500
Incteasze in latdlity on

individual equity value 8,613,997 4419172
Increase in resetye

for optional benefit 41 093 2,160,774
Cithar expetises for members _ 21,400 21,052

P__iffliqes B 1252510

Crpperatony Exprenises
The details of thess accounts are shown below:
2022 2021

Salavies, wages and

other employee benetik (zee Nete I9) P 5313642 F 4695259
kMzetings and conferences 1,595,208 1541916
FPrafessiomal and technical development 1,225,611 422 414
Travel expenses L0 W 48322
Tachndeal and professional fess 445,354 P, CREL
Unlity expense J4,061 6238
Fepresentation 310,184 65,838
Anpual peteral aczembly 183,051 117, 827
Depreciation axprnee (s hlele 11) 142320 225,843
Taxes, Licenses and (ees (e Mofe 32) 107 518 %785
CHFee supplies TL¥TY G257
Rantal {zer Mol 26) 63,158 54,250
Bark and other charges 5,7 20,250
Pues and subscripbon 45,450 57354
Invastment managemant faes 39,000 43,010
Fepairs and maintenance 6,894 26,2650
Ingurance expuensg =986 4,326
Sosial arud cormumuonity service . 115,100
Wizcellanaous 16 d4dd 51,626

N LA XV N 553

23, TAX EXPENSE

Az mentionad in Note 1, the Associafion is exempt froms the payment of income tax Lindey
Seeton M of the Mational [nternal Revernre Code,
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24,  FUND BALANNCE

Azsigned Fund Balance

This accownt consists of the following:

Guaranty furd r 27829648 P 640,124
henihers’ benafit 1,231 886 1,257 586

[ amass) P 2580512
The recorcillation of the assigned Fund balaoce is presented below-

2023 a2l
Balarnce at beginning of year P OMeBLAEZ P 19330145
Addinconal reserves during the year 2 854,550 2649233
Balance at end of yeat P88, L[ 2LE1LES

Frend Assigned for Grarmthy Faad

In compliance with Sec. 405 of the Ihaurance Code of the Philippines {as amended by E.A.
Mo. 10607, dated August 15, 2013), the Association has constitubed and esinblished a
guatanty hund which is deposited with the Insurance Commission a5 a primary
requirement for 4 license to operate of every mumal benefits assoctation. Any accrual b
such fund, ba it interest earned or dividend additiens en money or gecurites so deposited.
may. be withdrawn by the Association if thete 1s no pending benefit claim agawst it,
wrncluding ingerest thereon or dividend additions.

Any incyease in the guarnnty fund st be in accordance with See, 410 of the Insurance
Code of the Philipplives {(as amended by E.A. Ma. 10607, dated August 15, 2013} wherein
“avery mutual benefit amsociation mwst accumulate and mainmkin, out of periadic dues
collected From its tovermbers, sufficient reserves for the payment of cleims or cbligabons’,
Also, a reserve liability shafl be established in accordance with actuanal procedures and
shall be approved by the Commisgicmer.

Met contributions from membsts, set up by the Association apeointed to [2.782,564 and
F2,649,233 for the years encded December 31, 2022 and 2071, respectively.

Fund ﬂs,s.;'gne:d ﬁ;ur Member's Bc!'.l'.l-t.'ﬁ!'
Ttis a fund set aside for the beneft of the member of the Assuciation,
Kevaluation Reserire

The Aseociation's revalustion Tesevves pertain fo remeasirements of the post-employment
defined benefit plan amounting fo 449543 and PI58807 as at December 31, 2022
and 2.
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RELATED FARTY TRANSACTIONS AND RELATIONSHIP

The Asscciation’s related parties include the Assotiation’s key management personnal
The Asacdatien's transactions and cutstanding balance with its related parties follows:

Amountof  Custanding  Amountaf  Cratstanding
Transaciions  _ Balance = Trangactwons, _ Ealance

Eey Mrmagement
Compenesabon F - T 7aiess F . P P

Key maragement refer b the Fresident of the Assaclation,

The compensation of key management personmel pertaing mainly to shott-term benefits
amaunting b PFA3,856 m 2022 and P252,000 in 221,

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Lepse Comomitment

The Assccialion entered inke a lease agreemant for its office space. The Jease has a term of
oma year ranewable at the expiration of the contract as mwatoally agreed by the lessar, The
Association has elected not bo recognize & leage lisbillty on short-berm leases. Fayments
made under such leases ace expensed on a straight-line basis. Total rentals from his
operating lease amounted to P63,158 and PEA,.250 in 2022 and 2021, respectively (e Mode 12),

tfers

I the normal cotirse of business, the Associaton makes vavicus commitments and Incurs
certain contingent Liabilities that are not given recognition in the Association’s financial
statements, As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, management believes that losses, i any,
that may arse from these commitments and contingencies will not have & matertal effert
on the Association’s (inancil skatetments

RISK pMANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Associaten is exposed to a variety of financial risks in relagon o fnancial
inshurments. The Associaben's fitatcial assets ond labilibes by category are summarized
in Mate 28, The main types of visks are market rigk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

The management takes charge of the Association's overall risk management strabegies
which are [pcused on actively menitoring and securing the Association's shert 3o madium-
terit cash flosws by minbmizing exposwre b financial markets,

The Association daes not engage in the trading of financial assets for speculative purposes
ror does 1t write options, The mest significant finanelal risks to which the Assediation i3
exposed are described below.
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Marhet Risk

The Association is exposed o market risk through its ase of financial instruments and
specifically to curency risk, witerest rate 1isk and certain ofher price tisks which result
trem both its operatng and weshng achiviiss.

a. Foreigm Currency Seasirtty

The Assaclabion has no significant edposure to foreign cocrency Tisks as most
ransactions are denominated in the Fhilippine peso. tts fanctonal arrrency.

b, Indergst Rafa Sengiftomiy

The Assodntion’s policy is bo minimize irterast mte cash fiow nsk exposures on long-
termn financing. The Associotion is exposed only to changes i market interast rates
through its cazh and cash equivalents, a financial assat at amortized cost and other
Funls and deposils ag theve are no existing bank borrowings. Al other financial assets
(auch as loans and receivables) and {inanciel lisbilities {such as acoounts payable andd
members’ deposits) bave fixed inlerest rates.

The table below illusiratas the sepsitivity of the Assockiton’s impact on profit or loss
bafare tax and equily 1o a reasonably possible change in interest rates of +/- 1.82% and
+7/:1.00% in 2022 and 202, respectively. Thes: changes are considersd to be
reasonably possible baged on the observatiom of current market conditions, The
caloudatiems are Baged on a change in the average market intersst rate for each period
and the fmancial instruments held at the and of each reporting perind that iz sensitive
to chomges in interest rates All other vadables are held constand.

phipe: 2031
118z 182 +]150 -151]

Impact on prefitorloss P L39L6H (P 2301614 [ 1896269 (P 1EM09)
[npact oty equbny 22301614 [ 2.390.614) 1E08 260 [ 1,898265)

¢ Dther Price Risk Semsitipeiy

Price risk is the risk that the Association nours losses due to changes m market values
of Arancal instroments arising freen ovemetts in market pricas.

Ap at December 31, 2022 and H21, the Asseclation has minimal exposure to price risk
sirwe Hie financial ihaboments held by the Association mostly pertaing to cash in bank,
shart-term investmemnt, [oans and other receivables, long-term irvestments and other
Financial iabdlties which are not affected by movements in markel prives.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty fails bo discharge an obligation to the
Association. The Assodation is exposed to this Tisk Fer varows financial instroments, for
sxample by granting loans and receivables to borrowers and placing deposits and
Imvestments in bonds.
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An analysis of the mavienum exposure ta credit risk, net of allowance for cradit and
impairment lasses, to ceedit risk exposures before taking mdo account any ecllateral held

or other credit enhancements for the components of the statements of Fmancial position 13
shawn belaw:

2022 2021

Cash and cash equivalent F 1811305 P 323650295
Loans and other receivablux 253,951,913 17,563,158
Firaneie] azset at far value

throvgh profil or loss 8,701,514 5,713,554
Shoxt-terin financial assets 4,000,000 -
Chher funds and deposits 679,156 678518
Financial assata at

amordzed cost 15673053 _ 1ESFIATS

[ 9411872 [ 22431180

The credit risk for cagh, shortterm placement is comsidersd megligible since the
counterparties are repatable banks with high-quality exterpal cnedit ealings. Financial
asgets af an amordzed cost measured at amortized cost and FYTTL are <onsidered to have
low credit visk, Management considers low credit risk for listed bonds w be an
investment-grade credit mbng with at least orve major tefing agency. Deposits with banks
are insured by the Philippine Deposit lnsurance Corporation up to a maximom coverage
of PSDOAN for every deposibor per banking instdtution. Financial asset at amortized cost
consists of T-bifls lisued by the Philippine governmemt, hence low credit risk, The
Association is considered 10 have low credit sk wiety they have alow risk of default and
the issuer has A stOng capacity to mest its contrachoal cash flow obligativns n the
DERT te1Tn-

Orther inshewments ave considesed to ba low credit risk when they have a low risk of
default and the issuer bas a strong capacity bo meet its contractual eash Bow obligations m
Elva rear terrm

In respact of loans and receivables, the Association is not expased o any significant credit
rlsk exposure to any smgle counterparty or any group of counterparties having sirnilar
characteristics. Based on historical informaton about members' defanlt mtes, management
consider: the credit quality of loan receivables that are not past due of impaired to
b gond.

The Assaciation applies the FFRS % simpliFfed approach in ewasuring ECL whith nses a
lifelime evpected loss allowance [or ail loans and receivables. Ta measure the expeched
credit losses accounts receivable have been grovupad based en shared risk characteristics
andd days past dus. As al December 31. 2022, ard 2021, no past due on loans and otha
receivables. Mone of the receivables is impained,

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is generally defined sa the current and prospectize Tisk to earmings or capital

atising from the Association’s inability to reel its cbligations when they fall due without
incurring: unaceeptable losses or costs.
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The Asscciation’s Management Comrrittes is respomible for the overall menagement and
oversight of the Associabion's Lquidity profife, while the day-to-day managemenl of
liquidity is assumed by the Finance Department. A cash How mismatch analysis is wsed to
measuTe the Assocation’s liquidity. A matarty ladder is consiructed to deterenine the
currntlative met excess or defieit of funds at approprate hme bands. et cumulative
outflavr limite have been put in place b ensure that the Association’s Funding
requirernents are oot straimed.

The tables belpw summarize the maiurity profile of the Assodafion’s finansal
FE s T T

—
L shewp 12 Chear
_OpDgmand  _ 3dombs | _bdopdlis T¥ey = Toml
Flrancial assels:
Lash and cash tql.li'l'-ilurrt F lgmday Fooamdnlsd F - r - F 1511318
Loaung gd pther recelrabies 26,960,985 - . - ML
Prmariclal aaset al Fair v
throggh praft or s B0 - L R
Sharbemt HoawEsl agsats 00,00 - . < 000,
Citlver funds arvd Seposils - e 1B . oA E2)
Fissarvoisd Hoastk ak
anerHamd rosk . - - _ FoEFRODY &SR0
PgaeMe T Bm4Qle o 6T1Bs -k L . W1 el
Fiitancial GabiHbey
Linkilityom
imdividual &quity Poa2aels P - Foo- F - P 32366175
Mermbers conbiludon
recaiyd i mbvance 2415009 g - - 241
Cloaras payakin on bese
couykingent benafit 22T : - - Pl g
Cpteninal benefit msence 441 B A - . - 451860
Claims payabit on
cphicoal benehil pAT LS - - . 2008855
Basec ConEngent ¢n
Lamwis AT reserw: GADA = - - . 400312
Qehey payables : 3733810 : e ks s
F_pL5GAST 3033000 - = L e L)
Cumnulshve gap Llllosian B AZR0ly E____O7RJS0 B liATaiey B SOOM.08
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Lews than A2 Theer
_Cm Crerand. JMjepithe  _ Months  _ 1Yesr  _ Towl

Finaungial asszts:

Caxl sl Gagh aquivabent P w500 988 T ' r - r - P ERDE
Loars and clser recebvable: 17 RN 154 - - - TRESEISE
Finvorecial axzsd at fair vahue
Ehrough pufilor hesd 571354 - - - 5713854
Crther unels and daports - r £708.518 - brEI1E
Fimar ] axses vr
amoctized cast . - - LR - T 11704 15
L oarmasr [ - B gMole P aAoTRam LA
Faormwwc] sk Liabulioees:
Liatdity oo
ivvdinrrohas] oquity r AT A57Es F . r - o - P OEASTRY
ern berd etmiribaabicn
recervad I advane 2D . . . 20832
Chipns papabie o bvsie
Cotin pe by 22345488 - - - 1Ak a85
Opdinal beneht reserue 4,107 557 . . - 4 T AAT
oimy peyably on
optmal benetit 1, 7a0 179 - - g 1,750,157
Blaske cotude Sl ot
brreefiL reserue 04123084 - - . Ll
Crabuar payalbibes: - 3ATq A A o — OEM
il 5L 1] 3374 760 . - —_ 18,00 20
Cuniladye gap ol (& _SfMFel L L AT B R e S I 1 TH

Ta ensure that the Assaciation maintains a prudent management level of the cumulative
negative gap, the Association mabntains a porl of Righly liquid assets in the Form of short-

term vestonents.
FAIR VAL MEASLUREMENT AND DISCLOSURES
Carrying Amowts and Fair Valaes by Category of Fiaanclal Assets

The following tables set forth the carcying values and eodmated feir velues of financal
assels and liabilibes, by category and by <lass, recognized as at Decemnber 31, 2042,
and 2021

. | ) bl
Canyipg¥alge __ FalrValys = _CuTving valwe _ Fou Valoe
Fruancizl Asses

Cash and cash sgupmabent P 1611248045 F 1a1I340% P MANRME P 695
Loap aned bty Tecwrrabiss 28 ¥1983 B 95148 17 LR 17,563,158
Finapcial ek M [pir walae

threngl pratll or Joss BA01524 i fee) I L AT 5713854
Shartebermy Hoamwisl adts o LN T & DL - -
Cither fuseds ared dopekit BTNIRE A7 0,156 o E7AS1E
Firmmcial nbese: ot

smortized codt 6 £ 052 InE0 A8y iRav e 18T 575
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_Caoming ¥yye _ Far¥ame | _CarglngWalee _ FoirVals

Fimitmeis! Liakdlitl4a
LAnb-lvty om bvthved wa) aquity L Ma28 F 1t welw F usm™ P . ETe

Membats canbubutdon

reopived [0 advenee 141509 I AL A 2803 41k L A3
Chaio payable on bask;

Conne gant banaflt Pl I drrn et e Rk FELLE 2,370 455
Crthonal bene ik resaoer 4 615,650 3 ATA B0 &217,587 L7557
Clalme payable o optienal

Taneeiit 2,043,714 L3NG 1. el 1 1,760,179
Bagic contingeant bemsbt iesorsg 405312 hAHS AL Ak ) Ltlrche 2]
Cither payables . ATHEAN b B PN X ) 2074 TR

P shgrToals P e3imhdes P SEZOD0 e alilndod

The methods and assumnptions used by the Association in estimating the fair vahire of the
financial inshuments are 25 foliowa:

1. Cnshoin banks

The carrying amounts approaimate fair valugs glven the short-term naniee of the
insttuments,

1. Lowarts and ofler receruabies, Skort-lern Trrvestanents mnd Finmacial Asset at Amortrzed Cost

Loans and other receivables, short-term investments and financial agsets at amartized
cogt are et of impairment losses, The estimated faic value of loans and receivables,
shoreterm investment and Fnancial asset al amortized cost represents the discounted
amount of estimated futare cash flows expected to be received, Long-term interest-

bearing loans are periodically repriced at inferest rates equivalent to the cument
market pates, 1o determine Fair value

. Financael Assetaf FVTPL

Financial Asset at FYTEL is recogrized iniGally at cost and subssquently measured at
their fair valoe,

i, Liakatety o Individual Equity Virbve, Clalims Paebly un Optionl bengfit and CHler Payalie

These liabilities are recopuized mnitially at their fair valus and subsequently measured
at amerbized cost. Fair value of these labilities appreximates their carmyring values,

v, Opiionnl Benefit reseroes and Basic Contingent Benefit Reserve

These labllitiss are recognized willally at their fair value and subzequently measured
based on actuarial valuabion,
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7.
Fiir Value Hierarchky

In accordance witds PEDS 13, the fait volae of fnancial assets and financial Eabilides and
wonvliianvial assets wled are measured at Faic vadus on o rocurring or non cesurring baels
ancl those assets and liabilides nol messvred at fair value bur for which fair velue is
disclosed m accordance with other relevant FERS, are categotized inle tues levels based

o the signiticance of mputs used (o measure the fnir valug. The faic value hisrarchy as
the following levels:

» Lavel 1: quoted prices {unadjusted) in achive markets jor jdenncal assets or
Liabilitias that 20 entity can aceess at the measuranwent date:

» Tevel 2 inputs other than guoted prices included within Level 1 that are
abseraable for the resnurce or lability, elther direcily (32, as prices) or indirectly
{t.a devived From pricec): and,

v Leval 3: inpuaks for the asget or Labiliky thak are not baged on obeerrable marlket
data {uncbservablc inpats),

The Llevel within which the Minancial esset or linkdlity i3 clasgifisd is determinsd bagzed om
the [owest level of slgnificant input to the fair value measurement, Tieae have been no
gignificant transfeis amaong Levels 1, 2 and 3 in the reperting perios.

Fou purpesss of determinang the mavket value ab Level 1, a market is regarded as achive
quoted prices are readily and regulady available froma an exchange, dealer, broker.
industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency. and these prices represent actual
and regularly oocurring market ransactions on an ermn's lengih basgis.

For Bnancial agsets and lisbiliHes which do not have quoted macket price, the falr value 1s
detarmined by usimg geowtally accepted pricing mocdels and valuation beehruques or by
reference to the carrent market value of arother instrument which is substantally the
sarne afler taking into account the related credit risk of coumnterpartes or is calmlated
bascd on the expected cash flews of the underlying not asset bage of the instrument,

When the Asscclatlon uses a valunbon teclueque, it maximizes the wie of cbaervable
market data where it is available and reliey as little as possible on enlity-specific estimakes.
If all significant inputs required to detsrmine the fair value of an nsbament are
observable, the instrament 15 included in Level 2, Otharwize, 1§ is incladed In Leval 5

There have been no significant ransfars among Lavels 1, 2 and 3 in the reporting perieds.
Cash arw] cash eguivalents and fneeelal assets ab amwrtized cost are caregorized as
Level 1. Financial azset at FYTPL is categorized at Level 2, Loans mnd receivables and
hnancial azsets at amomized cost and all financial Labdlides are categorized as Tevel 3,

Fair Value AMeasurement for Nnrrz-fr'llﬂmriﬂf Assebs

There weere ner-financial assats neasured at Eam valie 2= at December 31, 2022 and 2021

CAFMITAL MANAGEMENT ORJECTIVES, POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

The Association’s capltal management cljectives are to ensure the Azsociotion’s ability to
continue 25 3 going concern and o provide an adequats return 4o members by pricing
products and services comunensura bely with the level of risk.
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The Associadon sats the amount of capiial m proportion 1o its everall financing struchure,
Le, squity and financial Habilitles. The Associabion manapges the capifal sbnechre and
makes adjusirnents to it in light of changes in econonic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assats, In arder to malnbain or adjust the capital stachire,

the Associabian ntay adjuat the amount nf dividends paid to membersz o sell aszets b
tadore dahe.

The Association mwndtors capital on e basis of U cazrping amcunt of equity a3
preseinded om the face of the statemenis ¢f financial position. Capital for the reporting
peritids under review is summarized as foliowa:

2022 2021
Tota) liabilities P £5759582 I 58708752
Total edquiby 31 .34% 631 23 228 =87
D-Ebt-tﬂ-t:quil}' cato W 14 1t S s < W MEA

Risk-Based Capitul (RBC) Reéquircinerls

On December 8, 2006, the IT jssved nsurance Memorandam Circular (BWC) M 11-2006,
Adaption of Risk-Bused Copital Framework For The Fhilippine Muetwal Berefil Associations,
prescribes that all Mutuel Bensfit Assocadon (MEA) must satishy the mindmam stanstory
RBC ratic of 100% and net fail B troted test as stated under TLAZ of the 1T
Memerandnm.

Evary MBA is arvwally required to madntale & oinimum EBC ratio of 100% and oot fail
Ulvz Lrenel beat: The trend vest has failed, In the event that:

a. The RBC rabio is less than 125% butis not below 100%
b. The EBFC ratio has derreased orver the past year

c. The difference between the EBC ratic and the decrease in the RBC ratic over the past
year is less dhan Y00%

Failure €0 meet tha RBC ratio chall subject the insurance company to the cormesponding
regulalory infervention which hias been defined at variows [evels,

NON-ADMITTED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Fursuant ta Section 197 of the Insurance Code, certrin assets are classifted and presented
a8 or-admitted assets which comsist of the followring:

2022 2021
Property snd squipment F 204797 P 75,675
Accrued interest peceivable BT 931 -

- S S -7 .
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RECLASSIFICATION DF COMPARATIVE AMCUNT

Certain amounts m the 202] comparative financial statements and note disclosures have
breet reclassified 1o conform to the current year's pressntation. The reclagsification 13
presemted balow:

Az previous by
. Beported _ __ Adjuskment  © _AsReclassifled
Loang apd
receivablas F 35,556 17526602 TP 17,363,158
Memibers” coyrificote han 17 526,602 { 17 526,602) -

Manmagemant belisves that the above raclassification resulted in a better presentahion of
accourits and did et have any impact on the prior vear's profit o loss,

SUFFLEMENTARY INFORMATION REQUIRED BY THE BUREAU OF
INTERIMNAL EEVENLIE

Presented below and in succeeding pages. ave the supplementary information that is
required by the Burean of Internal Revenue (BIR) under its existing revenue repulation to
ba disclosed as part of the notas to finandal statemeriks. Thiz supplementacy informabion is
1ot A requived disclaosgre under PRRS for MEAS.

Begnirewments sinder Bevennie Regulations (RE) 152010

The informaton on laxes, dulles and license [ees paid or acorued durbng the taxalble year
required utider RER 152001 are as follows

Q. Chtprmt Valwe-adied Tix (VAL)

The Association does not have cabpul VAT fer the year smee fhere were no
frangactions subject to VAT,

. Jupnt VAT

Lnput VAT arising frem various purchepes was directly charged by the Association as
oSt anl expetise.

¢, 1eron hiiperithon

The Association has no kax on importation since it does niot have any tansachiems
which are subject to importatinn tax.

d. Exoiee Tax

The Assoviativn does ot have excise wx in any of the years presented since it does not
have any hransactions which are subject b the exciss tax.

8. Dovsementiey Sismp Taz

The Association did not pay for docurmentary stamp fax for the year 2022,

187
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- Taxesand Licemses

The details oF taves and licenses accownt are braken down, as follows:

License renewal = 1T F O,
Business permits 11,437
Arnraal ragiatea ion B
Cihers 4,581

A (]

7 Withkolding Taxes

The details of total withholding taes for the year ended Decembar 31, 2002 are shown
balow:

Compensation r 186,004
Expanded 53,017
E 2900

b Dreficiency Tar Assessment and Tox Case

As at December 31, 2002, the Associabion neither hay any deficiency tax assessment

vrith the BIR nor tax rase outstanding nor pending in courts or badies cutside the BIR
in eny of the open years,

Regurements ander Reverne Regnlatioms (RR) I3-H

Ln December 18, 2000, the BIE tssued BE 34-2020 which preascribes the guidelmes and
procedures for the submission of BIR Form MNo. 170%, Transfer Pricing Docurmenttion
(IT'DY) and other supporting documents. As at December 31, 2022, the Associabion is nok

covered by the requirements emd procedures for related pary fransactions pravided
under this K.
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REPORT OF INDEFENDENT AUDITORS
TO ACCOMPANY SEC SCHEDULES FILED SEPARATELY
FROM THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of Trustees and Memburs

National Confederation of Cooperatives

Mutual Benefits Association (NATCCO MEA), Inc.
(A Non-Stock, Non-Profit Association)

227 1.P. Rizal 5t., Bayanihan

Project 4, Quezon City

We have audited in accordonee with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the financial statements
of National Confederation of Cooperatives Mutual Benefits Association (NATCCO MBA),
Inc. (A Non-Stock, Non-Profit Association) for the year ended December 31, 2022, on which we
have rendered our report dated April 3, 2023, Our audit was made for the purpose of forming
an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The following schedules as of and
for the year ended December 31, 2022 are presented for purposes of additional analysis in
compliance with the requirements of Securities Regulation Code Rule 65, and are not requirecl
parts of the basic Hnancial statements prepared in accordance with Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards (PFRES) applicable to Mutual Benefit Associations (MEBAS):

1. NSPO Form 1 - Sworn Statement Documents /Schedales to the Audited Pinancial
Staternents as of December 31, 2022;

2, NS5PO Form 2 - Affidavit of Willingness to be Audited by the Commission;

3. NSPO Form 3 - Schedule of Receipts or Income or Sources of Funds Other Than
Contributions and Donations; and,

4. MNSPO Form 4 - Schedule of Contributions and Donations

FIEK ACCREDITATION

Aguing, Mala, Calica & Ascociabes

NA, Arcredietion Bo, 4375 - vabd uneil huea 20, 3003

BIR Aecpoditaion ko 08- 002 582004 -2030 - walhd un bl Oesaber 7, 2L

SEC AccrodSinion [No 4373580 [Groap A) - valal unill 2021 sudit

12 Acemed rakion Fe AL KRevmape &) < salid sl Dty ¥E, 123

BEF Accreditabian Mo 4275-E50 (Group Bl - valid weill December 31, 225

CRACEA Na 0GAF-Tune 2000 m Juva L 20,
Swite 1601 - 18907 Cityland Condomininmr 10 Toreer 1, B, V. Diela Costa 81, Makadi Oty Fﬁiil:p'pirm.-l

Tel Moo (02} BRELOMEZ = Fax Mo (02) SR03, 0287
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Such supplementary information is the responsibility of management. The supplementary
information have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and, in opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in melation to the
basic financial staterments taken as a whole,

AMUT dc ASSOCIATES
"-&-—-—;_
B Joseph Cedric V., Calica
Fartner

CPA Cert, No, 94541

TIN 163-257-226-000

PTR No. 9566559, Jan. 3, 2023, Makati City

BIR Accreditation MNo. 08-002582-1-2020
(Dct, 8, 2020 to Oct, 7, 2023)

SEC Accreditation Mo. 94541-5EC (Group A)
(valid until 2022 audit pertod)

IC Accreditation No, 94541-I1C (Group A)
(valid until Dec. 31, 2024)

BSF Accreditation MNo. 94541-B5F (Group B)
(valid until Dec. 31, 2025)

April 3, 2023

FRM ACCEETHTATICR]

Aguine, Mata, Calica & Assocates

B Accrodiiation Mo, 8275 - valbd wnil June I8, 2021

IR Avccreditwtios P, QR-TSED 401 -20230 - walicd unsll Ciouslser 7, 3003

SEC Aocredimbien Mo, SIT5SHE {Groap A - valid waiil 2007 adi

I Aecreditation M. 42751 (Croup A) - walld weidl December 31, HI34

T Accrgsditasion M. SETS-BEP (Group 0= wilhd unl Decembes 31, 208
COACEA N, F5=AF = lune 2, 2071 w0 Fune 1, 304 10
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SWORN STATEMENT

We, Minerva G. Tejada and Zorahayda A. Cafirma, President and Treasurer, respectively, of
Mational Confederation of Cooperatives Mutual Benefits Association (NATCCO MBA), Inc. with
pddress af 227 JP. Rizal Strest Bayanihan, Project 4, Guezon Gity hereby depose and siate that:

In compliance with the Revised SRC Rule 68, we are stafing the following information that
refated to the preceding fiscal year December 31, 2022 fo wit:

Documents/Schedules to the Audited Financial Stataments Checkif |
as of December 31, 2022 - NSPO Forms | Applicable
1, Affidavit of Wilingness tn be Audited by the Commission NSPO Form-2 s
2. Schedule of Receipts or Income or Sources of Funds Other
| Than Contributions and Donations NSPO Form-3 "
'3, Schedule of Contribulions and Donations NEPO Eord 7
4. Schedule of Application of Funds NSPO Form-5 NIA
e e
5. Cerfificate of Existence of Programidclivity (COEP) MA
6 COEP issued by Heads/Ofcers of private imstiution or NIA
aciual beneficiaries/recipients of the program/activity shall be
alhowed in lieu of COEP issued by the govemment
cffices/entifies
We nereby certify that this Swom Statement with duly attached nte/schedubss. is
executed to attest to the truth of the foregoing and for whatever legal purpose i MMJ‘
mw therepf, we have hereunto affixed our signature this day of
at Wﬂ
ada A, Cafirma
President Treasurer

Subsc and sworn to before me, a Motary Public for and in nﬂ..ﬁ
Gityon ' " [ ¢ 78Mfnts personally, exhibiting their respective competant evidence of [dentification

B issuedat ______ issuedon

NOTARY PUBLIC
- ATTY. ROLAN PINAS
R — Mutary Pisslle "Gty of Manil
oy — Motieial Commissibin 2023018
Saries of 2023 iy

240-L AN Lacson S, Sanp. Ml
Polf of Atioreyr Na 84035
PTHR M. AEF20RIAN 2. M0y Mi_A.

MATLOD MUTLAL BEREFITS ASROCIATICN IMC.

L= 5
o =4 Uiy
MCLE Srempled G.UO 1 2

237 IP BEEAL 5T, PREJECT 4, 1109 OUEIDN CITY, FHILIPFINES
wiswlmalscomialecy  Telephone Noo [02) BIG2-3408

[19)]
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AFFIDAVIT OF WILLINGNESS TO BE AUDITED BY THE COMMSSION

. MINERVA G. TEJADA, of legal age, Filipino and resident of 123 Doce 38 St Bray.. 156, Calsosan

City 1400, sfter having been swom fo in accordance with law hereby depose and state:

| @am the President of Mational Confederation of Cooperatives Mutual Benefits Assoclation
(NATCCO MBA), Inc., a non-stock, non-profit erganization registered with the Securiies and Exchange

Commission.

That |, as authorized by the Board of Trustees of the Association, heraby manifest its willingness fo be
audied by the Commission upan its Order and Authonity Tor e purpose of delermining compliance of

the Aszociafion with existing laws and regulations.

That this affidavit is executed to attest to the truth of the foregoing and for whatever legal purpose and

intent it may serve.

In witnass whereof, | hereby sign this affidanit this

TTY OF MANIL 2

ARR

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this
issued on at

“.‘Il'l‘ { e
day of sl

2023, &l

Affi
(Signature over Printed Name)

. m?",ﬂﬁanlﬂhlhhhgtnmhiu

a8 compebent evidence of idantily.

Dee No._*,
Paga No.
Eaook Mo,
Beries of 2023

ATTY. ROLAN 5 PIRAS
Hatary Piblic Wlanila
Notanal Cammess H2HUME
il o 321 2024
AL N | s 1, Samp Mia,
R of Attetney W 84035
PTR Mo G&ZETZAIALLY, A0 MLA,
1B ptzibemmton P Fd a0 Oef2020x2
MELE Eeentpind 60O §s 2008

BATCOD MUTML BENEFITS ASS0CIATION INC.
LIV 1P RITAL 5T, PROCT 4, 1009 QUELON O, PHILIPPSIES
wewi tatccombaEong  Telephone Mo {02) BRE2-1408
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SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS OR INCOME OR SOURCES OF FUNDS
OTHER THAN CONTRIBUTIONS AND DONATIONS

Hame of SEC Registration
Foundation'Chganization: Nao.
Mational Confederation of Cooperatives Mutual

Benefits Association (MBA], Inc. i ’
For the Year Ended
December 31, 2022
|Hi¢ﬂgnrthHur5ngpnufFuﬂ ]
{a) () ' () (d) ()
No. | Description of Income Source Amount (indicate by Date received/
footnobe if other than Period Covered
Philippine cumency,
thien transiate in this
column
1 Interest on deposils with Imt=rest on P44 026 January 1 o
braniks deposits with Dank Decemiber 371, 2022
2 Fremiums snd Mambers P55.901. 050 Janpary 1 Mo
Contributions Depember 31, 2022

10 | Dihers {(aggregate  of

all sources of income
which are individually below
F100,000.00)

BATCOD MUTUAL BEREFITS ASSOCIATION INC.
22T JP RIZALST., PROIECT 4, 1109 QUEZON CITY, PHILIPPNES
wens. natomembgiong  Telephone Moo [02) B962-3408
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SCHEDULE OF CONTRIEUTIONS AND DOMATIONS (PART 1)

Mame of SEC Registration
Foundation!Organization: Mo,
Mational Confederation of Cooperatives Mutual Benefits
Association (WBA), Inc. GRENUIMEED)
For the Year Ended
December 31, 2022
| Part 1. Contributors/Donors2 |
(a) (k) e (d) )
Mo. |  Name and Address Nationality® Total Contributions Type of Contribution’
1 =ane
|____Inonicase
|Eorvpite part 1 therk 50 roncarh pomrision)
]
ronicash
gt 8 il b iovveiah e2akiseEIn
¥ s
BB ey i mreysh coobibubion) |
. ramh
L Ll
ME Nl bearr 13 @ rezoash: confnbedeon |
a5 por
i A
[1ES il 3 reiate T D PR
L e
L lrpawran
LA o T
? [T
ronveask
wminmm
]
= o
ﬂ:‘:_-'ﬁﬂ it B I8 & Seasash conbibubion
B ety
i
] e Sapred e of @i i ceobode ath
ke e ingwsunly Beicw P55,918 050 o —
300,000 D) {Ceempietn on 11 tere i & rencash caniinaian]
|| redina iy
|_{\lna saparaia ghewt il necersaey)

4, eophibutor e donar includes ndbdduak, padnechia, compachiont, afeciations, frushk and crgonkations

Af supronotional orgonizafion. indicoin ploce of pincpal office or domicle.

Cortibuliors or donatians reportable on the Schedule e corbiibuelions, denalior, gnants, Degusests. devises, ond

aifts al

ey Cn property. amounfing So P00 00000 G rore Mo oo ConiTiior oF conar

[19Z8
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SCHEDULE OF CONTRUBUTONS AND DONATIONS (PART II)

M of
F:q.r::daﬁnmmm ﬁc T
National Confederation of Cooperatives Mutual
Benefits Association (MBA), Inc. ﬂ?mmu
“For the Year Ended

December 31, 2022

| Partdl i Non-Cash Progerty [

(a) {b) (e id)
Mo.from | Description of Moncash Properly | Falr Market Value jor Data received
Part . Given estimata)
1 | Mo nencash property contributions and
for dongtions received n X237
2
= =
@
i —

10

NATOOO MLUTRAL BENERITS ASTOCIATION BNE,
227 IP RIEAL 5T, FROIECT 4, 1109 CUEIOH CITY, PHILIPFINES
www, rdlccambal.ong  Telephono Mo - (02) 862-30408

19S5






National Confederation of Cooperatives Mutual Benefits Associaiton, Inc.
#227 1P Rizal Street, Barangay Bayanihan, Project 4, Quezon City, 1109
www. natccombai.com | natccombai@nmbainsurance.com
(02) B962-3408 | +63 998 594 6712

NATCCO MBAI




